
CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

Tuesday, June 12, 2012 
7:00 p.m. 

701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 
City Council Chambers 

7:00 P.M. REGULAR SESSION  

ROLL CALL – Cline, Cohen, Fergusson, Keith, Ohtaki 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

A. PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS - None

B. COMMISSION/COMMITTEE VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS AND REPORTS

C. PUBLIC COMMENT #1 (Limited to 30 minutes)
Under “Public Comment #1”, the public may address the Council on any subject not listed
on the agenda and items listed under the Consent Calendar.  Each speaker may address
the Council once under Public Comment for a limit of three minutes.  Please clearly state
your name and address or political jurisdiction in which you live.  The Council cannot act
on items not listed on the agenda and, therefore, the Council cannot respond to non-
agenda issues brought up under Public Comment other than to provide general
information.

D. CONSENT CALENDAR

D1. Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with Revolution Foods in the amount of 
$78,464 for the delivery of food services at Belle Haven Child Development 
Center (Staff report #12-090) 

D2. Adopt a resolution: a) Calling and giving notice of holding a General Municipal Election for 
two seats on the Menlo Park City Council; b) requesting that the City Council consolidate 
the election with the Presidential General Election to be held on November 6, 2012; and c) 
contracting with the San Mateo County Chief Elections Office for election services  
(Staff report #12-091) 

D3. Adoption of a resolution appropriating a total of $350,000 from the Below Market Rate 
Housing Fund for FY 2011-012; authorize the City Attorney and City Manager to take all 
steps necessary to cure an existing loan default and purchase the property at 1403 Sage 
Street and retain the hone in the City’s BMR program (Staff report #12-096) 

D4. Adopt a resolution accepting dedication of a public access easement and authorizing the 
City Manager to sign the certificate of acceptance for the 200 Middlefield Road Frontage 
Improvements Project (Staff report #12-087) 

D5. Adopt a resolution supporting the Willow Road/US 101 Interchange Project and the Sand 
Hill Road Signal Interconnect Project and submitting an application for Measure A 
Highway Program Funding for the Willow Road/US 101 Interchange Project and the Sand 
Hill Road Signal Interconnect Project (Staff report #12-097) 

1

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



June 12, 2012 
Agenda Page 2 

D6. Waive second reading and adopt an ordinance amending Title 16 of the Menlo Park 
Municipal Code to incorporate the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, and 
ordinances rezoning properties located in the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan area (Staff report #12-098) 

E. PUBLIC HEARING

E1. Adopt a resolution overruling protests, ordering the improvements, confirming the diagram 
and ordering the levy and collection of assessments at the existing fee rates for the 
sidewalk and tree assessments for the City of Menlo Park Landscaping Assessment 
District for fiscal year 2012-13 (Staff report #12-088) 

E2. Adopt a resolution authorizing collection of a regulatory fee at existing rates to implement 
the local City of Menlo Park Storm Water Management Program for Fiscal Year 
2012-13 (Staff report #12-092) 

E3. Adopt a resolution recommending that the San Mateo County Flood Control District 
impose basic and additional charges for funding the fiscal year 2012-13 countywide 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General Program  
(Staff report #12-089) 

F. REGULAR BUSINESS

F1. Adopt resolutions: Adopting the 2012-13 Budget and Capital Improvement Program for the 
City of Menlo Park; establishing the appropriation limit for fiscal year 2012-13; establishing 
a Consecutive Temporary Tax percentage reduction in Utility Users Tax rates; and 
determining the continued need for imposition of the Utility Users Tax per Section 
3.14.310 of the Municipal Code (Staff report #12-093) 

F2. Introduction of an ordinance to amend Menlo Park Municipal Code to increase 
the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) rate from 10% to 12% (Staff report #12-095) 

F3. Amend the Public Noticing Policy (Policy) for Development Permit applications in order to 
provide alternate means for noticing the public of development projects in a cost 
effective and efficient manner (Staff report #12-094) 

F4. Consider state and federal legislative items, including decisions to support or oppose any 
such legislation, and items listed under Written Communication or Information Item - None 

G. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – None

H. WRITTEN COMMUNICATION – None

I. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS

I1. Belle Have CDC Self Evaluation Report for the Child Development Division of 
the California Department of Education for fiscal year 2011-12 (Staff report #12-086) 

J. COUNCILMEMBER REPORTS

K. PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (Limited to 30 minutes)
Under “Public Comment #2”, the public if unable to address the Council on non-agenda
items during Public Comment #1, may do so at this time.  Each person is limited to three
minutes.  Please clearly state your name and address or jurisdiction in which you live.

2

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight

tcliljedahl
Highlight



L. ADJOURNMENT

Agendas are posted in accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a) or Section 54956.  Members of the public can view 
electronic agendas and staff reports by accessing the City website at http://www.menlopark.org  and can receive e-mail notification 
of agenda and staff report postings by subscribing to the “Home Delivery” service on the City’s homepage.  Agendas and staff 
reports may also be obtained by contacting the City Clerk at (650) 330-6620.  Copies of the entire packet are available at the library 
for viewing and copying.  (Posted: 06/07/2012)   

At every Regular Meeting of the City Council, in addition to the Public Comment period where the public shall have the right to 
address the City Council on the Consent Calendar and any matters of public interest not listed on the agenda, members of the 
public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either 
before or during the Council’s consideration of the item.   

At every Special Meeting of the City Council, members of the public have the right to directly address the City Council on any item 
listed on the agenda at a time designated by the Mayor, either before or during consideration of the item.  

Any writing that is distributed to a majority of the City Council by any person in connection with an agenda item is a public record 
(subject to any exemption under the Public Records Act) and is available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, Menlo Park 
City Hall, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025 during regular business hours.  Members of the public may send 
communications to members of the City Council via the City Council’s e-mail address at city.council@menlopark.org.  These 
communications are public records and can be viewed by anyone by clicking on the following link: http://ccin.menlopark.org   

City Council meetings are televised live on Government Access Television Cable TV Channel 26.  Meetings are re-broadcast on 
Channel 26 on Thursdays and Saturdays at 11:00 a.m.  A DVD of each meeting is available for check out at the Menlo Park Library. 

 Live and archived video stream of Council meetings can be accessed at 
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2
Persons with disabilities, who require auxiliary aids or services in attending or participating in City Council meetings, may call the 
City Clerk’s Office at (650) 330-6620. 

 

3

http://www.menlopark.org/�
mailto:city.council@menlopark.org�
http://ccin.menlopark.org/�
http://menlopark.granicus.com/ViewPublisher.php?view_id=2�


  

COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-090 

 
Agenda Item #: D-1 

 
 
CONSENT AGENDA: Authorize the City Manager to Enter Into a Contract With 

Revolution Foods in an Amount Not to Exceed $78,464 
for the Delivery of Food Services at the Belle Haven 
Child Development Center for FY2012-13 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the Council authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract 
with Revolution Foods in an amount not to exceed $78,464 for the delivery of food 
services at the Belle Haven Child Development Center for FY 2012-13.  
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Menlo Park has operated the Belle Haven Child Development Center 
(BHCDC) for over 30 years. An important component of the program is the breakfast 
and lunch served to each child every day. Meal services must comply with the California 
Childcare Food Program meal pattern requirements (including quantity of food and food 
types for each age group) as well as the nutritional standards for breakfast and lunch as 
established by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA).  The BHCDC 
receives meal reimbursements through the USDA based on income levels of families 
served as well as daily attendance. Contracts for food services must be renewed 
annually due to USDA requirements limiting the length of a contract to one year and 
disallowing automatic renewal provisions. The contract for food services must also be 
submitted to the California Department of Education in order to ensure compliance with 
all the provisions and standards set forth by the USDA. 
 
The BHCDC is licensed for 96 children and has an average daily meal count of 
approximately 72 breakfasts and lunches. The Center is currently contracted by the 
State to remain open for 246 days a year, which results in the need for approximately 
35,425 meals per year. Staff is not anticipating any change in operations during Fiscal 
Year 2012-13. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
Bids for the delivery of breakfast and lunch were solicited from food service vendors in 
the area. Two bids were sent out to Revolution Foods and to Choice Lunch, however 
only one bid was received by Revolution Foods.  Revolution Foods’ proposal provides 

4



excellent menu options, nutrition education for parents and children, sack lunches for 
field trips, daily milk and daily fresh fruit.   
 
The Revolution Foods menu option component has been very important to the BHCDC 
as multiple meal options increase the children’s exposure to new foods and flavors and 
provide the BHCDC with the ability to accommodate children with special dietary needs 
without additional staff time or cost. There are two options for breakfast and three to five 
options for lunch, including a main menu, a vegetarian, a dairy-free, a sandwich and a 
salad option. Revolution Foods’ meals contain no rBST or hormones in the milk, no 
nitrates or nitrites in the meat, no fried food, no high fructose corn syrup, no artificial 
trans fats and no artificial color, flavors or sweeteners. All of their baked goods contain 
whole grains; they use organic and locally produced ingredients from family farms 
whenever possible; they offer a different fresh fruit each day of the week and do not 
serve canned fruit. 
 
Revolution Foods is the current vendor and staff has been very pleased with the high 
quality meals and foods served. Their Culinary Center is a Bay Area Green Business 
and Water Smart Business. They recycle and compost virtually all of their kitchen 
waste, use energy efficient insulated food storage units, print education materials on 
recycled paper using soy-based inks, use recyclable packaging whenever possible and 
their hot food containers are printed with soy-based inks. 
 
The City receives reimbursement from the USDA through the Child Care Food Program 
for a fixed amount for each child’s meals. The current reimbursement rate varies based 
on the child’s family income and ranges from a base rate of $ 0.27 to $1.51 for 
breakfast, $0.26 to $2.77 for lunch, and $0.07 to $0.76 for snacks.  Fiscal 2011-12 data 
indicates that of the children qualifying for a meal subsidy, approximately 12 percent 
qualified for the base reimbursement rate, 21 percent qualified for the reduced-price 
reimbursement rate and 67 percent qualified for full subsidy reimbursement rate.  At the 
per meal prices quoted in the bid, the full-year cost for seventy-two breakfasts and 
lunches per day would be $78,464.  
 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
The contract with Revolution Foods will not exceed the amount of $78,464 for 
approximately twelve months of service. Additional food costs (extra snacks, 
condiments, dry goods, etc.) are estimated at $16,915 for the twelve-month period. The 
maximum annual cost of food services for the program is $105,716. It is estimated that 
the City will receive $81,388 in Federal grant reimbursements (breakfast, lunch and 
snacks), resulting in a net cost to the City of $24,328. The net cost is included in the 
2012-13 budget for the Belle Haven Child Development Center in the General Fund. 
 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
The recommendation does not represent any change to existing City policy. 
 

5



Page 3 of 3 
Staff Report #:12-090 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
Approval of the contract is not deemed a project under the California Environmental 
Quality Act. 
 
 
 
 /s/ Signature on file    
Natalie Bonham, Report Author Cherise Brandell 
Program Supervisor- BHCDC Director of Community Services 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

A. Revolution Foods Contract for FY2012-13 
 
 
 
 
 

6



ATTACHMENT A

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-091     

 
Agenda Item #: D-2 

  
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:   Adopt a Resolution:  a) Calling and giving notice of 

holding a General Municipal Election for two seats on 
the Menlo Park City Council; b) Requesting that the City 
Council consolidate the election with the Presidential 
General Election to be held on November 6, 2012; and, 
c) Contracting with the San Mateo County Chief 
Elections Officer for election services 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution (Attachment A):  

a) Calling and giving notice of a General Municipal Election on November 6, 2012;  
b) Requesting consolidation of the election with the Presidential General Election; 
and  
c) Entering into a Service Agreement with San Mateo County Assessor-County Clerk-
Recorder for election services. 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
Members of the City Council are elected for rotating four-year terms.  Two seats on the 
Menlo Park City Council will expire in December 2012.  The City of Menlo Park 
consolidates its general municipal elections with the County of San Mateo and requests 
that the San Mateo County Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder provide specific services 
for the City’s election including the printing and mailing of ballot material, establishing 
and operating polling places, and the counting of the ballots.  A calendar of key dates 
pertaining to the upcoming election is provided as Attachment B. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The City of Menlo Park consolidates its general municipal elections with the County of 
San Mateo.  In order to contract with the San Mateo Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder, 
the City Council must adopt a Resolution requesting that the Board of Supervisors 
approve consolidation of the General Municipal Election with the Presidential General 
Election on November 6, 2012 and approve a Service Agreement, which specifies the 
duties of the City and the County. 
 
 
 
 

18



 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The estimated cost of consolidated election services for the two City Council seats 
election is approximately $40,000.  Funds are included in the FY 2012-2013 Budget. 
 
 
 

   
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

A. Resolution  
 

B. November 6, 2012 Election Calendar 

19



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 
  
CALLING AND GIVING NOTICE OF HOLDING A GENERAL 
MUNICIPAL ELECTION FOR TWO CITY COUNCIL SEATS; 
REQUESTING ELECTION CONSOLIDATION WITH THE 
PRESIDENTIAL GENERAL ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 
6, 2012; AND CONTRACTING WITH THE SAN MATEO COUNTY CHIEF 
ELECTIONS OFFICER FOR ELECTIONS SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of Menlo Park is calling a General Municipal Election to be 
held on Tuesday, November 6, 2012, for the purpose of electing two council members 
for full terms; and 
 
WHEREAS, the General Municipal Election is to be consolidated with the Presidential 
General Election to be held on the same date and that the City precincts, polling places 
and election officers of the two elections be the same, and that the San Mateo County 
Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder canvass the returns of the General Municipal Election 
and that the Election be held in all respects as if there were only one election. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Menlo Park orders as follows: 
 
1. Pursuant to California Elections Code Section 10403, the City Council of Menlo 

Park is hereby consenting and agreeing to the consolidation of a General Municipal 
Election with the Presidential General Election to be held on November 6, 2012.  

 
2. That the election precincts, polling places, voting booths and election officials in 

each of the precincts in which this election shall be held shall be the same as 
provided for the Presidential General Election on said date, as prescribed by the 
ordinance, order, resolution or notice of the Board of Supervisors of San Mateo 
County calling, providing for or giving notice of such other election and which sets 
forth such precincts, voting booths, polling places and election officials. 

 
3. The City Council further requests that the County Board of Supervisors permit 

County election official(s) be authorized to render services to the City relating to the 
conduct of said election. The services shall be of the administrative type normally 
performed by such County election official(s) in conducting elections including, but 
not limited to, checking registrations; printing and mailing sample ballots; ballots; 
candidates’ statements; hiring election officers and arranging for polling places; 
providing and distribution of election supplies; and counting ballots and canvassing 
returns. 

 
4. That the San Mateo Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder is hereby authorized to 

canvass the returns of the General Municipal Election, and that the election shall be 
held in all respects as if there were only one election, and only one form of ballot 
shall be used. 

 

20



5. The City of Menlo Park recognizes that the costs incurred by the San Mateo 
Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder, by reason of this consolidation, will be reimbursed 
by the City of Menlo Park as specified in the Services Agreement that the City of 
Menlo Park is approving. 

 
6. The City Clerk is hereby directed to submit a certified copy of this resolution to the 

Board of Supervisors of the County of San Mateo, and to the appropriate County 
election officials of San Mateo.  The City Clerk is also directed to file a copy of the 
resolution with the San Mateo County Chief Elections Officer/County Clerk. 

 
7. That the City Clerk shall certify to the passage and adoption of this resolution. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes: 

 
AYES:   

 
NOES:  

  
ABSENT:  

  
ABSTAIN:   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twelfth day of June, 2012. 

 
 

 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 

21



Page 1 of 4

Days Prior to 
Election

Date Election Calendar for November 6, 2012 
Presidential Election

148 June 11, 2012

By this date, the Governor shall issue a proclamation calling the General Election and shall state the 
time of the election and the offices to be filled and transmit a copy of the proclamation to the board 
of supervisors of each county.  The Secretary of State will send an informational copy of the 
proclamation to each county elections official.
EC §12000

131 June 28, 2012
Last day for an initiative measure, statewide constitutional amendment, bond measure or other 
legislative measure to qualify for the Ballot.
EC §9040; Cal. Const. Art. II §8(c)

130 June 29, 2012
(School or Special District Vacancy) Last day for the governing body of a local jurisdiction to call  for 
an election to fill a vacancy to be on the Ballot.
GC §1780; ED §5091(b)

127 July 2, 2012

113 July 16, 2012

125 July 5, 2012

Last day for Special Districts to deliver notice of offices to be filled, decisions regarding payment of 
candidate statements, and a map of the District boundaries.(NOTE: The deadline is extended one 
day pursuant to EC §15 as it would otherwise fall on a holiday.)
EC§§10509, 10522

123 July 6, 2012

(School District Vacancy) Last day for the school governing board to deliver a resolution (the 
"specifications of the election order") to the County Superintendent and Elections Officer calling for 
an election of governing board members.
ED §5322

120 July 9, 2012
(School District Vacancy) Last day for the County Superintendent to deliver an official order and 
formal notice of election of governing board members to the Elections Official.
ED §5325(b)

120 July 9, 2012

90 August 8, 2012

118 July 11, 2012 First Candidate Seminar to be held at 2:00 p.m. at the Elections Office, 40 Tower Road, San Mateo.

114 July 16, 2012

(City Vacancy) For a vacancy in a city election office, this is the last day for the city council to call a 
special election for November 6 to fill the vacancy. The City shall immediately publish the Notice of 
Election.  (NOTE: The deadline is extended one day pursuant to EC §15 as it would otherwise fall on 
a Sunday)
EC § 12101-02; GC §36512

113 July 16, 2012

88 August 10, 2012

113 July 16, 2012

88 August 10, 2012

110 July 19, 2012 Second Candidate Seminar to be held at 10:00 a.m. at the Elections Office, 40 Tower Road, 
San Mateo.

102 July 27, 2012 Data Seminar to be held at 2:00 p.m. at the Elections Office, 40 Tower Road, San Mateo.

Period in which United States House of Representatives and State Senate and Assembly candidates 
who will appear on the November ballot may purchase space for a 250-word candidate statement in 
the official sample ballot.
GC §85601(c);EC §13307.5 

Office of Mark Church
Chief Elections Officer & Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder

40 Tower Road, San Mateo, California  94402

Between these dates is the candidate filing period.  Nomination papers and declarations of candidacy 
are available during this time.  A non-refundable filing fee (if applicable) and optional candidate 
statement are due at the time of filing. The candidate statement may be withdrawn but not changed 
during this period (until 5:00 p.m. on August 13, 2012)   Paperwork must be in by 5:00 p.m. on 
August 10, 2012.  No candidate may withdraw declaration of candidacy after 5:00 p.m. on August 
10, 2012. Write-in Candidates and Independent Nominations will not be allowed for Voter Nominated 
Offices.
EC §§8020, 8028, 8040-8041, 8061, 8100, 8105-8106, 10220, 10407, 10510, 10603, 13107, 13307

Between these dates, the County shall publish the Notice of Election (date of election, identification 
of offices to be filled, statement of required qualifications, where nomination papers are available, 
deadline for filing required forms, statement regarding appointment, and related information).  The 
notice of central counting place may be combined with this notice.
EC §12112; GC §6061; ED §5363 

Between these dates, the City Elections Official shall publish a Notice of Election including time of 
election and City office(s) to be filled.  If a City measure is placed on the ballot before July 16, 2012, 
the notice of election shall be consolidated to include candidate(s) and measure(s).
EC §§12101, 12111

ATTACHMENT B

22



Page 2 of 4

Days Prior to 
Election

Date Election Calendar for November 6, 2012 
Presidential Election

Office of Mark Church
Chief Elections Officer & Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder

40 Tower Road, San Mateo, California  94402

98 July 31, 2012

Last day that candidates may request in writing a different ballot designation than that used at the 
primary election.  The written request shall be accompanied by a ballot designation worksheet.  For 
United States House of Representatives and State Senate and Assembly candidates, this request 
should be made to both the Secretary of State and the county elections official.                                                                                                                                                                               
EC §13107(e)                                                                       

98 July 31, 2012
Last day to file semiannual campaign statements; if required, by all candidates, organizations, 
committees, and slate mailer organizations.
GC §§84200, 84218

88 August 10, 2012

Last day for a local entity to request election services and consolidation from the San Mateo County 
Board of Supervisors for the November 6th election by filing with the Board of Supervisors and 
submitting a copy to the Elections Officer a resolution of its governing board requesting the 
consolidation.
EC §§1405, 10002, 10403, 12001          

88 August 10, 2012
(School District Measure) Last day for a school governing board to deliver a resolution (the 
"specifications of the election order") to the Elections Officer calling for an election on a measure.                                                                                                                                                         
ED §5322

88 August 10, 2012
Last day to submit nomination documents (declaration of candidacy and nomination papers to 
Elections Official - due by 5:00 p.m.).
EC §§8020(b), 10510(a)

88 August 10, 2012
Last day for a candidate who has qualified for the ballot to withdraw their candidacy (until 5:00 
p.m.).
EC §§10510(a), 10603

88 August 10, 2012

78 August 20, 2012

85 August 13, 2012
Except as provided in EC §13309, 5:00 p.m. today is the last day for a candidate to withdraw the 
candidate's statement.  Candidates may withdraw, but not change their statements.
EC §13307(a)(3)                                

85 August 13, 2012

County to publish a notice regarding County, School District & Special District measures, the dates 
for submitting primary arguments and rebuttals, the 10 day public examination period, and the 
central ballot counting location.  
EC §§9502, 10242; GC §6061; ED §5363

83 August 15, 2012

Last day for any qualified political party to submit to the county elections official a list of all 
candidates for voter-nominated office who will appear on any ballot in the county in question, and 
who have been endorsed by the party.  The county elections official shall print any such list that is 
timely received in the sample ballot.
EC § 13302(b) 

83 August 15, 2012

Candidate Filing Period closes at the close of business for extended offices.  Extended filing periods 
occur when a non-term limited incumbent does not file for re-election, and the extension only applies 
to non-incumbent candidates for such an office.
EC §§8022(b), 8024, 10407

83 August 15, 2012

Last day for an order of election calling for a ballot measure to be amended or withdrawn.  A 
resolution of the legislative body that issued the order of election must be filed with the Elections 
Official by today in order to amend or withdrawal a ballot measure.
EC §9605

82 August 16, 2012
Random Alpha Drawing is conducted to determine the order in which candidate names will appear on 
the ballot and letters that will be assigned to each ballot measure.        
EC §§13112, 13116

82 August 16, 2012
Last day for a candidate whose filing period ended on the 83rd day to withdraw candidate statement.  
The statement may be withdrawn, but not changed, until 5:00 p.m.                                                                                                          
EC §13307 (a)(3)

10-Calendar day public review period begins August 10 and ends August 20 at 5:00 p.m. for all 
documents filed as of the filing deadline of August 10. Between these dates any registered voter or 
the Elections Officer may seek a writ of mandate or injunction requiring any or all of the materials to 
be amended or deleted if found to be misleading or inaccurate. Documents subject to this review 
include resolutions, ordinances, declarations and candidate statements.
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509, 13313

23



Page 3 of 4

Days Prior to 
Election

Date Election Calendar for November 6, 2012 
Presidential Election

Office of Mark Church
Chief Elections Officer & Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder

40 Tower Road, San Mateo, California  94402

81 August 17, 2012

For consolidated elections, the names of the candidates to appear upon the ballot where district, city, 
or other political subdivision offices are to be filled shall be filed with the Elections Official by this 
date.
EC §10403

81 August 17, 2012 Primary Arguments in favor of and against local measures are due by 5:00 p.m. 
EC §§9162-9163, 9282-9283, 9286, 9315-9316, 9501-03

81 August 17, 2012

71 August 27, 2012

71 August 27, 2012
Rebuttal Arguments for measures where a primary argument was filed both in favor and against are 
due.  Impartial Analysis for city measures are also due.
EC §§9163, 9167, 9285-86, 9316-17, 9501-9504      

71 August 27, 2012

61 September 6, 2012

68 August 30, 2012
By this date the Secretary of State will provide a certified list of Federal and State candidates, 
including a ballot rotation list to each County.
EC §8120-8125

61 September 6, 2012

Any city that requests the Board of Supervisors to permit the Elections Official to prepare the city's 
election materials shall supply the Elections Official with a list of its precincts, or consolidated 
precincts, as applicable, no later then this date.
EC §10002

57 September 10, 2012

14 October 23, 2012

50 September 17, 2012
By this date each County must send the report of registration, reflecting the total number of voters 
as of September 7, 2012, to the Secretary of State.
EC §2187

40 September 27, 2012

21 October 16, 2012

32 October 5, 2012
Last day to file campaign statements for candidates and committees for the period ending 
September 30, 2012.
GC §§ 84200.5,84200.7(b) 

29 October 8, 2012

7 October 30, 2012

16 October 21, 2012

1 November 5, 2012

15 October 22, 2012

Voter Registration closes on this date for the November Presidential General Election.  Voters must 
register by this date to be eligible to vote in this election.  Postmarked voter registration forms with 
this date are accepted.
EC §§2102, 2107

14 October 23, 2012

7 October 30, 2012

10-Calendar day review period begins August 17 at 5:00 p.m. and ends August 27 at  5:00 p.m. for 
Primary Arguments filed in favor of and against measures. Between these dates any registered voter 
or the Elections Officer may seek a writ of mandate or injunction requiring any or all of the materials 
to be amended or deleted if found to be misleading or inaccurate.
EC §§9190, 9295, 9380, 9509

10-Calendar day review period begins August 27 at 5:00 p.m. and ends September 6 at 5:00 p.m. 
for Rebuttal Arguments filed in favor and/or against measures. Between these dates any registered 
voter or the elections official may seek a writ of mandate or injunction requiring any or all of the 
materials to be amended or deleted if found to be misleading or inaccurate.
EC§ 9190, 9295, 9380, 9509

Contributions made by or received by a candidate or committee of $1,000 or more per source must 
be reported within 24 hours during this period.
GC §84203

During this time write-in candidates must file a statement of write-in candidacy and other required 
documentation with the Elections Office.
EC §§8600, 8601

Between these dates, the County Sample Ballot and Official Voter Information Pamphlet and the 
State Voter Information Guide will begin mailing to each voter who is registered at least 29 days 
prior to the election.
EC §§9094, 13303-13304, 13306

Between these dates, any registered voter may request a Vote by Mail Ballot.  Any requests received 
prior to October 8, 2012 will be kept until this period and then processed.
EC §3001

New California residents who established California residency on or after October 22, 2012, can 
register to vote during this time to receive a "New Resident's" ballot containing options to vote only 
for the office of President and Vice President at the Elections Office.
EC §§332, 3400

24



Page 4 of 4

Days Prior to 
Election

Date Election Calendar for November 6, 2012 
Presidential Election

Office of Mark Church
Chief Elections Officer & Assessor-County Clerk-Recorder

40 Tower Road, San Mateo, California  94402

14 October 23, 2012

0 November 6, 2012

12 October 25, 2012

Last day to file campaign statements for candidates and committees for the period ending October 
20, 2012.  Candidates being voted upon, their controlled committees, and committees primarily 
formed to support or oppose a candidate or measure must file the second pre-election statement by 
guaranteed overnight mail or personal delivery.
GC §§84200.5, 84200.7

10 October 27, 2012
Last Day for County to mail Sample Ballot and Official Voter Information Pamphlets to voters 
registered less than 29 days before the election.  
EC §13303

10 October 27, 2012

On or before this date, a notice shall be published by the county elections official at least once in a 
newspaper of general circulation within the district specifying the public place to be used as the 
central tally center for counting the ballots.
EC §12109

7 October 30, 2012
By this date each County must send the report of registration, reflecting the total number of voters 
as of October 23, 2012, to the Secretary of State.
EC §2187

7 October 30, 2012
By this date, the County shall publish a notice listing the polling places for this election and precinct 
board members appointed for this election by October 22, 2012.
EC §§12105, 12105.5, 12106

0 November 6, 2012

Election Day.  Polls open at 7:00 a.m. and close at 8:00 p.m. 
Semifinal official canvass commences upon the closing of all polls at 8:00 p.m.  At 8:05 p.m. San 
Mateo County issues first report of election results and continues to issue updates until all precincts 
have reported.
EC §§1000, 1001, 14212, 15150, 15151

28 December 4, 2012
Last day for County elections official to certify election results to the jurisdictions participating in the 
election.
EC §15372

28 December 4, 2012
Last day for County elections official to post an updated list of the precinct board members who 
actually served on election day.
EC §12105.5

Footnotes
EC:
ED:  California Education Code
GC:

 California Elections Code

 California Government Code
                               All above California Codes may be referenced online at:   www.leginfo.ca.gov/calaw.html

Between these dates, those who become new United States citizens on or after October 22, 2012, 
are eligible to register and vote at the Elections Office.  A new citizen registering during this time 
must provide proof of citizenship and declare that he or she has established residency in California.
EC §§331, 3500, 3501

25



  CITY ATTORNEY 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-096 

 
Agenda item #: D-3 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a Resolution Appropriating a Total of $350,000 

from the Below Mark Rate Housing Fund for FY 2011-12; 
Authorize the City Attorney and City Manager to Take All 
Steps Necessary to Cure an Existing Loan Default and 
Purchase the Property at 1403 Sage Street and Retain 
the Home in the City’s BMR Program 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution amending the Fiscal Year 
2011-12 budget appropriating $350,000 from the Below Market Rate Housing Fund to 
cure an existing loan default by the property owner and to purchase the property to 
preserve it in the BMR program; and authorize the City Attorney and the City Manager 
to take any and all actions necessary, including filing a lawsuit to acquire title to the unit 
in order to retain the house in the City’s BMR program, and including but not limited to 
executing documents to accept a deed for title to the property.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The owner of the BMR unit at 1403 Sage Street is Ms. Shemica Taylor, who purchased 
the property in September of 2007 for $330,000. The first deed of trust is with SunTrust 
Mortgage in the amount of $264,000. Ms. Taylor also has a PAL loan with the City in the 
amount of $66,000, for which payments have not yet started. 
 
The City received a Notice of Default dated October 17, 2011, from SunTrust, indicating 
that Ms. Taylor had defaulted on her mortgage payments and owed approximately 
$33,000 to bring the loan current. Nicolas Flegel of the City Attorney’s office contacted 
Ms. Taylor and discussed the default and her efforts to work with SunTrust to modify the 
loan and bring it current.    
 
A Notice of Trustee’s Sale was recorded in mid-January 2012, with a sale date 
scheduled for February 14, 2012.  Mr. Flegel was able to have the first sale date 
postponed 60 days to April 24, 2012, while Ms. Taylor worked on the loan modification.   
 
On January 20, 2012, Mr. Flegel sent the owner a Notice of Default pursuant to the 
terms of the BMR Agreement, asking her to cure the current default within 10 days.  On 
February 8, 2012, Mr. Flegel sent a second notice to the owner declaring a default of 

26



the BMR Agreement for failure to cure the SunTrust default and indicating the City’s 
intention to seek specific performance of the BMR Agreement and exercise its option to 
purchase the unit. As Mr. Flegel continued to work with the property owner and as she 
worked with SunTrust on a loan modification, the sale date was again postponed at the 
City’s request to the new sale date of June 28, 2012.  
 
In April 2012, SunTrust advised Ms. Taylor that it had denied her modification request. 
While it is Mr. Flegel’s understanding that Ms. Taylor was intending to resubmit her 
modification proposal, we have received no confirmation that she did so. Furthermore, 
Mr. Flegel has been advised that based on a review of her situation, compared to other 
loan modification requests, there is very little likelihood that SunTrust would approve 
any re-application. 
 
The City is entitled to repurchase the property for approximately $343,995. (as of 
February 2012) pursuant to the terms of the BMR Agreement.   
 
The current amount due and owing on the first deed of trust is approximately $320,000.  
The PAL loan is $66,000. 
 
If the City were to repurchase and resell the unit through the BMR program, it could 
resell the unit for approximately $394,009.  
 
SunTrust has indicated that it will not postpone the foreclosure sale for a third time, so 
we must file the lawsuit in order to protect the City’s interest in the property. The City 
Council, in closed session on June 5, 2012, authorized the City Attorney to initiate 
litigation against Ms. Taylor to enforce the provisions of the BMR Agreement and to 
repurchase the unit to prevent the loss of the unit from the BMR program.   
  
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
There are sufficient funds in the City’s BMR Fund to cure the default and acquire title to 
the property. Once the City has title and possession, staff will determine if additional 
funds will be necessary to get the unit ready for resale in the City’s BMR program to 
another qualified purchaser. The City will receive most, if not all, of the costs upon the 
resale of the property to another BMR owner.  
 
POLICY ANALYSIS 
 
It is the policy of the City to preserve and maintain all BMR units in the BMR program. 
Failure to take this action would result in the lender foreclosing and the loss of the unit 
in the BMR program. 
  

27



Page 3 of 3 
Report #: 12-096 
 
 

 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
 This repurchase of the property is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
(CEQA). 
 
 
______________________ 
For William L. McClure 
City Attorney 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda at least 72 

hours prior to the meeting, with this agenda item being listed.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
 A: Resolution  
 

28



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK APPROPRIATING A TOTAL OF $350,000 FROM THE BELOW 
MARK RATE HOUSING FUND FOR FY 2011-12; AUTHORIZATION OF 
THE CITY ATTORNEY AND CITY MANAGER TO TAKE ALL STEPS 
NECESSARY TO CURE AN EXISTING LOAN DEFAULT AND 
PURCHASE THE PROPERTY AT 1403 SAGE STREET AND RETAIN 
THE HOME IN THE CITY’S BMR PROGRAM 
 
 

The City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, having considered and 
been fully advised in the matter and good cause appearing therefore, 
 
NOW BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo 
Park does hereby authorize amending the Fiscal Year 2011-12 budget appropriating 
$350,000 from the Below Market Rate Housing Fund to cure an existing loan default by 
the property owner of 1403 Sage Street and to purchase the property to preserve it in 
the BMR program; and hereby authorizes the City Attorney and the City Manager to 
take any and all actions necessary, including filing a lawsuit to acquire title to the unit in 
order to retain the house in the City’s BMR program, and including but not limited to 
executing documents to accept a deed for title to the property. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a 
meeting by said Council on the 12th day of June, 2012, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this 12th day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

29



  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-087 

 
Agenda Item #: D-4 

 
 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Adopt a Resolution Accepting Dedication of a Public 

Access Easement and Authorize the City Manager to 
Sign the Certificate of Acceptance for the 200 
Middlefield Road Frontage Improvements Project 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) accepting 
dedication of a Public Access Easement and authorize the City Manager to sign the 
certificate of acceptance for the 200 Middlefield Road frontage improvements project. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The 200 Middlefield Road frontage improvements project consists of repairs to the 
existing concrete valley gutter and asphalt parking area along Santa Margarita Avenue, 
and the construction of a new concrete sidewalk on the property along Middlefield 
Road. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
As a condition of the use permit, the applicant was required to provide public pedestrian 
access along the Middlefield Road frontage of their property. Since the new public 
sidewalk is located within the applicant’s private property, a Public Access Easement is 
required to allow the public to use the sidewalk. The easement dedication is shown in 
Attachment B. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The staff time associated with review and acceptance of the easement dedications and 
access agreement are fully recoverable through fees collected from the applicant.   
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation does not represent any change to existing City policy. 
 

30



ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
The project is categorically exempt under Class I of the current State of California 
Environmental Quality Act. 
 
 
________________________ _______________________________ 
Roger K. Storz Ruben R. Niño 
Senior Civil Engineer Assistant Public Works Director 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

A. Resolution  
 
B.  Public Access Easement  

 

31



 
ATTACHMENT A 

  

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK ACCEPTING A PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN THE CERTIFICATE OF 
ACCEPTANCE FOR THE  200 MIDDLEFIELD ROAD FRONTAGE 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the 200 Middlefield Road Frontage Improvements Project consists of 
repairs to the existing concrete valley gutter and asphalt parking area along Santa 
Margarita Avenue; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Project includes the construction of a new concrete sidewalk on the 
property along Middlefield Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a condition of the use permit to provide public pedestrian access along 
the Middlefield frontage; and 
 
WHEREAS, the new public sidewalk is located within the applicant’s private property 
requiring a Public Access Easement to allow the public use of the sidewalk.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council hereby accepts the 
required Public Access Easement along the southerly edge of the property at 200 
Middlefield Road and is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
reference; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council authorizes the City Manager to sign 
the Certificate of Acceptance for said easement. 

 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on this twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes: 
  
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk      

32



ATTACHMENT B

33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



  PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 

Staff Report #: 12-097 
 

Agenda Item #: D-5 
 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  Adopt Resolutions Supporting the Willow Road/US 101 
Interchange Project and the Sand Hill Road Signal 
Interconnect Project and Submitting an Application for 
Measure A Highway Program Funding for the Willow 
Road/US 101 Interchange Project and the Sand Hill Road 
Signal Interconnect Project  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that Council adopt resolutions (Attachments A and B) supporting the 
Willow Road/US 101 Interchange Project and the Sand Hill Road Signal Interconnect 
Project and submitting an application for Measure A Highway Program Funding for the 
Willow Road/US 101 Interchange Project and the Sand Hill Road Signal Interconnect 
Project, and authorizing the City Manager to execute the necessary funding 
agreements. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 

The City is submitting two applications for the Measure A Highway Program funding. To 
provide funding for project management consulting services to the City for the 
environmental phase of the Willow Road/US 101 Interchange Improvement Project.  
The other application would fund the design, construction, and inspection phases of the 
Sand Hill Road Signal Interconnect Project. 
 
Willow Road is classified as a major arterial east of the Willow Road/US 101 
interchange and a minor arterial west of the Willow Road/US 101 interchange.  
Approximately 30,000 vehicles per day travel on Willow Road between Middlefield Road 
and Bayfront Expressway. 
 
Sand Hill Road is classified as a major arterial between Santa Cruz Avenue and I-280 
on/off ramps.  Approximately 30,800 vehicles per day travel along Sand Hill Road 
during the weekdays. 
 
The San Mateo County Transportation Authority (SMCTA) issued a Cycle 1 Call for 
Projects on May 25, 2012 for the Measure A Highway Program.  In general, highway 
and roadway improvements on congested commute corridors are eligible for Highway 
Program funds.  The focus of this Program is to remove bottlenecks in the most 
congested highway commute corridors, and reduce congestion and improve throughout 

42



Page 2 of 4 
Staff Report #: 12-097 

 

critical congested commute corridors.  Maintenance and rehabilitation projects for 
highways and roadways are not eligible.  The specific eligibility for each funding track is 
described below: 
 
Original Measure A 
Eligibility is limited to projects listed in the 1988 Expenditure Plan which are actively 
progressing.  
 
Key Congested Areas (KCA)  
Eligibility is restricted to the 11 projects within the five KCAs as specified in the San 
Mateo County Transportation Authority’s Short Range Highway Program (SRHP). 
 
Supplemental Roadways (SR) 
Any project not eligible for the KCA is eligible for the SR category as long as it is 
intended to reduce congestion and improve throughput along critical congested 
commute corridors. While there is a list of SR candidate projects included in the SRHP, 
this list is not exhaustive and inclusion as a candidate project does not imply any 
priority.  
 
Attachment C provides the eligible project list, projects not shown on this list may be 
eligible as well. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 

The Willow Road/US 101 interchange project is included in the list of eligible candidate 
projects in the Original Measure A 1998 Expenditure Plan.  Sand Hill Road Signal 
Interconnect Project is included as an eligible project in the SMCTA’s Short-range 
Highway Plan (2011-2021) for new Measure A funds.  The SMCTA requires agencies 
that apply for funding as the sponsor agency to provide a resolution in support of the 
project application.  The resolution would affirm the sponsor agency’s support for the 
overall project, and the sponsor’s role for the project scope.  The approved governing 
board resolutions are due by July 27, 2012. 
 
Willow Road /US 101 Interchange Project 
The Willow Road/US 101 interchange improvement project is being led by Caltrans and 
is currently in the conceptual stage of the project.  Traffic modeling and traffic 
operational analysis is currently underway in the conceptual stage.  The operational 
analysis is considering six alternative configurations for the interchange.  The 
configurations are designed to minimize the overall traffic impacts to both the local 
streets and the freeway as well as improve bicycle and pedestrian access.  Some of the 
alternatives could involve right-of-way impacts to adjacent property owners, while some 
of the alternatives minimize the impacts to right of way.  The environmental phase of the 
project will assess all the impacts associated with the various alternatives in further 
detail and provide public outreach in the review process.   Caltrans is considering 
scheduling a public scoping meeting in the near future in Menlo Park and East Palo Alto 
to review the alternatives with the public. 
 

43



Page 3 of 4 
Staff Report #: 12-097 

 

According to the SMCTA, there are approximately $22 million in State Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) funds and Measure A funds programmed to this project 
through C/CAG for the environmental and design and construction phases of the 
project.  Approximately $3.58m of the $22m is guaranteed funding for environmental 
and design phases of the project.  The environmental phase of the project will take 
approximately 3-4 years to complete.  The construction funding for the project is 
included in the STIP, but is subject to change and the construction cost could potentially 
be higher.  Additional funding or any change in STIP funding would allow a request for 
construction funding through Measure A.  As part of this project scope and funding 
application request, the City is requesting $500,000 in Measure A Highway Program 
funding for a civil consulting firm to assist the City in providing project management 
support for the project and coordinating with the stakeholders and the lead agency 
(Caltrans or C/CAG) during the environmental phase of the project. 
 
Sand Hill Road Signal Interconnect Project 
The Sand Hill Road Signal Interconnect Project would reduce congestion and improve 
the progression of traffic during the morning and evening commute hours by 
coordinating the six traffic signalized intersections between the Sand Hill Road/SH 280 
on/off ramps and Sand Hill Road/Santa Cruz Avenue intersection.  The project would 
install fiber optic cable between the traffic signal controller cabinets to communicate 
between each other, video surveillance cameras for remote monitoring and fine-tuning 
of the intersections, and implement adaptive signal operation between these 
intersections.  As part of this project’s scope, the City is requesting $1,300,000 in 
Measure A Highway Program funding to design, construct, and inspect the project. The 
City is currently operating adaptive signal operations between Sand Hill Road/Santa 
Cruz and Sand Hill Road/Oak Avenue traffic signals.  
 
The funding breakdown for the Willow Road/US 101 Interchange Project funding 
application is as follows: 
 
TA Measure A Highway funds $   500,000 (consultant project management services) 
City matching funds $   100,000 (in-kind staff time) 
STIP matching funds $3,500,000 (programmed for Environmental and 

Design phases) 
   
Total   $4,100,000  
 
The funding breakdown for the Sand Hill Road Signal Interconnect Project is as follows: 
   
TA Measure A Highway funds   $1,300,000  
City matching funds      $   100,000 (TIF funds) 
Total  $1,400,000  
 
The City matching funds have been identified from the Transportation Impact Fee (TIF) 
funds.  There are currently $3.1 million available in the balance of TIF funds.  The next 
steps are to complete the application for the two proposals by June 29th.  If the City is 
awarded the funding for both projects, City staff will need to return to Council to accept 
the funds.   

44



45



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO.  

ADOPT A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE WILLOW/US 101 
INTERCHANGE PROJECT AND SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION FOR 
MEASURE A HIGHWAY PROGRAM FUNDING FOR THE WILLOW/US 
101 INTERCHANGE PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FUNDING AGREEMENT  
 

WHEREAS, there is increased congestion at the interchange of US 101 and Willow 
Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, there is a proposed Caltrans project to improve the traffic operation at the 
interchange; and 
 
WHEREAS, it will cost $500,000 for consultant management services to assist the City 
during the environmental phase to provide project management for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City wishes to sponsor the implementation of the consultant 
management services for the Willow Road/US 101 interchange project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City seeks $500,000 for consultant management services to assist the 
City during the environmental phase of the project to provide project management 
services for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 7, 1988, the voters of San Mateo County approved a ballot 
measure to allow the collection and distribution by the San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority (TA) of a half-cent transactions and use tax in San Mateo 
County for 25 years, with the tax revenues to be used for highway and transit 
improvements pursuant to the Transportation Expenditure Plan presented to the voters 
(Original Measure A); and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 2, 2004, the voters of San Mateo County approved the 
continuation of the collection and distribution by the TA the half-cent transactions and 
use tax for an additional 25 years to implement the 2004 Transportation Expenditure 
Plan beginning January 1, 2009 (New Measure A); and  
 
WHEREAS, TA issued a Call for Projects for the Measure A Highway Program funds on 
May 24, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, TA requires a governing board resolution from the City in support of the 
City’s application for $500,000 in San Mateo County Measure A Highway Program 
funds for consultant management services to assist the City during the environmental 
phase to provide project management for the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, TA requires a governing board resolution from the City committing the City 
to the completion of the project scope. 
 

46



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 

does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Supports the overall concept of the project, pending the environmental review, and 

its goal to improve the traffic operations and air quality along US 101 and   along 

Willow Road near the interchange.  

2. Directs staff to submit an application for San Mateo County Measure A Highway for 

$500,000 for providing the consultant management services to assist the City during 

the environmental phase to provide project management for the City. 

3. Authorizes the City Manager to execute a funding agreement with the San Mateo 

County Transportation Authority to encumber any Measure A Highway Program 

funds awarded. 

4. Let it be known the City of Menlo Park commits to the completion of the project 
scope if awarded the requested San Mateo County Measure A Highway Program 
funds 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Menlo 
Park, California, held on the twelfth day of June, 2012 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City, this twelfth day of June, 2012. 

 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

 

47



ATTACHMENT B 

RESOLUTION NO.  

ADOPT A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE SAND HILL ROAD 
SIGNAL INTERCONNECT PROJECT AND SUBMITTING AN 
APPLICATION FOR MEASURE A HIGHWAY PROGRAM FUNDING 
FOR THE SAND HILL ROAD SIGNAL INTERCONNECT PROJECT AND 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE FUNDING 
AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, there is increased congestion along Sand Hill Road; and 

WHEREAS, there is a proposed City Capital Improvement project to address the issue; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, it will cost $1,300,000 to design and construct the project; and 

WHEREAS, the City wishes to sponsor the implementation of the design and 
construction phases of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City seeks $1,300,000 for design and construction phases of the 
project; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 7, 1988, the voters of San Mateo County approved a ballot 
measure to allow the collection and distribution by the San Mateo County 
Transportation Authority (TA) of a half-cent transactions and use tax in San Mateo 
County for 25 years, with the tax revenues to be used for highway and transit 
improvements pursuant to the Transportation Expenditure Plan presented to the voters 
(Original Measure A); and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 2, 2004, the voters of San Mateo County approved the 
continuation of the collection and distribution by the TA the half-cent transactions and 
use tax for an additional 25 years to implement the 2004 Transportation Expenditure 
Plan beginning January 1, 2009 (New Measure A); and  
 
WHEREAS, TA issued a Call for Projects for the Measure A Highway Program funds on 
May 24, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, TA requires a governing board resolution from the City in support of the 
City’s application for $1,000,000 in San Mateo County Measure A Highway Program 
funds for the design and construction phases of the project; and 
 
WHEREAS, TA requires a governing board resolution from the City committing the City 
to the completion of the project scope. 
 

48



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 

resolves as follows: 

1. Fully supports the project and the goal to decrease congestion and delay along the 

Sand Hill Road corridor. 

2. Directs staff to submit an application for San Mateo County Measure A Highway for 

$1,300,000 for providing the design and construction of the Sand Hill Road signal 

interconnect project  for the City. 

3. Authorizes the City Manager to execute a funding agreement with the San Mateo 

County Transportation Authority to encumber any Measure A Highway Program 

funds awarded. 

4. Let it be known the City of Menlo Park commits to the completion of the project 

scope if awarded the requested San Mateo County Measure A Highway Program 

funds 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Menlo 
Park, California, held on the twelfth day of June, 2012 by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City, this twelfth day of June, 2012. 

 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 

49



50



C’
)

Q
)

C
o CD as” 0
•

Lb i3-

51



  

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-098 

 
Agenda Item #: D-6 

 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR: Waive the Reading and Adopt an Ordinance Amending 

Title 16 of the Menlo Park Municipal Code to Incorporate 
the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, and 
Ordinances Rezoning Properties Located in the El 
Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Area 

  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council waive the full reading of and adopt an 
ordinance amending Title 16 of the Menlo Park Municipal Code to incorporate the El 
Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan and make associated text revisions, and 
ordinances rezoning properties located in the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 
Area. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At the June 5, 2012 City Council meeting, the Council acted or voted to approve the El 
Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan by taking the following actions: 
 

1. Certification of the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR), adoption of the 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), and making the Findings 
and adopting the Statement of Overriding Considerations for the El Camino 
Real/Downtown Specific Plan. 

2. Amending the General Plan to Add the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 
Land Use Designation and to Change the Land Use Designation for Properties 
Located in the Specific Plan Area. 

3. Approving and Adopting the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan. 
4. Introducing an Ordinance of the City of Menlo Park, Amending Title 16 of the 

Menlo Park Municipal Code to Incorporate the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan and make associated text revisions. 

5. Introducing an Ordinance of the City of Menlo Park, Rezoning Properties 
Located in the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Area. 

6. Amending the City's Master Fee Schedule to Incorporate Proposed Changes in 
Fees to Become Effective August 5, 2012. 

 
 

52



Actions #2, 3, and 5 were segmented geographically in order to address conflicts-of-
interest for Vice Mayor Ohtaki and Council Member Fergusson, who also fully recused 
themselves from Action #1. With the exception of Action #1 (passed 2-0-1, with Council 
Member Cohen abstaining), all votes were unanimous. 
 
As indicated in Actions #4 and 5, the City Council introduced ordinances, which require 
both a first and second reading. As a result, these actions are before the City Council 
again for the second reading and approval. As part of the June 5 actions, the City 
Council also directed changes to the Specific Plan and its implementation. The 
preliminary wording of these changes is included as Attachment C for reference, 
although these modifications do not affect the ordinances.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The ordinance amending Title 16 of the Menlo Park Municipal Code to incorporate the 
El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan and make associated text revisions is included 
as Attachment A. All Council Members may act on this component. 
 
The ordinances rezoning properties located in the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan Area are segmented geographically and are included as Attachments B.1 through 
B.3. However, it is not required that this agenda item be pulled in order to conduct 
separate votes. Before any action, Vice Mayor Ohtaki and Council Member Fergusson 
should verbally state their conflicts-of-interest and note that they are not acting on the 
conflicted parts of the rezoning ordinances.  
 
If the Council takes action to adopt the ordinances, they will become effective 30 days 
later, or on July 12, 2012. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
There is no direct impact on City resources associated with adoption of these 
ordinances. The overall project’s impact on City resources was discussed in detail in 
the June 5, 2012 staff report. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommended action is consistent with the City Council’s actions and approvals at 
its meeting of June 5, 2012 and would serve to complete the approval of the El Camino 
Real/Downtown Specific Plan.  
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
On June 5, 2012, the City Council made a motion to certify the Final Environmental 
Impact Report (EIR), adopt the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), 
and make the Findings and adopt the Statement of Overriding Considerations for the El 
Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan. 

53



Staff Report #12-098 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
__________________________________ 
Thomas Rogers 
Associate Planner 
 

 
 
__________________________________ 
Arlinda Heineck 
Community Development Department 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
Public notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being 
listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. In addition to the agenda posting, an email 
update was sent to subscribers of the project page, which is available at the following 
address: http://www.menlopark.org/specificplan. This page provides up-to-date 
information about the project, allowing interested parties to stay informed of its 
progress. The page allows users to sign up for automatic email bulletins, notifying them 
when content is updated and meetings are scheduled. The project list currently has 975 
subscribers. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Ordinance of the City of Menlo Park, Amending Title 16 of the Menlo Park Municipal 

Code to Incorporate the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 
B. Ordinances of the City of Menlo Park, Rezoning Properties Located in the El 

Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan Area 
1. Applicable to All Specific Plan Districts Except El Camino Real South-East 

and South-West 
2. Applicable to the El Camino Real South-East District 
3. Applicable to the El Camino Real South-West District 

C. Specific Plan/Implementation Changes Made by City Council at the June 5, 2012 
Meeting 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54

http://www.menlopark.org/specificplan�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133012/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BA%2B-%2BZOA__133012.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133012/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BA%2B-%2BZOA__133012.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133015/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BB.1%2B-%2BREZ%2B-%2BNon-ECR%2BSE-SW%2B-%2BEx%2BA__133015.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133015/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BB.1%2B-%2BREZ%2B-%2BNon-ECR%2BSE-SW%2B-%2BEx%2BA__133015.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133016/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BB.2%2B-%2BREZ%2B-%2BECR%2BSE%2B-%2BEx%2BA__133016.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133017/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BB.3%2B-%2BREZ%2B-%2BECR%2BSW__133017.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133019/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BC%2B-%2BCC%2B6-5%2Bchanges__133019.pdf�
http://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/topic_files/CAMENLO/CAMENLO_97/2012/06/07/file_attachments/133019/061212%2B-%2BECR-D%2BSpecific%2BPlan%2B-%2BATT%2BC%2B-%2BCC%2B6-5%2Bchanges__133019.pdf�


ATTACHMENT A 

 

EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 12, 2012 

 
ORDINANCE NO. ___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK, AMENDING TITLE 
16 OF THE MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL CODE TO INCORPORATE THE 
EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
 
The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does ordain as follows: 

 
 

SECTION 1.  The following section of Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.04, 
Definitions, of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
16.04.010  Generally.  For the purposes of this chapter certain terms are defined.  
Where terms are defined in a specific zoning district, they shall be applied accordingly.  
Words used in the present tense include the future; words used in the singular include 
the plural; "shall" is mandatory, "may" is permissive. Definitions of the terms used in this 
title are set forth as follows; provided, however, that terms not specifically defined in this 
chapter shall be as defined in the code. 
 

SECTION 2.  Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.08, Districts Established-General 
Regulations, Section 16.08.010 Districts Established – Designated, of the Menlo Park 
Municipal Code is hereby amended to add “SP-ECR/D El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan” at the end of the list and delete the following: 
 

R-C Mixed Use District 
C-1-B Administrative, Professional and Service District 
C-3 Central Commercial District 

 
SECTION 3.  The following sections of Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.08, Districts 

Established-General Regulations, of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby amended 
to read as follows: 
 
16.08.080  Home occupations.  Home occupations, as defined in Section 16.04.340, 
may be permitted in residential districts and in residences within the SP-ECR/D district, 
provided a permit is obtained from the department of community development.  Such 
permits shall be valid for a period of one year, shall be subject to the conditions 
contained therein and shall be subject to the payment of a fee, as established by the 
city council. 
 
16.08.095  Roof-mounted equipment.  Mechanical equipment, such as air 
conditioning equipment, ventilation fans, vents, ducting, or similar equipment may be 
placed on the roof of a building provided that such equipment shall be screened from 

55



 

 

view as observed at an eye level horizontal to the top of the roof-mounted equipment, 
except for the SP-ECR/D District which has unique screening requirements, and all 
sounds emitted by such equipment shall not exceed 50 decibels at a distance of 50 feet 
from such equipment. 
 

SECTION 4.  Title 16, Zoning, of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to delete the following chapters in their entirety: 

 
Chapter 16.27 R-C Mixed Use District 
Chapter 16.34 C-1-B Administrative, Professional, and Service District 
Chapter 16.41 C-3 Central Commercial District 

 
SECTION 5.  Title 16, Zoning, of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby 
amended to renumber Chapter 16.58 Lots, inclusive of all subsections, to 
Chapter 16.59. 

 
SECTION 6.  Title 16, Zoning, of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby 

amended to add the following chapter: 
 

Chapter 16.58 
 

SP-ECR/D EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
 
Sections: 
16.57.010  Purpose 
16.57.020  El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan  
 
16.57.010  Purpose.  The purpose and intent of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan District is to preserve and enhance community life, character and vitality though 
public space improvements, mixed use infill projects sensitive to the small-town 
character of Menlo Park and improved connectivity. 
 
16.57.020  El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan.  Uses, development regulations, 
guidelines, definitions, off-street parking requirements, and other parameters for public 
and private development are established through the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan. All modifications to this Ordinance or to the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan require review and recommendation by the Planning Commission and 
review and approval by the City Council through public hearings in accordance with 
Chapter 16.88 and applicable law. 
 

SECTION 7.  The following section of Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.68, Buildings, 
of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
16.68.020  Architectural control.  When an application is made for a building permit 
for the construction, alteration or remodeling of any building other than a single family 
dwelling, duplex and accessory building, or for any structure, dwelling or duplex on land 

56



 

 

designated as a historic landmark site, it shall be accompanied by architectural 
drawings showing elevations of the proposed building or structure, proposed 
landscaping or other treatment of the grounds around such building or structure, and 
proposed design of, and access to, required parking facilities.  Such drawings shall be 
considered by the planning commission, architectural committee, or community 
development director which shall approve said application if the following findings are 
made:  
(1) That the general appearance of the structures is in keeping with character of the 

neighborhood;  
(2) That the development will not be detrimental to the harmonious and orderly 

growth of the city;  
(3) That the development will not impair the desirability of investment or occupation 

in the neighborhood;  
(4) That the development provides adequate parking as required in all applicable city 

ordinances and has made adequate provisions for access to such parking.  
(5) That the development is consistent with any applicable Specific Plan. 
 
The community development director shall be limited to approving minor modifications 
to buildings located in the M-2 General Industrial District.  For purposes of this Section, 
a minor modification is considered one in which there is no increase in gross floor area. 
 
Each request to alter a site or area and each application for a building permit to do work 
on a historic landmark site shall include plans and specifications showing the proposed 
landscaping or planting changes, exterior appearance, color and texture of materials, 
and architectural design and detail; drawings or photographs showing the property or 
site in the context of its surroundings may also be required.  The application shall be 
considered by the planning commission or architectural committee which shall approve 
said application if the following findings are made:  
 
(1) That the proposed work is appropriate to and consistent with the purposes of 

Chapter 16.54, historic landmark site district;  
(2) That the proposed work will preserve, enhance or restore, and shall not damage 

or destroy (a) the exterior architectural features of the landmark, and (b) the 
major interior architectural features of a publicly owned landmark.  

 
No building permit shall be issued in any case herein above mentioned until such 
findings have been made by the planning commission. All buildings, structures, 
alterations and other improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved drawings. 
 

SECTION 8.  The following sections of Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.72, Off-
Street Parking, of the Menlo Park Municipal Code are hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
Sections: 

16.72.010  Requirements generally. 
16.72.020  R district uses. 

57



 

 

16.72.030  Professional district uses. 
16.72.040  C-2, C-2-A, C-2-B, C-3 and C-4 districts. 
16.72.045  M-1 district uses. 
16.72.050  M-2 district uses. 
16.72.060  Public utility facilities. 
16.72.080  Other uses. 
 

16.72.030  Professional district uses.  Professional district uses are as follows:  
(1) C-1,  and C-1-A, and C-1-B  districts: One space per two hundred square feet of 

gross floor area, not in any required yard abutting a street; 
(2) C-1-C district: One space per two hundred fifty square feet of gross floor area, 

not in any required yard abutting a street and not in the exterior one-half of any 
required yard or loading area. 

 
16.72.040  C-2, C-2-A, C-2-B, C-3 and C-4 district uses.  C-2, C-2-A, C-2-B, C-3 and 
C-4 district uses are as follows: six spaces per one thousand square feet of gross floor 
area, not in any required yard or loading area. 
 

SECTION 9.  Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.80, Nonconforming Uses and 
Structures, Sections of the Menlo Park Municipal Code is hereby amended to add 
“16.80.120  Exemption from El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan”. 

 
SECTION 10.  Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.80, Nonconforming Uses and 

Structures, Section 16.80.045 Replacement is amended to read as follows: 
 

16.80.045  Replacement.  The same number of units may replace existing legal 
nonconforming residential units that are removed or demolished for new development, 
in the R-2, R-3, R-3-A,  and R-3-C, and R-C zoning districts, provided the new 
development is done in accordance with applicable zoning development regulations, 
building codes and a use permit is obtained therefore.  Existing, nonconforming parking 
conditions may continue to exist if approved by the use permit. 
 

SECTION 11.  Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.80, Nonconforming Uses and 
Structures, is amended to add the following new section. 
 
16.80.120  Exemption from the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan in the SP-
ECR/D district. 
 
(a) All buildings in existence or approved within the SP-ECR/D district as of the date 

of adoption of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan, on _________, shall 
be exempt from the development standards of El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan. 

(b) No building exempt under subsection (a) of this section shall be subject to 
amortization by reason of a building that is nonconforming due to the 
development standards of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan specified 
in subsection (a) of this section. 

58



 

 

(c) Any building exempt under subsection (a) of this section may be restored to its 
condition at the time of destruction if the building or office use is destroyed by 
fire, explosion, or other catastrophe, but such restoration shall comply with: 
(1) The building codes in effect at the time of restoration; and  
(2) The requirements of Section 16.80.040 with respect to nonconformities 

other than a nonconformity created as a result of the development 
standards of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan specified in 
subsection (a) of this section. 

(d) Any building which is exempt under subsection (a) of this section may undergo 
removal on one or more occasions following said date of adoption of a 
cumulative total of not more than 50% of the gross floor area and the 
replacement of part or all of the portions removed.  The exemption shall 
terminate upon the removal or replacement on one or more occasions of a 
cumulative total of more than 50% of the gross floor area of the building. 

(e) Except as provided in this subsection, any building exempt under subsection (a) 
of this section may undergo interior and/or exterior improvements to the building 
if there is no increase in the gross floor area. 

(f) Properties within the SP-ECR/D district that are regulated by a Use Permit, 
Conditional Development Permit (CDP), or Planned Development (P-D) Permit 
as of the date of adoption of the El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan on 
_____, shall continue to be regulated by said permit(s). Such permit(s) shall 
lapse upon comprehensive redevelopment of the property, or property owners 
may apply to modify or cancel said permit(s) in accordance with the requirements 
of this title. 

 
 

SECTION 12.  The following sections of Title 16, Zoning, Chapter 16.82, Permits, 
of the Menlo Park Municipal Code are hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

II. CONDITIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERMITS 
 
16.82.055  Applicability.  A Conditional Development Permit shall apply to the 
following: 
 
(a) Development on a parcel in excess of one acre in area; or  
(b) Development on a parcel with a lot area that is less than one acre in area but 

greater than or equal to 20,000 square feet in area, provided that the 
development complies with the Below Market Rate (BMR) Housing Program set 
forth in Section 16.96 and that the number of BMR units developed on the site 
exceeds the required number of BMR units by a fractional equivalent of more 
than one-half (0.5) of a unit. 

 
Conditional development permits shall not apply to any parcel in the SP-ECR/D district. 
 

VI. VARIANCES 
 

59



 

 

16.82.340  Purpose of the variance and required findings. 
 
(a) Purpose.  The purpose of the variance is to allow variation from the strict 

application of the terms of this title where, by reason of the exceptional 
narrowness, shallowness or unusual shape of a specific piece of property, or by 
reason of exceptional topographic conditions or other extraordinary situation or 
condition of such piece of property, or by reason of the use or development of 
property immediately adjoining the piece of property in question, the literal 
enforcement of the requirements of this title would cause undue hardship 
unnecessary to carry out the spirit and purpose of this title.  In no case shall a 
variance be granted to permit a use other than a use permitted in the district 
involved or to permit relief in excess of fifty percent of any requirement of this 
title. In the SP-ECR/D district, in no case shall a variance be granted to exceed 
the intensity (Floor Area Ratio) or density (dwelling units per acre) standards. 

(b) Findings.  The planning commission shall grant a variance only when all of the 
following conditions are found: 
(1) That a hardship peculiar to the property and not created by any act of the 

owner exists.  In this context, personal, family or financial difficulties, loss 
of prospective profits and neighboring violations are not hardships 
justifying a variance. Further, a previous variance can never have set a 
precedent, for each case must be considered only on its individual merits;  

(2) That such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of 
substantial property rights possessed by other conforming property in the 
same vicinity and that a variance, if granted, would not constitute a special 
privilege of the recipient not enjoyed by his/her neighbors;  

(3) That the granting of the variance will not be materially detrimental to the 
public health, safety, or welfare, or will not impair an adequate supply of 
light and air to adjacent property;  

(4) That the conditions upon which the requested variance is based would not 
be applicable, generally, to other property within the same zoning 
classification. 

(5) That the condition upon which the requested variance is based is an 
unusual factor that was not anticipated or discussed in detail during any 
applicable Specific Plan process. 

 
SECTION 13.  Projects which have submitted a complete application for a 

discretionary land use entitlement or building permit prior to (approved date of 
ordinance amendment), 2012 shall be exempt from the provisions of this ordinance, 
provided the project obtains a use permit or building permit within one year from such 
date, or such further extended date approved by the Planning Commission. The 
Planning Commission may extend the effective date of this exemption upon the request 
of the applicant, if the Planning Commission finds that there is good cause for the 
extension of such one-year period based upon unusual circumstance and/or conditions 
not of the making of the applicant or its agents or employees. 

 

60



 

 

SECTION 14.  If any part of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or inapplicable to 
any situation by a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or the applicability of this Ordinance 
to other situations. 
 

SECTION 15.  This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the 
date of its adoption.  Within fifteen (15) days of its adoption, the ordinance shall be 
posted in three (3) public places within the City of Menlo Park, and the ordinance, or a 
summary of the ordinance prepared by the City Attorney, shall be published in a local 
newspaper used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park prior to the 
effective date. 
 
INTRODUCED on the fifth day of June, 2012. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular 
meeting of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on the __ day of ______, 2012, by 
the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________ 
Kirsten Keith 
Mayor, City of Menlo Park 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________ 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

61



ATTACHMENT B.1 
 

EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 12, 2012 

 
ORDINANCE NO.___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK, REZONING PROPERTIES 
LOCATED IN THE EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN AREA 
(APPLICABLE TO ALL SPECIFIC PLAN DISTRICTS EXCEPT EL CAMINO REAL 
SOUTH-EAST AND SOUTH-WEST) 
 
The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does ordain as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The zoning map of the City of Menlo Park is hereby amended such 
that certain real property currently zoned/described as: all C-3; all C-1-B, all R-C, all P 
located between Oak Grove Avenue, Menlo Avenue, University Drive and El Camino 
Real; all R-3-C fronting on Menlo Avenue, several R-3 parcels either fronting on El 
Camino Real or that adjoin El-Camino-Real-fronting parcels between 
Menlo/Ravenswood Avenue and the northern boundary of the City of Menlo Park; the 
C-1-A parcels located at 530 Oak Grove Avenue (061-402-160) and 1600 El Camino 
Real (060-344-260); and all C-4 (ECR) and P-D located along El Camino Real, between 
Menlo/Ravenswood Avenue and the northern boundary of the City of Menlo Park, and 
more particularly described in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” are rezoned to SP-ECR/D (El 
Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan). 
 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date 
of its adoption.  Within fifteen (15) days of its adoption, the ordinance shall be posted in 
three (3) public places within the City of Menlo Park, and the ordinance, or a summary 
of the ordinance prepared by the City Attorney, shall be published in a local newspaper 
used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park prior to the effective date. 
 
INTRODUCED on the fifth day of June, 2012. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular 
meeting of said Council on the ___ day of _____, 2012, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
  

62



APPROVED: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kirsten Keith 
Mayor, City of Menlo Park 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
___________________________ 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

63



USGS

 NEALON PARK

CIVIC CENTER

BURGESS PARK

CA
LT

RA
IN

 C
OR

RI
DO

R

JACK W.
LYLE
PARK

R3

HILLVIEW
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

AL
MA

 S
T

LA
UR

EL
 ST

EL
 C

AM
IN

O 
RE

AL
  

MIDDLE AVE

SA
N 

MA
TE

O 
DR

SANTA CRUZ AVE

EL
EN

A A
VE

VALPARAISO AVE

PARK LN

OAK GROVE AVE

YA
LE

 R
D

ISABELLA AVE

COLLEGE AVE

WILLOW RD

CREEK DR

ENCINAL AVE

WATKINS AVE

CAMBRIDGE AVE

ROBLE AVE

EM
ILI

E A
VE

CR
AN

E S
T

FR
EM

ON
T S

T

WI
ND

SO
R 

DR

ARBOR RD

GLENWOOD AVE

ALEJANDRA AVE

SANDHILL RD

LINFIELD DR

WALLEA DR

LIVE OAK AVE

PIN
E 

ST

JO
HN

SO
N 

ST

AL
TO

 LN

RAVENSWOOD AVE

MI
LL

S 
ST

HARVARD AVE

FELTON DR

ARDEN RD

PARTRIDGE AVE

BURGESS DR

GA
RW

OO
D 

WA
Y

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

AL
MA

 LN

PR
IN

CE
TO

N 
RD

LENNOX AVE

NOEL DR

HO
OV

ER
 ST

ME
RR

ILL
 S

T

VIC
TO

RI
A D

R

EV
EL

YN
 S

T

SPRUCE AVE

OAK LN

STONE PINE LN

SA
N A

NT
ON

IO
 S

T

CL
AIR

E 
PL

CO
RI

NN
E 

RD

FLORENCE LN

LEON WY

WAVERLEY ST

MAC BAIN AVE

CO
RN

EL
L R

D

BAY LAUREL DR

ALICE LN

ROSE AVE

MO
UL

TO
N 

DR

WERTH AVE

MILLIE AVE

DOUGLAS WY

BRITTON AVE

PRIVATE ST  

BUCKTHORN WAY

SA
NT

A R
ITA

 AV
E

MO
RE

Y 
DR

NEALON PARK  

CLAREMONT WAY

HOPKINS ST

MI
LL

S 
CT

MENLO AVE

SHERWOOD WAY

LE
E 

DR

HE
RM

OS
A W

AY

DO
YL

E S
T

BL
AK

E 
ST

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

MA
LO

NE
Y L

N

MA
Y 

BR
OW

N 
AV

E

CU
RT

IS
 S

T

BA
RR

ON
 ST

LA
UREL

 PL

DERRY LN

MI
CH

AE
LS

 W
Y

JO
HN

SO
N 

LN

KENT PL

WILLOW PL

EL
 C

AM
IN

O 
RE

AL
 

CH
ES

TN
UT

 ST

SAXON WAY

FOREST LN

RYAN'S LN

CHERRY AVE

TUDOR DR

CASTLE WAY

MALLET CT

GARDEN LN

WINDSOR WAY

ELIZABETH LN
CH

AT
EA

U 
DR

REYNA PL

CHESTNUT LN

FREMONT PL

VE
RS

AIL
LE

S 
DR

CHERYL PL

CU
RT

IS
 W

AY

BASSETT LN

OAK GROVE PLAZA  

LIN
FIE

LD
 P

L

PATRICIA PL

SUSSEX PL

CRANE WAY

MA
NO

R 
PL

HELEN PL

BOLTON PL

AR
BO

R 
RD

MENLO AVE

AL
TO

 LN

BL
AK

E 
ST

ROBLE AVE

ALMA ST

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

AR
BO

R 
RD

SHERWOOD WAY

WA
VE

RL
EY

 ST

BAY LAUREL DR

CREEK DR

CR
AN

E S
T

CU
RT

IS
 S

T

0 500 1,000
Feet

¢

Legend
Non-ECR SE/SW
Other Parcels
City Limits

REZONING:
to SP-ECR/D El Camino
Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan Zoning District
(Non-ECR SE/SW)

Attachment B.1 - Exhibit A

64



ATTACHMENT B.1 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Rezoning – El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 

Parcels as Described by APN in City Database, April 2012 (Non-ECR SE/SW) 
 

 

060333140 
060333150 
060333160 
060341110 
060341130 
060341140 
060341280 
060341290 
060343030 
060343040 
060343070 
060343080 
060343790 
060343800 
060344240 
060344250 
060344260 
060344270 
061402160 
061412160 
061412400 
061412430 
061412440 
061412450 
061421040 
061422070 
061422090 
061422100 
061422190 
061422200 
061422230 
061422240 
061422330 
061422350 
061422370 
061422380 
061422390 
061422400 
061422410 
061422420 
061422430 
061422440 
061422450 
061422460 
061422470 
061430070 
061430080 
061430140 
061430180 
061430200 
061430210 

061430220 
061430230 
061430310 
061430320 
061430340 
061430380 
061430420 
061430430 
061430440 
061430450 
061430460 
061430470 
061430480 
061441030 
061441040 
061441050 
061441090 
061441100 
061441140 
061441150 
061441160 
061441999 
061442330 
061442380 
061442400 
071084090 
071084100 
071084110 
071084140 
071084150 
071084200 
071084220 
071091240 
071091250 
071091310 
071091470 
071091510 
071091520 
071092010 
071092040 
071092050 
071092080 
071092110 
071092160 
071092170 
071092180 
071092190 
071092200 
071092230 
071092250 
071092270 

071092280 
071092290 
071092300 
071092310 
071092320 
071094050 
071094060 
071094080 
071094090 
071094100 
071094110 
071094120 
071094130 
071094150 
071094160 
071094170 
071094180 
071094190 
071101230 
071101240 
071101260 
071101270 
071102020 
071102040 
071102060 
071102070 
071102090 
071102100 
071102130 
071102140 
071102150 
071102160 
071102170 
071102180 
071102220 
071102230 
071102240 
071102250 
071102270 
071102300 
071102310 
071102320 
071102330 
071102350 
071102370 
071102380 
071102390 
071102400 
071102410 
071103020 
071103030 

071103040 
071103050 
071103060 
071103070 
071103080 
071103090 
071103100 
071103160 
071103170 
071103180 
071103440 
071103460 
071103490 
071103500 
071273010 
071273020 
071273030 
071273040 
071273050 
071273070 
071273160 
071273200 
071273210 
071274030 
071274040 
071274140 
071281010 
071281020 
071281030 
071281040 
071281050 
071281150 
071281160 
071281170 
071282040 
071282170 
071283010 
071283020 
071283030 
071283040 
071283050 
071283130 
071283140 
071283150 
071284010 
071284020 
071284030 
071284040 
071284050 
071284080 
071284100 

071284110 
071285010 
071285020 
071285030 
071285110 
071285120 
071285130 
071285140 
071285150 
071285160 
071286040 
071286050 
071286060 
071286080 
071287010 
071287020 
071287030 
071287060 
071287070 
071287080 
071287090 
071288010 
071288040 
071288050 
071288110 
071288120 
071288130 
071288160 
071288170 
071288180 
071288520 
071288530 
071288540 
071288600 
071288610 
071501010 
071501020 
071501030 
071501999 
111920010 
111920020 
111920030 
111920040 
111920050 
111920060 
111920070 
111920080 
111920090 
111920100 
111920110 
111920120 

111920999 
112170999 
112510010 
112510020 
112510030 
112510040 
112510050 
112510060 
112510999 
113010999 
113540999 
113730010 
114040010 
114040020 
114040999 
114090260 
114090270 
114090998 
114090999 
114320999 
114360999 
114380999 
 

65



ATTACHMENT B.2 

EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 12, 2012 

 
ORDINANCE NO.___  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK, REZONING PROPERTIES 
LOCATED IN THE EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN AREA 
(APPLICABLE TO EL CAMINO REAL SOUTH-EAST DISTRICT) 
 
The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does ordain as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The zoning map of the City of Menlo Park is hereby amended such 
that certain real property currently zoned/described as: all C-4 (ECR) and all P-D 
located along the eastern side of El Camino Real between Ravenswood Avenue and 
the southern boundary of the City of Menlo Park, and more particularly described in 
Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” are rezoned to SP-ECR/D (El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan). 
 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date 
of its adoption.  Within fifteen (15) days of its adoption, the ordinance shall be posted in 
three (3) public places within the City of Menlo Park, and the ordinance, or a summary 
of the ordinance prepared by the City Attorney, shall be published in a local newspaper 
used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park prior to the effective date. 
 
INTRODUCED on the fifth day of June, 2012. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular 
meeting of said Council on the ___ day of _____, 2012, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kirsten Keith 
Mayor, City of Menlo Park 
 
 

  

66



ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

67



USGS

 NEALON PARK

CIVIC CENTER

BURGESS PARK

CA
LT

RA
IN

 C
OR

RI
DO

R

JACK W.
LYLE
PARK

R3

HILLVIEW
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

AL
MA

 S
T

LA
UR

EL
 ST

EL
 C

AM
IN

O 
RE

AL
  

MIDDLE AVE

SA
N 

MA
TE

O 
DR

SANTA CRUZ AVE

EL
EN

A A
VE

VALPARAISO AVE

PARK LN

OAK GROVE AVE

YA
LE

 R
D

ISABELLA AVE

COLLEGE AVE

WILLOW RD

CREEK DR

ENCINAL AVE

WATKINS AVE

CAMBRIDGE AVE

ROBLE AVE

EM
ILI

E A
VE

CR
AN

E S
T

FR
EM

ON
T S

T

WI
ND

SO
R 

DR

ARBOR RD

GLENWOOD AVE

ALEJANDRA AVE

SANDHILL RD

LINFIELD DR

WALLEA DR

LIVE OAK AVE

PIN
E 

ST

JO
HN

SO
N 

ST

AL
TO

 LN

RAVENSWOOD AVE

MI
LL

S 
ST

HARVARD AVE

FELTON DR

ARDEN RD

PARTRIDGE AVE

BURGESS DR

GA
RW

OO
D 

WA
Y

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

AL
MA

 LN

PR
IN

CE
TO

N 
RD

LENNOX AVE

NOEL DR

HO
OV

ER
 ST

ME
RR

ILL
 S

T

VIC
TO

RI
A D

R

EV
EL

YN
 S

T

SPRUCE AVE

OAK LN

STONE PINE LN

SA
N A

NT
ON

IO
 S

T

CL
AIR

E 
PL

CO
RI

NN
E 

RD

FLORENCE LN

LEON WY

WAVERLEY ST

MAC BAIN AVE

CO
RN

EL
L R

D

BAY LAUREL DR

ALICE LN

ROSE AVE

MO
UL

TO
N 

DR

WERTH AVE

MILLIE AVE

DOUGLAS WY

BRITTON AVE

PRIVATE ST  

BUCKTHORN WAY

SA
NT

A R
ITA

 AV
E

MO
RE

Y 
DR

NEALON PARK  

CLAREMONT WAY

HOPKINS ST

MI
LL

S 
CT

MENLO AVE

SHERWOOD WAY

LE
E 

DR

HE
RM

OS
A W

AY

DO
YL

E S
T

BL
AK

E 
ST

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

MA
LO

NE
Y L

N

MA
Y 

BR
OW

N 
AV

E

CU
RT

IS
 S

T

BA
RR

ON
 ST

LA
UREL

 PL

DERRY LN

MI
CH

AE
LS

 W
Y

JO
HN

SO
N 

LN

KENT PL

WILLOW PL

EL
 C

AM
IN

O 
RE

AL
 

CH
ES

TN
UT

 ST

SAXON WAY

FOREST LN

RYAN'S LN

CHERRY AVE

TUDOR DR

CASTLE WAY

MALLET CT

GARDEN LN

WINDSOR WAY

ELIZABETH LN
CH

AT
EA

U 
DR

REYNA PL

CHESTNUT LN

FREMONT PL

VE
RS

AIL
LE

S 
DR

CHERYL PL

CU
RT

IS
 W

AY

BASSETT LN

OAK GROVE PLAZA  

LIN
FIE

LD
 P

L

PATRICIA PL

SUSSEX PL

CRANE WAY

MA
NO

R 
PL

HELEN PL

BOLTON PL

AR
BO

R 
RD

MENLO AVE

AL
TO

 LN

BL
AK

E 
ST

ROBLE AVE

ALMA ST

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

AR
BO

R 
RD

SHERWOOD WAY

WA
VE

RL
EY

 ST

BAY LAUREL DR

CREEK DR

CR
AN

E S
T

CU
RT

IS
 S

T

0 500 1,000
Feet

¢

Legend
ECR SE
Other Parcels
City Limits

REZONING:
to SP-ECR/D El Camino
Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan Zoning District
(ECR SE)

Attachment B.2 - Exhibit A

68



ATTACHMENT B.2 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Rezoning – El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 

Parcels as Described by APN in City Database, April 2012 (ECR SE) 
 

 

061443010 
071333190 
071333200 
071440030 
071440040 
071440050 
071440060 
071440110 
071440120 
071440130 

 

69



ATTACHMENT B.3 
 

EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
CITY COUNCIL 
JUNE 12, 2012 

 
ORDINANCE NO.___ 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK, REZONING PROPERTIES 
LOCATED IN THE EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN AREA 
(APPLICABLE TO EL CAMINO REAL SOUTH-WEST DISTRICT) 
 
The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does ordain as follows: 
 

SECTION 1.  The zoning map of the City of Menlo Park is hereby amended such 
that certain real property currently zoned/described as: all C-4 (ECR), all C-4-X (ECR), 
several R-3, R-3-A, and R-3-C parcels that adjoin either El-Camino-Real-fronting 
parcels or Alto Lane located along the western side of El Camino Real between Menlo 
Avenue and the southern boundary of the City of Menlo Park, and more particularly 
described in Exhibit “A” and Exhibit “B” are rezoned to SP-ECR/D (El Camino 
Real/Downtown Specific Plan). 
 

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) days after the date 
of its adoption.  Within fifteen (15) days of its adoption, the ordinance shall be posted in 
three (3) public places within the City of Menlo Park, and the ordinance, or a summary 
of the ordinance prepared by the City Attorney, shall be published in a local newspaper 
used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park prior to the effective date. 
 
INTRODUCED on the fifth day of June, 2012. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular 
meeting of said Council on the ___ day of _____, 2012, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kirsten Keith 
Mayor, City of Menlo Park 
 
  

70



ATTEST: 

 
 
___________________________ 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

71



USGS

 NEALON PARK

CIVIC CENTER

BURGESS PARK

CA
LT

RA
IN

 C
OR

RI
DO

R

JACK W.
LYLE
PARK

R3

HILLVIEW
ELEMENTARY

SCHOOL

AL
MA

 S
T

LA
UR

EL
 ST

EL
 C

AM
IN

O 
RE

AL
  

MIDDLE AVE

SA
N 

MA
TE

O 
DR

SANTA CRUZ AVE

EL
EN

A A
VE

VALPARAISO AVE

PARK LN

OAK GROVE AVE

YA
LE

 R
D

ISABELLA AVE

COLLEGE AVE

WILLOW RD

CREEK DR

ENCINAL AVE

WATKINS AVE

CAMBRIDGE AVE

ROBLE AVE

EM
ILI

E A
VE

CR
AN

E S
T

FR
EM

ON
T S

T

WI
ND

SO
R 

DR

ARBOR RD

GLENWOOD AVE

ALEJANDRA AVE

SANDHILL RD

LINFIELD DR

WALLEA DR

LIVE OAK AVE

PIN
E 

ST

JO
HN

SO
N 

ST

AL
TO

 LN

RAVENSWOOD AVE

MI
LL

S 
ST

HARVARD AVE

FELTON DR

ARDEN RD

PARTRIDGE AVE

BURGESS DR

GA
RW

OO
D 

WA
Y

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

AL
MA

 LN

PR
IN

CE
TO

N 
RD

LENNOX AVE

NOEL DR

HO
OV

ER
 ST

ME
RR

ILL
 S

T

VIC
TO

RI
A D

R

EV
EL

YN
 S

T

SPRUCE AVE

OAK LN

STONE PINE LN

SA
N A

NT
ON

IO
 S

T

CL
AIR

E 
PL

CO
RI

NN
E 

RD

FLORENCE LN

LEON WY

WAVERLEY ST

MAC BAIN AVE

CO
RN

EL
L R

D

BAY LAUREL DR

ALICE LN

ROSE AVE

MO
UL

TO
N 

DR

WERTH AVE

MILLIE AVE

DOUGLAS WY

BRITTON AVE

PRIVATE ST  

BUCKTHORN WAY

SA
NT

A R
ITA

 AV
E

MO
RE

Y 
DR

NEALON PARK  

CLAREMONT WAY

HOPKINS ST

MI
LL

S 
CT

MENLO AVE

SHERWOOD WAY

LE
E 

DR

HE
RM

OS
A W

AY

DO
YL

E S
T

BL
AK

E 
ST

KE
NW

OO
D 

DR

MA
LO

NE
Y L

N

MA
Y 

BR
OW

N 
AV

E

CU
RT

IS
 S

T

BA
RR

ON
 ST

LA
UREL

 PL

DERRY LN

MI
CH

AE
LS

 W
Y

JO
HN

SO
N 

LN

KENT PL

WILLOW PL

EL
 C

AM
IN

O 
RE

AL
 

CH
ES

TN
UT

 ST

SAXON WAY

FOREST LN

RYAN'S LN

CHERRY AVE

TUDOR DR

CASTLE WAY

MALLET CT

GARDEN LN

WINDSOR WAY

ELIZABETH LN
CH

AT
EA

U 
DR

REYNA PL

CHESTNUT LN

FREMONT PL

VE
RS

AIL
LE

S 
DR

CHERYL PL

CU
RT

IS
 W

AY

BASSETT LN

OAK GROVE PLAZA  

LIN
FIE

LD
 P

L

PATRICIA PL

SUSSEX PL

CRANE WAY

MA
NO

R 
PL

HELEN PL

BOLTON PL

AR
BO

R 
RD

MENLO AVE

AL
TO

 LN

BL
AK

E 
ST

ROBLE AVE

ALMA ST

UN
IVE

RS
ITY

 D
R

AR
BO

R 
RD

SHERWOOD WAY

WA
VE

RL
EY

 ST

BAY LAUREL DR

CREEK DR

CR
AN

E S
T

CU
RT

IS
 S

T

0 500 1,000
Feet

¢

Legend
ECR SW
Other Parcels
City Limits

REZONING:
to SP-ECR/D El Camino
Real/Downtown Specific 
Plan Zoning District
(ECR SW)

Attachment B.3 - Exhibit A

72



ATTACHMENT B.3 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Rezoning – El Camino Real/Downtown Specific Plan 

Parcels as Described by APN in City Database, April 2012 (ECR SW) 
 

 

071288190 
071288210 
071288230 
071288550 
071288570 
071288580 
071288590 
071331040 
071331180 
071332070 
071332080 
071332090 
071332100 
071332110 
071332130 
071411170 
071411180 
071411190 
071411200 
071411210 
071411250 
071411450 
071411460 
071412170 
071412220 
071412230 
071412240 
071412250 
071412430 
071413160 
071413170 
071413200 
071413360 
071413370 
071433120 
071433140 
071433160 
071433320 
071433330 
071434120 
071434360 
071434380 
071434390 
071451010 
071451020 
071451030 
071451040 
071451050 
071451060 
071451070 
071451999 

113070010 
113070020 
113070999 

 

73



ATTACHMENT C 

EL CAMINO REAL/DOWNTOWN SPECIFIC PLAN 
PLAN/IMPLEMENTATION CHANGES, FROM JUNE 5, 2012 CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING 
 
 
Parking Management Plan 
Conceptual direction to be refined by staff: 

1. Establish an advisory task force for downtown parking issues 
a. To meet on a regular basis 
b. Comprised of membership such as the following: City Council Member, 

Transportation Commission Member, Chamber of Commerce, business 
owner, property owner, etc. 

c. Parking impacts of the Chestnut Paseo and Market Place are identified as 
key issues to evaluate 

2. Starting with the next fiscal year, include the Parking Management Plan as a 
regular item to consider as part of the CIP process 

 
LEED Alternate Certification 
City Council endorses Planning Commission recommendation to allow for alternate 
verification of LEED requirements. 
 
Public Benefit 
Retain density/intensity thresholds as proposed, but review in one year. 
 
El Camino Real Side Setbacks 
City Council endorses Planning Commission recommendation, as refined by staff, to 
revise ground-floor El Camino Real setbacks in certain areas. 
 
Bulb-outs 
City Council endorses staff recommendation #3 to include bulb-outs as an option, 
including graphic revision(s). 
 
Ongoing Review 
City Council endorses Planning Commission recommendation for 2-year review 
(starting after 1-year review for Public Benefit). 
 
Middle Avenue crossing as Public Benefit Bonus element 
City Council endorses Planning Commission recommendation to include the Middle 
Avenue grade-separated crossing of the train tracks as a recommended Public Benefit 
Bonus element. 

74



 

 
D (Downtown) Parking Plaza Clarification 
City Council endorses staff recommendation for additional Chapter E text, as listed on 
page 16 of the June 5 staff report, to reiterate limits on private development on existing 
downtown parking plazas. 
 
Stanford University Recommendation Regarding Multi-Parcel Development 
City Council endorses concept of recommendation to specify that contiguous parcels 
under common ownership may be reviewed and approved comprehensively, with 
potential caveat about City discretion/oversight. 

75



  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-088 

 
Agenda Item #: E-1 

PUBLIC HEARING: Adopt a Resolution Overruling Protests, Ordering the 
Improvements, Confirming the Diagram, and Ordering the 
Levy and Collection of Assessments at the Existing Fee 
Rates for the Sidewalk and Tree Assessments for the City of 
Menlo Park Landscaping Assessment District for Fiscal Year 
2012-13 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
  
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution (Attachment A) overruling 
protests, ordering the improvements, confirming the diagram, and ordering the levy and 
collection of assessments at the existing fee rates for the sidewalk and tree 
assessments for the City of Menlo Park Landscaping Assessment District for Fiscal 
Year 2012-13. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In 1983, the City of Menlo Park established a Landscaping Assessment District for the 
proper care and maintenance of City street trees.  In 1990, an assessment for the 
repair and maintenance of sidewalks and parking strips was added to the Landscaping 
Assessment District.  The District levies assessments on parcels in Menlo Park to 
generate funds to pay for the maintenance of public trees and the repair of sidewalks in 
the public right-of-way damaged by City street trees.  Each year, the City must act to 
continue the collection of assessments. 
 
On May 22, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 6062 preliminarily approving 
the Engineer’s Report and Resolution No. 6063 stating its intention to order the levy 
and collection of assessments for the Landscaping Assessment District in FY 2012-13.  
The staff report is included as Attachment B. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The Engineer’s Report for the Menlo Park Landscaping District for Fiscal Year 2012-13 
proposes no increases to the sidewalk and tree portions of the assessment.  The action 
taken by the City Council on May 22, 2012, initiated the period in which any property 
owners can protest the amount of their proposed assessments.  No protests have been 
received as of the date of this staff report.  Prior to taking any final action, the Council 
must conduct the Public Hearing and give direction regarding any protests received.  If 

76



the Council confirms and approves the assessments by adopting the Resolution.  The 
levies will be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller for inclusion on the property tax 
roll for FY 2012-13. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
If the Council does not adopt the attached resolution, the impact on City resources will 
be $770,767 which represents the total amount of the estimated tree and sidewalk 
assessments to be received in the FY 2012-13. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council’s and the Environmental Quality 
Commission’s emphasis on the importance of preserving and maintaining mature trees. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW   
 
An environmental review is not required. 
 
 
 
__________________________   
Pam Lowe, P.E. Ruben Niño 
Associate Civil Engineer    Assistant Public Works Director 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification consists of posting the agenda, with this item 

being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, and publishing 
legal notices on May 24, 2012 and May 31, 2012 in The Daily 
News. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 

A. Resolution 
 

B. Staff Report # 12-077, dated May 22, 2012 

77



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO.   
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
OVERRULING PROTESTS, ORDERING THE IMPROVEMENTS, CONFIRMING 
THE DIAGRAM, AND ORDERING THE CONTINUATION AND COLLECTION 
OF ASSESSMENTS AT THE EXISTING FEE RATES FOR THE SIDEWALK 
AND TREE ASSESSMENTS FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
LANDSCAPING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT FOR FY 2012-13 

 
WHEREAS, on the 24th day of January, 2012, said Council adopted Resolution No. 6045, 
describing improvements and directing preparation of the Engineer’s Report for the City of 
Menlo Park Landscaping District for Fiscal Year 2012-13, pursuant to provisions of Article XIIID 
of the California Constitution and the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Council thereupon duly considered said report and each and every part 
thereof and found that it contained all the matters and things called for by the provisions of said 
Act and said Resolution No. 6045, including (1) plans and specifications of the existing 
improvements and the proposed new improvements; (2) estimate of costs; (3) diagram of the 
District; and (4) an assessment according to benefits; all of which were done in the form and 
manner required by said Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Council found that said report and each and every part thereof was sufficient 
in every particular and determined that it should stand as the report for all subsequent 
proceedings under said Act, whereupon said Council pursuant to the requirements of said Act, 
appointed Tuesday, the 12th day of June, 2012, at the hour of 7:00 p.m. or soon thereafter of 
said day in the regular meeting place of said Council, Council Chambers, Civic Center, 701 
Laurel Street, Menlo Park, California 94025, as the time and place for hearing protests in 
relation to the continuation and collection of the proposed assessments for said improvements, 
including the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof, for FY 2012-13; and 
 
WHEREAS, on June 12, 2012, at the hour of 7:00 p.m. or soon thereafter at 701 Laurel Street, 
Menlo Park, California, the Public Hearing was duly and regularly held as noticed, and all 
persons interested and desiring to be heard were given an opportunity to speak and be heard, 
and all matters and things pertaining to the levy were fully heard and considered by this Council, 
and all oral statements and all written protests or communications were duly considered; and 

 
WHEREAS, persons interested, objecting to said improvements, including the maintenance or 
servicing, or both, thereof, or to the extent of the assessment district, or any zones therein, or to 
the proposed assessment or diagram or to the Engineer’s estimate of costs thereof, filed written 
protests with the City Clerk of said City at or before the conclusion of said hearing, and all 
persons interested desiring to be heard were given an opportunity to be heard, and all matters 
and things pertaining to the continuation and collection of the assessments for said 
improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof, were fully heard and 
considered by said Council. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, AND IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND 
ORDERED AS FOLLOWS:  

 
1. That protests against said improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, both, 

thereof, or to the extent of the assessment district or any zones therein, or to the proposed 

78



continued assessment or diagram, or to the Engineer’s estimate of costs thereof, for FY 
2012-13 be, and each of them are hereby overruled.  

 
2. That the public interest, convenience, and necessity require and said Council does hereby 

order the continuation and collection of assessments pursuant to said Act, for the 
construction or installation of the improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, or 
both, thereof, more particularly described in said Engineer’s Report and made a part hereof 
by reference thereto. 

 
3. That the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District and the boundaries thereof benefited and 

to be assessed for said costs for the construction or installation of the improvements, 
including the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof, are situated in Menlo Park, 
California, and are more particularly described by reference to a map thereof on file in the 
office of the City Clerk of said City.  Said map indicates by a boundary line the extent of the 
territory included in said District and of any zone thereof and the general location of said 
District. 

 
4. That the plans and specifications for the existing improvements and for the proposed 

improvements to be made within the assessment district or within any zone thereof 
contained in said report, be, and they are hereby, finally adopted and approved. 

 
5. That the Engineer’s estimate of the itemized and total costs and expenses of said 

improvements, maintenance and servicing thereof, and of the incidental expenses in 
connection therewith, contained in said report, be, and it is hereby, finally adopted and 
approved. 

 
6. That the public interest and convenience require, and said Council does hereby order the 

improvements to be made as described in, and in accordance with, said Engineer’s Report, 
reference to which is hereby made for a more particular description of said improvements. 

 
7. That the diagram showing the exterior boundaries of the assessment district referred to and 

described in Resolution No. 6045 and also the boundaries of any zones therein and the 
lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel of land within said District as such lot or parcel of 
land is shown on the County Assessor’s maps for the fiscal year to which it applies, each of 
which lot or parcel of land has been given a separate number upon said diagram, as 
contained in said report, be, and it is hereby, finally approved and confirmed.  

 
8. That the continued assessment of the total amount of the costs and expenses of the said 

improvements upon the several lots or parcels of land in said District in proportion to the 
estimated benefits to be received by such lots or parcels, respectively, from said 
improvements, and the maintenance or servicing, or both, thereof and of the expenses 
incidental thereto contained in said report be, and the same is hereby, finally approved and 
confirmed. 

 
9. Based on the oral and documentary evidence, including the Engineer’s Report, offered and 

received at the hearing, this Council expressly finds and determines (a) that each of the 
several lots and parcels of land will be specially benefited by the maintenance of the 
improvements at least in the amount if not more than the amount, of the continued 
assessment apportioned against the lots and parcels of land, respectively, and (b) that 
there is substantial evidence to support, and the weight of the evidence preponderates in 
favor of, the aforesaid finding and determination as to special benefits.  

79



Resolution No.  
Page 3 

 
 
10. That said Engineer’s Report for FY 2012-13 be, and the same is hereby, finally adopted 

and approved as a whole. 
 
11. That the City Clerk shall forthwith file with the Auditor of San Mateo County the said 

continued assessment, together with said diagram thereto attached and made a part 
thereof, as confirmed by the City Council, with the certificate of such confirmation thereto 
attached and of the date thereof. 

 
12. That the order for the levy and collection of assessment for the improvements and the final 

adoption and approval of the Engineer’s Report as a whole, and of the plans and 
specifications, estimate of the costs and expenses, the diagram and the continued 
assessment as contained in said Report, as hereinabove determined and ordered, is 
intended to and shall refer and apply to said Report, or any portion thereof, as amended, 
modified, revised, or corrected by, or pursuant to and in accordance with any resolution or 
order, if any, heretofore duly adopted or made by this Council. 

 
13. That the San Mateo County Controller and the San Mateo County Tax Collector apply the 

City of Menlo Park Landscaping District assessments to the tax roll and have the San 
Mateo County Tax Collector collect said continued assessments in the manner and form as 
with all other such assessments collected by the San Mateo County Tax Collector. 

 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of the City of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a regular meeting by the 
City Council of the City of Menlo Park on the twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following vote:  
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 
 
ABSTAIN: 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City, 
this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 

80



 PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: May 22, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-077 

  
Agenda Item #: D-6 

 
 

 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  Adopt a Resolution Giving Preliminary Approval of the 

Engineer’s Report for the Menlo Park Landscaping 
District for Fiscal Year 2012-13 which Proposes No 
Increases to the Tree or Sidewalk Portions of the 
Assessment; Adopt a Resolution of Intent to Order the 
Levy and Collection of Assessments at the Current 
Rates for the Menlo Park Landscaping District for Fiscal 
Year 2012-13; and Set the Date for the Public Hearing for 
June 12, 2012 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council: 
 
1. Adopt a Resolution giving preliminary approval of the Engineer’s Report for the City 

of Menlo Park Landscaping District for Fiscal Year 2012-13, which proposes no 
increases to the tree or sidewalk portions of the assessment (Attachment A); 

 
2. Adopt a Resolution of Intention to order the levy and collection of assessments at 

the current rates for the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District for Fiscal Year 
2012-13 pursuant to the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Attachment B); and 

 
3. Set the date for the Public Hearing for June 12, 2012. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Landscaping Assessment District provides funding for the maintenance of trees 
and sidewalks throughout Menlo Park. 
 
Tree Maintenance 
 
Between 1960 and 1982, the City had one three-person tree crew to care for City parks, 
medians, and street trees.  At that time, the tree crew trimmed trees as requested by 
residents.  There was no specific, long-term plan to address tree maintenance.  As the 
trees grew, it took considerably more time per tree to provide proper care and the City’s 
one tree crew was unable to maintain all the trees in proper condition. 

81



 
The voters approved Measure N in 1982 as an advisory measure to the City Council 
regarding formation of the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District.  The District was 
formed in 1983 to provide proper street-tree maintenance.  Programmatic changes have 
occurred over the past 29 years to address new regulations and maintain the existing 
tree canopy.  Proper care of the tree canopy continues to be identified as a priority by 
property owners, the Environmental Quality Commission and the Council. 
 
In 1998, the City identified concerns that a significant number of City trees, of which 
over 80 p ercent were considered to be mature, would decline and fail at roughly the 
same time unless proactive measures were taken to stagger removal of the older trees 
with establishment of new, younger trees.  In addition, the tree maintenance trimming 
and evaluation schedule had slipped from once every five years to once every seven 
years due to cost.  The City proposed an increase in the District fees, which was 
approved per Proposition 218 requirements.  The additional funds raised were used to 
bring back the tree trimming/evaluation schedule to once every five years.  In addition, 
in 2008-09 a reforestation program was implemented with a portion of the District funds. 
 
City Tree-Damaged Sidewalk Repair 
 
Prior to 1990, property owners and t he City split the cost of repairing sidewalks 
damaged by City trees.  The City entered into individual agreements with approximately 
200 individual property owners each year to conduct these repairs.  T he annual cost 
was a financial burden to some residents on fixed incomes, and burdensome for the 
City to administer. 
 
An assessment for the repair of sidewalks and parking strips was established in 1990 to 
make the program more cost-effective and less of a f inancial burden for property 
owners, and to streamline staff’s processing of tree-damaged sidewalk repair.  Staff has 
been able to address the tripping hazards through new technologies in sidewalk 
sawcutting, resulting in the sidewalk assessment only having been raised once since its 
establishment. 
 
Street Sweeping 
 
Street sweeping is performed throughout the City for aesthetic, water quality and health 
reasons, as well as compliance with storm water regulations. Street sweeping work has 
been performed by contract services since 1992.  At that time, the cost of street 
sweeping was divided between the landscape assessment district and the General 
Fund.  In recent years, the cost for street sweeping has been split, with 2/3 of the cost 
funded by the District, and 1/3 of the cost coming from the stormwater program.  The 
projected FY 2012-13 cost for street sweeping is approximately $165,000 per year, and 
is funded 2/3 ($110,000) from the District and 1/3 ($55,000) from the Measure M vehicle 
registration fees, which was voter-approved in November 2010.   
 
 

ATTACHMENT B

82



 
Engineer’s Report Requirements 
 
For each fiscal year the assessments will be levied, the City Council must direct the 
preparation of an Engineer’s Report, budgets, and proposed assessments.  On January 
24, 2012, the City Council adopted Resolution 6045 describing the improvements and 
directing the preparation of an Engineer’s Report for the Landscaping District for FY 
2012-13.  In addition, Council approved an agreement with SCI Consulting Group to 
prepare that report. 
 
The Engineer’s Report establishes the foundation and justification for the continued 
collection of the landscape assessments for FY 2012-13.  SCI Consulting Group has 
reviewed the report in context with recent court decisions and legal requirements for 
benefit assessments.  The assessments proposed are fully compliant with recent court 
decisions and the requirements of Proposition 218. 
 
The purpose of this staff report is to obtain Council’s preliminary approval of the 
Engineer’s Report, state the intention of the Council to order the levy and collection of 
assessments, give preliminary approval of no increase to the tree and sidewalk portions 
of the assessment, and set a public hearing for June 12, 2012, regarding the proposed 
assessments. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Approval of Engineer’s Report 
 
SCI Consulting Group has completed the preliminary Engineer’s Report (Attachment C) 
for the Landscaping District, which includes the District’s proposed FY 2012-13 budget.  
The budget covers tree maintenance, a portion of the cost of the City’s street sweeping 
program, and the sidewalk repair program.  The report describes in detail the method 
used for apportioning the total assessment among properties within the District.  This 
method involves identifying the benefit received by each property in relation to a single-
family home (Single Family Equivalent or SFE). 
 
Expenses for the program are covered by revenue from property tax assessments, 
contributions from the City (primarily from the General Fund), and unspent funds from 
prior years. 
 
Program Budgets 
 
Tree Maintenance Assessments 
 
Staff is proposing no increase to the tree maintenance budget for the fiscal year 2012-
13.  Table I shows the proposed budget for street tree maintenance expenses and 
revenues for FY 2012-13. 

83



 
Table I 

Tree Maintenance Assessments 
Proposed FY 2012-13 Budget 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance $98,224 
Estimated Revenues:  
Tree Assessment Revenue (no increase) $566,055 
General Fund Contribution towards Tree Maintenance 159,600 
C/CAG County Contribution for Street Sweeping 13,000 
 $738,655 
Estimated Expenses:  
Street Tree Maintenance $541,513 
Debris Removal (Street Sweeping) 167,209 
Administration & County Collection of Assessment Fees 39,130 
 $747,852 
Projected Ending Fund Balance $89,028 

 
Staff estimates that tree maintenance expenditures will exceed revenues by 
approximately $9,196 in FY 2012-13, which will result in a FY 2012-13 ending fund 
balance of approximately $89,028.  I n 2009, the Council approved staff’s 
recommendation to set assessments in amounts that would result in fund balances of 
not less than 10% of projected expenditures.  The projected ending fund balance of 
approximately $89,028 is 12 percent of projected expenses, and is therefore in 
accordance with the 2009 policy.  Therefore, staff is not recommending any increase to 
the tree maintenance assessment for FY 2012-13. 
 
The General Fund contribution towards tree maintenance will be $159,600 for FY 2012-
13, the same amount as for FY 2011-12.  Proposition 218 stipulates that only the 
“special benefits” received by a parcel can be charged through an assessment district, 
with “general benefits” being funded by other sources.  The Engineer’s Report 
determined that 75 percent of the benefits received are special benefits, and 25 percent 
are general benefits.  Funds received from the City/County Association of Governments 
for street sweeping will be used to pay for a portion of the general benefit. The proposed 
General Fund contribution of $159,600 will meet the City’s remaining obligation. 
 
Sidewalk Repair Assessments 
 
Staff is proposing no i ncrease to the sidewalk repair budget for fiscal year 2012-13.  
Table II shows the proposed budget for sidewalk, curb, gutter and parking strip repair 
and replacement expenses and revenues for FY 2012-13. 

ATTACHMENT B

84



 
Table II 

Sidewalk Repair Assessments 
Proposed FY 2012-13 Budget 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance $282,159 
Estimated Revenues:  
Sidewalk Assessment Revenue (no rate increase) $204,712 
General Fund CIP Contribution for sidewalk repair 120,000 
 $324,712 
Estimated Expenses:  
Sidewalk, Curb, Gutter, Parking Strip Repair/Replacement  $300,000 
Administration & County Collection of Assessment Fees 39,130 
 $339,130 
Projected Ending Fund Balance $267,741 

 
The Council authorizes sidewalk repair program funding in the amount of $300,000 per 
year as part of the City’s capital improvement program.  At that funding level, staff 
estimates that the sidewalk repair program will have budgeted expenses that exceed 
revenues by approximately $14,418 in FY 2012-13.  The projected FY 2012-13 ending 
fund balance is approximately $267,741.  T herefore, staff is not recommending any 
increase to the sidewalk repair assessments for FY 2012-13. 
 

Table III 
Annual Tree Assessment Rates 

Proposed FY 2012-13 (no increase from FY 2011-12) 
Property Type Properties with Trees Properties without Trees 
Single-family $60.26 per Parcel $30.13 per Parcel 

R-2 Zone, in use as 
single-family $60.26 per Parcel $30.13 per Parcel 

Condominium/ 
Townhouse 

$54.23 per Unit 
$271.17 max. per Project 

$27.12 per Unit 
$135.59 max. per Project 

Other Multi-family $48.21 per Unit 
$241.04 max. per Project 

$24.10 per Unit 
$120.52 max. per Project 

Commercial $60.26 per 1/5 acre 
$301.30 max. per Project 

$30.13 per 1/5 acre 
$150.65 max. per Project 

Industrial $60.26 per 1/5 acre 
$301.30 max. per Project 

$30.13 per 1/5 acre 
$150.65 max. per Project 

Parks, Educational $60.26 per Parcel $30.13 per Parcel 
Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 per Parcel $0.00 per Parcel 

 

85



* All assessment amounts are rounded to the penny. 
 
Assessment Process 
 
If the Council approves the attached resolutions, staff will publish legal notice of the 
assessment Public Hearing at least ten days prior to the hearing, which is tentatively 
scheduled for June 12, 2012.  Once the assessments are confirmed and approved, the 
levies will be submitted to the County Auditor/Controller for inclusion onto the property 
tax roll for FY 2012-13. 
 
Assessments are subject to an a nnual adjustment based on the Engineering News 
Record Construction Cost Index (CCI) for the San Francisco Bay Area.  The maximum 
annual adjustment cannot exceed 3%.  Any change in the CCI in excess of 3% is 
cumulatively reserved and can be used to increase the assessment rate in years in 
which the CCI is less than 3%.  The change in the CCI from December 2010 to 
December 2011 was 0.83%. 
 
The maximum authorized assessment rate for fiscal year 2012-13 (based on 
accumulated unused CCI increases) would be $92.81 per single family equivalent (SFE) 
benefit unit for tree maintenance and $41.44 per single family equivalent (SFE) benefit 
unit for sidewalk maintenance.  The estimated budget in the Engineer’s Report 
proposes assessments for fiscal year 2012-13 at the rate of $60.26 per SFE for tree 
maintenance and $28.70 per SFE for sidewalk maintenance (same as FY 2011-12).  
Both amounts are less than the maximum authorized assessment rate. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
Funding for the entire tree-maintenance and sidewalk-repair programs under the 
assessment district comes from a variety of sources, including the carryover of unspent 
funds from prior years, annual tax assessment revenues, and contributions from the 
General Fund.  If the Council does not order the levy and collection of assessments, the 

Table IV 

Property Type 
Annual Sidewalk Assessment Rates 

Proposed FY 2012-13 
(no increase from FY 2011-12) 

Properties with Improvements 
Sidewalks, curbs, gutters $28.70 per Parcel 
Parking strips and gutters $28.70 per Parcel 
Curbs and/or gutters only $19.23 per Parcel 
No improvements $9.47 per Parcel 
Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 per Parcel 
Properties without Improvements 
Parcels with or without improvements $9.47 per Parcel 
Miscellaneous, Other $0.00 per Parcel 

ATTACHMENT B

86



impact on City resources would be $770,767 (the total amount of the proposed tree and 
sidewalk assessments). 
 
The current estimated fund balances for both the tree and sidewalk programs are 
sufficient to maintain current services levels through FY 2012-13. The staff 
recommendation not to increase either the tree maintenance or sidewalk repair 
assessment rate is expected to result in maintaining fund balances for each program in 
excess of 10 percent of projected expenditures. 
   
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council’s and t he Environmental Quality 
Commission’s emphasis on the importance of preserving and maintaining mature trees. 
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
An environmental review is not required. 
 
  
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Pam Lowe, P.E. Ruben Niño, P.E. 
Associate Civil Engineer Assistant Director of Public Works 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: A. Resolution of Preliminary Approval of the Engineer’s Report 
 
 B. Resolution of Intention to Order the Levy and C ollection of 

Assessments 
 
 C. Engineer’s Report dated May 2012 

87



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF PRELIMINARY APPROVAL OF THE ENGINEER’S 
REPORT FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK LANDSCAPING DISTRICT 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 

 
WHEREAS, on the 24th day of January, 2012, said Council did adopt Resolution No. 
6045, describing improvements and di recting preparation of the Engineer’s Report for 
the City of Menlo Park Landscaping District (District) for Fiscal Year 2012-13, pursuant 
to provisions of Article XIIID of the California Constitution and t he Landscaping and 
Lighting Act of 1972, in said City and di d refer the proposed improvements to SCI 
Consulting Group and did therein direct SCI Consulting Group to prepare and f ile with 
the Clerk of said City a r eport, in writing, all as therein more particularly described, 
under and in accordance with Section 22565, et. seq., of the Streets and H ighways 
Code and Article XIIID of the California Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, said SCI Consulting Group prepared and filed with the Clerk of said City a 
report in writing as called for in said Resolution No. 6045 and under and pursuant to 
said Article and Act, which report has been presented to this Council for consideration; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, said Council has duly considered said report and eac h and ev ery part 
thereof, and f inds that each and every part of said report is sufficient, and that neither 
said report, nor any part thereof, should be modified in any respect. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLOVED THAT IT IS HEREBY FOUND, 
DETERMINED, and ORDERED, as follows: 
 
1. That the plans and specifications for the existing improvements and the proposed 

new improvements to be m ade within the District or within any zone thereof, 
contained in said report, be, and they are hereby, preliminarily approved. 

 
2. That the Engineer’s estimate of the itemized and total costs and expenses of said 

improvements, maintenance, and servicing thereof, and of  the incidental expenses 
in connection therewith, contained in said report be, and each of them is hereby, 
preliminarily approved. 

 
3. That the diagram showing the exterior boundaries of the District referred to and 

described in said Resolution No. 6045 and also the boundaries of any zones therein 
and the lines and dimensions of each lot or parcel of land within said District as such 
lot or parcel of land is shown on the County Assessor’s maps for the fiscal year to 
which the report applies, each of which lot or parcel of land has been g iven a 
separate number upon s aid diagram, as contained in said report be, and it is 
hereby, preliminarily approved. 

 

ATTACHMENT B

88



4. That the proposed continued assessment of the total amount of the estimated costs 
and expenses of the proposed improvements upon t he several lots or parcels of 
land in said District in proportion to the estimated benefits to be received by such 
lots or parcels, respectively, from said improvements including the maintenance or 
servicing, or both, thereof, and of  the expenses incidental thereto, as contained in 
said report be, and they are hereby, preliminarily approved. 

 
5. That said report shall stand as the Engineer’s Report for the purpose of all 

subsequent proceedings to be had pursuant to said Resolution No. 6045. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twenty-second day of May, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and af fixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twenty-second day of May, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 

89



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF INTENTION TO ORDER THE CONTINUATION AND 
COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS FOR THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
LANDSCAPING DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 PURSUANT TO 
THE LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING ACT OF 1972 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 6045 describing improvements and di recting 
the preparation of the Engineer’s Report for Fiscal Year 2012-13 for the City of Menlo 
Park Landscaping District, adopted on January 24, 2012, by the City Council of said 
City; and 
 
WHEREAS pursuant to provisions of Article XIIID of the California Constitution and the 
Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, SCI Consulting Group for said City has prepared 
and filed with the Clerk of this City the written report called for under and in accordance 
with Section 22565, et. seq., of the Streets and Highways Code and Article XIIID of the 
California Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, by said Resolution No. 6045, which said report has been submitted and 
preliminarily approved by this Council in accordance with said Article and Act. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT IT IS HEREBY FOUND, 
DETERMINED, and ORDERED, as follows: 
 

1. In its opinion, the public interest and convenience require, and it is the intention 
of this Council, to order the continuation and collection of assessments for Fiscal 
Year 2012-13 pursuant to the provisions of Article XIIID of the California 
Constitution and the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972, Part 2, Division 15 of 
the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California, for the construction or 
installation of the improvements, including the maintenance or servicing, or both, 
thereof, more particularly described in Exhibit A hereto attached and by  
reference incorporated herein. 

 
2. The cost and ex pense of said improvements, including the maintenance or 

servicing, or both, thereof, are to be m ade chargeable upon the assessment 
district designated as “City of Menlo Park Landscaping District” (District) the 
exterior boundaries of which District are the composite and consolidated area as 
more particularly described on a map thereof on file in the office of the Clerk of 
said City, to which reference is hereby made for further particulars. Said map 
indicates by a boundary line the extent of the territory included in the District and 
of any zone thereof and the general location of said District. 

 
3. Said Engineer’s Report prepared by SCI Consulting Group, preliminarily 

approved by this Council, and on file with the Clerk of this City, is hereby referred 
to for a full and detailed description of the improvements, the boundaries of the 

ATTACHMENT B

90



assessment district and any zones therein, and the proposed assessments upon 
assessable lots and parcels of land within the District. 
 

4. The authorized maximum assessment rates for the District include an annual 
adjustment by an amount equal to the annual change in the Engineering News 
Record Index, not to exceed 3 percent per year, plus any uncaptured excesses.  
Assessment rates are not proposed to increase during Fiscal Year 2012-13 over 
the Fiscal Year 2011-12 assessments.  The maximum authorized assessment 
rate for street tree maintenance for Fiscal Year 2012-13 is $92.81 per single 
family equivalent benefit unit, and t he proposed assessment rate per single 
family equivalent benefit unit to be continued to Fiscal Year 2012-13 is $60.26, 
which is the same rate as that levied in Fiscal Year 2012-13 and is less than the 
maximum authorized rate.  Including the authorized annual adjustment, the 
maximum authorized assessment rate for sidewalk repairs for Fiscal Year 2012-
13 is $41.44 per single family equivalent benefit unit, and t he proposed 
assessment rate per single family equivalent benefit unit to be c ontinued to 
Fiscal Year 2012-13 is $28.70, which is the same rate as that levied in Fiscal 
Year 2012-13 and is less than the maximum authorized rate. 

 
5. Notice is hereby given that Tuesday, the twelfth day of June, 2012, at the hour of 

7:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon thereafter, in the regular meeting place of said 
Council, Council Chambers, Civic Center, 701 Laur el Street, Menlo Park, 
California, be, and the same are hereby appointed and f ixed as the time and 
place for a Public Hearing by this Council on the question of the continuation and 
collection of the proposed assessment for the construction or installation of said 
improvements, including the maintenance and servicing, or both, thereof, and 
when and where it will consider all oral statements and all written protests made 
or filed by any interested person at or before the conclusion of said hearing, 
against said improvements, the boundaries of the assessment district and any 
zone therein, the proposed diagram or the proposed assessment, to the 
Engineer’s estimate of the cost thereof, and when and where it will consider and 
finally act upon the Engineer’s Report. 

 
6. The Clerk of said City is hereby directed to give notice of said Public Hearing by 

causing a copy of this resolution to be publ ished once in The Daily News, a 
newspaper circulated in said City, and by conspicuously posting a copy thereof 
upon the official bulletin board customarily used by the City for the posting of 
notices, said posting and publ ication to be had and completed at least ten (10) 
days prior to the date of public hearing specified herein. 

 
7. The Office of the Engineering Services Manager of said City is hereby 

designated as the office to answer inquiries regarding any protest proceedings to 
be had herein, and m ay be c ontacted during regular office hours at the Civic 
Center, 701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, California, 94025, or by calling (650) 330-
6740. 

 

91



I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twenty-second day of May, 2012, by the following votes:  
 
AYES:    
 

NOES:   
 

ABSENT:   
 

ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and af fixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twenty-second day of May, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 
 

ATTACHMENT B

92



Exhibit A 
  

City of Menlo Park Landscaping District 
 
Maintaining and s ervicing of street trees, including the cost of repair, removal or 
replacement of all or any part thereof, providing for the life, growth, health, and beauty 
of landscaping, including cultivation, trimming, spraying, fertilizing, or treating for 
disease or injury, the removal of trimmings, rubbish, debris, and other solid waste, and 
water for the irrigation thereof, and the installation or construction, including the 
maintenance and servicing thereof, of curbs, gutters, sidewalks, and parking strips. 
 

93



ATTACHMENT B

94



95



ATTACHMENT B

96



97



ATTACHMENT B

98



99



ATTACHMENT B

100



101



ATTACHMENT B

102



103



ATTACHMENT B

104



105



ATTACHMENT B

106



107



ATTACHMENT B

108



109



ATTACHMENT B

110



111



ATTACHMENT B

112



113



ATTACHMENT B

114



115



ATTACHMENT B

116



117



ATTACHMENT B

118



119



ATTACHMENT B

120



121



ATTACHMENT B

122



123



  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-092 

 
Agenda Item #: E-2 

PUBLIC HEARING: Adopt a Resolution Authorizing Collection of a Regulatory 
Fee at Existing Rates to Implement the Local City of Menlo 
Park Storm Water Management Program for Fiscal Year 2012-
13 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing collection of a 
regulatory fee at existing rates to implement the local City of Menlo Park Storm Water 
Management Program for FY 2012-13. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Two types of stormwater related fees and charges are funded by Menlo Park residents:  
a local regulatory fee, applicable to the City of Menlo Park only, and a countywide fee 
applicable to general program activities benefitting all agencies within San Mateo 
County.  The City Council is currently scheduled to consider authorization of both fees 
on June 12, 2012.  The following background information is specific to the local 
program. 
 
In 1991, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Board) issued a 
Municipal Storm Water Permit to San Mateo County and its 21 incorporated cities.  The 
permit, issued under the National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
program, was intended to protect surface water quality against a variety of pollutants, 
and has been updated by the Board several times, with new and more stringent 
requirements added. 
 
The Board adopted the current Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP) in October 
2009 which became effective on December 1, 2009 and expires on November 30, 2014.  
The MRP incorporates the following 14 provisions (C.2 through C.15) with goals, tasks, 
schedules, and reporting requirements to be completed in order to be compliant with the 
NPDES permit.  The MRP is available on the City’s website under “Public Works - 
Stormwater Quality.” 
 
Provision Title 

C.2 Municipal Operations 
C.3 New Development and Redevelopment 
C.4 Industrial and Commercial Site Controls 
C.5 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 
C.6 Construction Site Control 

124



C.7 Public Information and Outreach 
C.8 Water Quality Monitoring 
C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Control 
C.10 Trash Load Reduction 
C.11 Mercury Controls 
C.12 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) Controls 
C.13 Copper Controls 
C.14 Polybrominated Diphenyl Ethers (PBDE), Legacy Pesticides and Selenium 
C.15 Exempted and Conditionally Exempted Discharges 
 

The MRP also requires that the City provide funding for adopting, enforcing, and 
implementing the provisions listed above.  In July 1994, the City Council adopted 
Ordinance No. 859, “Storm Water Management Program."  Article V of the ordinance 
established a regulatory fee to address the need for a separate local funding 
mechanism to fund the City’s Storm Water Management Program, and requires the City 
to implement the regulatory fee on an annual basis. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
The recommended authorization allows the City to continue to collect storm water fees 
at the existing rates from all developed parcels within the City boundaries.  Fees are 
based upon the impervious area of each individual parcel. 
 
The following table lists the proposed program budget for FY 2012-13.  Staff anticipates 
that the Council will approve this budget as part of the overall City budget scheduled for 
adoption June 12, 2012. 
 

  
Program Items 

2012-13 
Proposed 
Budget 

1 

Staff administration and operating costs.  City’s cost for personnel and 
operating expenses to implement the requirements of the MRP, including 
reporting, participation in Technical Advisory Committee and 
subcommittees, creek management efforts and administration of the street 
sweeping program. 

$242,352 

2 Storm drain/creek cleaning.  Maintenance programs to clean storm drain 
inlets, San Francisquito Creek, and Atherton Channel. $38,000 

3 Creek cleanup and monitoring.  Contract with the City of Redwood City 
for creek cleanup and monitoring. $50,000 

4 
Watershed Council.  City’s contribution to the San Francisquito Creek 
Watershed Council for coordination of educational, maintenance, 
watershed planning, and other issues. 

$7,500 

5 General and Administrative Overhead.  City’s obligation to the General 
Fund for Finance and Administrative Services. $12,800 

6 
Miscellaneous professional services.  Stenciling of storm drains, 
updating the storm drain base map, geographic information services 
development, public information brochures, etc.   

$8,500 

 Total  $359,152 

125



Page 3 of 5 
Staff Report # 12-092 
 

 

Compared to the FY 2011-12 budget, the proposed overall budget for FY 2012-13 has 
decreased by almost $150,000 to ensure that stormwater expenditures do not exceed 
revenues, which has been the case since FY 2001-02.  In order to reduce expenditures, 
$55,000 in Street Sweeping Services and $108,000 ($40,000 previously funded by the 
Redevelopment Agency Fund) in the City’s yearly contribution to the San Francisco 
Creek Joint Power Authority has been moved to the General Fund.  To help offset this 
increase in expenses to the General Fund, staff will utilize $55,000 in Measure M 
funding ($10 Vehicle Registration Fee). 
 
Fee Structure 
 
The current annual fee is based on a rate of $5.25 per 1,000 square feet of impervious 
area for each property in the community.  The fee for single-family residences varies 
depending on the amount of impervious area and the size of the lot.  Staff proposes no 
change to the fee structure in FY 2012-13.  (Increasing the fee would require the City to 
conduct a property-owner voting procedure in accordance with State Proposition 218.)  
The average annual fee will continue to be $16 in the Belle Haven neighborhood, $18 in 
the Willows, $20 in Central Menlo Park and $26 in Sharon Heights.  The annual fee for 
a typical commercial property downtown along Santa Cruz Avenue with a 5,000 square-
foot lot will remain at $26.25. 
 
Credit Towards Reduction of Regulatory Fee 
 
As an incentive to commercial and industrial property owners, the City continues to 
provide a credit of up to 25 percent of the regulatory fee if the property meets certain 
Best Management Practices (BMPs).  Common BMPs include:  storm drain inlet 
stenciling, providing proof of a vacuum sweeping contract, training employees on 
correct disposal of potential pollutants, and implementation of landscape and pollution-
control practices.  Most new projects are required to use BMPs during construction, but 
implementation of new BMPs after the project has been completed and/or maintenance 
of existing BMPs previously installed is voluntary.  The BMP credit program focuses on 
providing an incentive to owners of larger properties that implemented BMPs and to 
property owners who do not intend to develop but are interested in installing BMPs, to 
help protect the environment. 
 
Staff will continue to inspect sites to determine the appropriate credit towards fee 
reduction based on the type of BMP used and the level of effort for maintenance.  For 
example, labeling a storm drain does not result in the same benefit as placing an oil-
sand filter in the storm drain and therefore results in a smaller credit.  Staff performs 
inspections on an annual basis to determine whether any additional BMPs have been 
implemented and to verify that earlier BMPs are being maintained. 
 
This year, staff received and inspected 23 applications from commercial and industrial 
properties that are implementing BMPs.  The property owners have installed “Drains to 
the Bay” labels on their storm drain inlets, vacuum swept their parking lots, trained their 
employees on correct disposal of potential pollutants, and implemented landscape and 

126



pollution-control practices.  Consistent with prior years, the typical credit amount is 
approximately 15 percent. 
 
Schedule 
 
If the Council adopts the resolution authorizing collection of the regulatory fee at existing 
fee rates to implement the local City of Menlo Park Storm Water Management Program 
for FY 2012-13, staff will forward the fee database directly to the County for preparation 
of the FY 2012-13 tax bills. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The following table shows the projected budget for the Storm Water Management 
Program for FY 2012-13. 
 

Proposed FY 2012-13 Budget 
Projected Beginning Fund Balance $129,411 
Estimated Revenues (based on impervious area per parcel): $329,000 
Estimated Expenses ($359,152) 
Projected Ending Fund Balance $99,259 

 
The current fee structure is expected to generate revenues of $329,000 in FY 2012-13.  
With an estimated $129,411 carryover from the FY 2011-12 Storm Water Management 
Fund, sufficient funds will be available for the proposed FY 2012-13 expenditures 
program budget.  However, annual revenues generated by the fee have not covered the 
increasing costs of implementing the current program requirements since FY 2001-02.  
The total stormwater program expenditures is $587,036 of which the Storm Water 
Management Fund pays $359,152 and the General Fund $227,884. The proposed FY 
2012-13 budget shows the General Fund increasing from previous years to include 
street sweeping services and the City’s yearly contribution to the San Francisco Joint 
Power Authority. 
 
The fee is subject to the requirements of Proposition 218 as a property-related fee, thus 
any increase would be subject to voter approval.  Yearly fund balances have made up 
the difference, but will not be sufficient to meet any new demands or unexpected 
expenses.  With a projected FY 2012-13 end fund balance of $99,259, and with the 
increased costs to implement current MRP requirements, there may be a need to 
increase fees in the near future. 
 
The City Council approved a Storm Drainage Fee Study as a project priority in FY 2007-
08. The study would evaluate funding options to address increased regulatory 
requirements and the need to fund long-term storm drainage improvements.  A report to 
the Council on storm drainage fees was postponed because the City/County 
Association of Governments (C/CAG) has been assembling information and conducting 
preliminary research to determine if voters would support a countywide assessment to 
fund stormwater programs. C/CAG is preliminarily looking at funding a stormwater 
assessment through a Proposition 218 election in FY 2013-14.   
 

127



Page 5 of 5 
Staff Report # 12-092 
 

 

The staff recommendation preserves funding at the current level which is sufficient to 
cover the cost of this program for FY 2012-13. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The staff recommendation will allow the City to continue its Stormwater Management 
activities at the current level through FY 2012-13. It is important to note that the 
program has been successful in reporting requirements, public education, business 
inspections, municipal maintenance, and development related requirements. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review is not required for this action. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________        
Pam Lowe, P.E. Ruben Niño 
Associate Civil Engineer Assistant Public Works Director 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification consists of posting the agenda, with this item 

being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, and publishing 
legal notices on May 24, 2012 and May 31, 2012 in The Daily 
News. 

 
ATTACHMENT:  

 
A.  Resolution  

128



RESOLUTION NO.   
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK AUTHORIZE COLLECTION OF A REGULATORY FEE AT 
EXISTING RATES TO IMPLEMENT THE LOCAL CITY OF MENLO 
PARK STORM WATER MANAGEMENT PROGRAM FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2012-13 

 
WHEREAS, Section 402(p) of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.) as 
amended by the Water Quality Control Act of 1987, requires that all large and medium-
sized incorporated municipalities must effectively prohibit non-storm water discharges 
into storm sewers; and further requires controls to reduce the discharge of pollutants 
from storm water systems to waters of the United States to the maximum extent 
practicable; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park, in conjunction with all of the incorporated cities in 
San Mateo County, has prepared the Storm Water Management Plan, which has a 
General Program to be administered and funded through the San Mateo County Flood 
Control District, and a specific program for each city, to be administered and funded by 
each city; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park specific program includes those efforts and programs 
required to be undertaken by the City of Menlo Park to support and address its 
responsibility to regulate and enforce local pollution control components under the 
Storm Water Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Menlo Park City Council is authorized and/or mandated by Ordinance 
No. 859 adopted on July 12, 1994, and including the following federal and/or state 
statutes:  the federal Clean Water Act as amended in 1987; the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System Permit Application Regulations for Stormwater 
Discharges; the California Constitution, Article XI, Section 7 of the California Water 
Code Section 13002; and Part 3 of Division 5 of the California Health and Safety Code, 
to impose a regulatory fee to enforce the local storm water pollution control components 
of the San Mateo County Stormwater Management Plan upon the businesses, entities, 
residents, and unimproved properties of the City of Menlo Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, that the City Council of the City of Menlo Park conducted a noticed public 
hearing to consider this resolution as part of an overall plan addressing, regulating, and 
reducing non-point source pollution discharges within the City of Menlo Park, and 
including regulatory fees necessary to ensure local compliance with the federal and/or 
state statutes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED AND IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, 
AND ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. That the Engineering Services Manager for the City of Menlo Park is the authorized 

collection agent for the regulatory fees authorized and/or mandated by federal 

129



Resolution No. 
Page 2 

 

 

and/or state statutes, and is hereinafter empowered to collect, contract for collection, 
enforce, and/or institute other proceedings necessary for the collection of the 
regulatory fee. 

 
2. That the Engineering Services Manager is hereby directed to file, or cause to be 

filed, the amount of regulatory fees as described and shown on the attached Exhibit 
“A" including the diagram shown on the County Assessor’s maps to be imposed and 
the parcels upon which such regulatory fees are imposed, with the County Auditor 
and/or the County Tax Collector of the County of San Mateo no later than early 
August 2012.  For each parcel upon which a regulatory fee has been imposed, the 
regulatory fee shall appear as a separate item on the tax bill and shall be levied and 
collected at the same time and in the same manner as the general tax levy for City 
purposes. 

 
3. That the Public Works Director is authorized to enter into those agreements 

necessary to have the County of San Mateo perform the regulatory fee collection 
services required; and the City Council hereby authorizes the County of San Mateo 
to perform such services, and for the City to pay the County of San Mateo for the 
reasonable costs of those collection services so provided. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that said Council authorized the establishment of a 
Regulatory Fee imposed to pay for costs to implement the Storm Water Management 
Program in accordance with Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a Public 
Hearing held by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park on the twelfth day of June, 
2012, by the following vote: 
 
  
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 

130



EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

CITY OF MENLO PARK 
 

Storm Water Management Program Regulatory Fee 
 

Fiscal Year 2012-13 
 
 

All Residential/Commercial/Industrial 
 
All residential/commercial/industrial properties and other non-residential properties shall 
pay $.00525 per square foot of impervious area. 
 
Exempt from fee:  Federal, State, County, Flood Plain, and City Government parcels. 
 

131



 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 

Staff Report #: 12-089 
 

Agenda Item #: E-3 

PUBLIC HEARING: Adopt a Resolution Recommending that the San Mateo 
County Flood Control District Impose Basic and Additional 
Charges for Funding the Fiscal Year 2012-13 Countywide 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General 
Program 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff proposes that the City Council adopt a resolution recommending that the San 
Mateo County Flood Control District impose basic and additional charges for funding the 
FY 2012-13 Countywide National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
General Program. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Two types of stormwater related fees and charges are funded by Menlo Park property 
owners:  a local regulatory fee, applicable to the City of Menlo Park only, and a 
countywide fee, which is applicable to general program activities benefitting all agencies 
within San Mateo County.  The City Council is currently scheduled to consider 
authorization of both fees.  The following background information is specific to the 
countywide program. 
 
In 1991, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (Board) issued a 
NPDES Municipal Storm Water Permit to San Mateo County and its 21 incorporated 
cities.  The permit required the cities and County to implement a Stormwater 
Management Program (SWMP) to reduce the pollution of waterways.  Since the original 
permit was issued, the Board has reviewed the permit and requires that the SWMP be 
updated every five years. 
 
Since 1992, the San Mateo County Flood Control District has been collecting fees on 
behalf of the cities to pay for the portion of the SWMP that benefits all agencies in the 
County. This has been an effective approach in minimizing the costs of implementing 
the SWMP.  The charges imposed by the County Flood Control District pay for the costs 
of the General Program (program elements benefiting all 21 co-permittees).  A detailed 
description of the services provided by the General Program is included within the 
analysis, below. 
 
The Board adopted the Municipal Regional Stormwater Permit (MRP) in October 2009, 
with an effective date of December 1, 2009 and which expires on November 30, 2014.  

132



The MRP incorporates the following 14 provisions (C.2 through C.15) with goals, tasks, 
schedules, and reporting requirements to be completed in order to be in compliance 
with the NPDES permit.  The MRP is available on the City’s website under “Public 
Works - Stormwater Quality.” 
 
Provision Title 

C.2 Municipal Operations 
C.3 New Development and Redevelopment 
C.4 Industrial and Commercial Site Controls 
C.5 Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 
C.6 Construction Site Control 
C.7 Public Information and Outreach 
C.8 Water Quality Monitoring 
C.9 Pesticides Toxicity Control 
C.10 Trash Load Reduction 
C.11 Mercury Controls 
C.12 Polychlorinated Biphenyls (PCBs) Controls 
C.13 Copper Controls 
C.14 Polybrominated Diphenyl Ethers (PBDE), Legacy Pesticides and Selenium 
C.15 Exempted and Conditionally Exempted Discharges 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
The San Mateo Countywide Water Pollution Prevention Program (Program) is 
responsible for coordinating the activities that benefit all 21 agency co-permittees 
involved with the implementation of the Stormwater Management Plan.  The Program 
also ensures adherence to the conditions set forth under the Countywide NPDES 
permit.  The following NPDES Permit items are funded by fees generated throughout 
the County and used to administer the General (Countywide) Program. 
 
Program Coordination 
 

• A Regional Permit Coordinator chairs each of the five major subcommittees- 
Municipal Government Maintenance, Industrial and Illicit Discharge, New 
Development/Redevelopment, Public Information and Participation and 
Watershed Monitoring. The Permit Coordinator interfaces between the 
subcommittees, consultant administrator and the Regional Board, and helps 
establish the annual budget. 

 
• A consultant administrator attends all subcommittee meetings, produces meeting 

minutes, reports on current legislation affecting municipalities, and helps the 
Program agencies meet the requirements of the General Permit. 

 
Develop and Implement Performance Standards 
 

• The consultant administrator develops training materials, graphs, spreadsheets, 
documents, and timelines that assist the municipalities in reporting on and 
complying with the various permit requirements. 

 

133



Page 3 of 4 
Staff Report #: 12-089 
 

Performance Monitoring 
 

• The consultant administrator develops, distributes, collects, tabulates various 
performance-monitoring report information, and submits it to the Regional Board. 

 
• The consultant administrator evaluates the effectiveness of implemented controls 

in the areas of municipal maintenance; commercial, industrial, and illicit 
discharge; public information/participation; new development/redevelopment; and 
watershed monitoring. 

 
Publications and Education Programs  
 

• The consultant administrator develops and implements the public information and 
participation program including website development, brochures, outreach 
programs in the local schools and training flyers, as required by the General 
Permit to educate the public. 

 
Funding 
 
The total budget for the Countywide SWMP proposed for FY 2012-13 is $3,280,270, an 
increase of 41 percent over the FY 2011-12 budget ($2,327,870).  The primary cause of 
the budget increase, which is expected due to the phasing and ramping up of Municipal 
Regional Permit requirements, is attributed to an increase of compliance activities in the 
monitoring and pollutants of concern sections of the permit, in addition to budgeting 
funds for a countywide Proposition 218 effort. 
 
The budget must be approved by the City and County Association of Governments 
(C/CAG), which deals with issues that affect the quality of life in general in San Mateo 
County, including storm water runoff.  The proposed Program FY 2012-13 budget will 
be presented to the C/CAG board on June 14, 2012 for approval.  The proposed budget 
utilizes outside revenue in the form of Measure M – Vehicle Registration Fee, grant 
revenues, and a portion of the program’s reserves. 
  
The fee collected by the County consists of two separate charges covering the “Basic” 
and “Additional” Fees.  The Basic Fee does not change from year-to-year, whereas the 
Additional Fee was structured to change by a percentage equal to the movement in the 
Consumer Price Index (Bureau of Labor, Urban Wage Earners), a 1.03 percent increase 
from February 2011 to February 2012.  As a result, the County is proposing that the 
“Additional” Fee be increased for FY 2012-13. 
 
Fee increases to be collected by the County vary, depending upon the land use 
category.  The Additional Fee is proposed to increase next fiscal year by $0.04 per 
parcel for Miscellaneous, Agricultural, Vacant, and Condominium land uses and by 
$0.10 per parcel for all other land uses.  The current and proposed annual fees are 
shown in the following table: 
 

134



 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The estimated share of County revenues to be collected on behalf of the City of Menlo 
Park from the FY 2012-13 Countywide program is $83,144, based on the above rates 
per parcel.  By adopting the attached resolution, Council is authorizing the County to 
levy these fees on Menlo Park properties and to use the revenue for Countywide storm 
water management activities.  If the Council chooses not to have the County collect 
these fees, the impact on City resources will be approximately $83,144 as the City is 
required by the NPDES permit to participate in the program. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The staff recommendation will result in the City’s continuing ability to comply with the 
NPDES permit and to participate in the regional Program. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental review is not required for this action. 
 
 
________________________        
Pam Lowe, P.E. Ruben Niño 
Associate Civil Engineer Assistant Public Works Director 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification consists of posting the agenda, with this item 

being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting, and publishing 
legal notices on May 24, 2012 and May 31, 2012 in The Daily 
News. 

 
ATTACHMENT:  
 
 A.  Resolution  

Land Use Category Current Fee 
FY 2011-12 

Proposed Fee 
FY 2012-13 

Proposed 
Total Fee 
Increase 
per Parcel 

Single Family Residence 
(per parcel) 

Basic                  $3.44 
Additional           $2.98 
Total                   $6.42 

Basic                $3.44 
Additional         $3.08 
Total                 $6.52 

$0.10 

Miscellaneous, Agriculture, 
Vacant, and Condominium 
(per parcel) 

Basic                  $1.72 
Additional           $1.50 
Total                   $3.22 

Basic                $1.72 
Additional         $1.54 
Total                 $3.26 

$0.04 

All Other Land Uses (per 
parcel) 

Basic                  $3.44 
Additional           $2.98 
Total                   $6.42 
 
($6.42 for the first 11,000 
sq. ft.;  
$0.58* for each additional 
1,000 sq. ft.) 
 
*$0.32 Basic fee,  
$0.26 Additional fee 

Basic                $3.44 
Additional         $3.08 
Total                 $6.52 
 
($6.52 for the first 11,000 
sq. ft.;  
$0.60 for each additional 
1,000 sq. ft.) 
 
*$0.32 Basic fee,  
$0.28 Additional fee 

$0.10 

135



RESOLUTION NO. 
 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK 
RECOMMENDING THAT THE SAN MATEO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL 
DISTRICT IMPOSE BASIC AND ADDITIONAL CHARGES FOR FUNDING THE 
SCOPE OF WORK FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 COUNTYWIDE 
NATIONAL POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM (NPDES) 
GENERAL PROGRAM 

 
WHEREAS, the Environmental Protection Agency, under amendments to the 1987 Federal 
Clean Water Act, imposed regulations that mandate local governments to control and reduce 
the amount of stormwater pollutant runoff into receiving waters; and 
 
WHEREAS, under the authority of California Porter-Cologne Water Quality Act, the State Water 
Resources Control Board has delegated authority to its regional boards to invoke permitting 
requirements upon counties and cities; and 
 
WHEREAS, in July 1991, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board notified 
San Mateo County of the requirement to submit an NPDES Permit Application by November 30, 
1992; and 
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of the NPDES Permit Process, San Mateo County in conjunction 
with all incorporated cities in San Mateo County has prepared a San Mateo Countywide 
Stormwater Management Plan which has a General Program as a fundamental component of 
the Management Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board, after a Public 
Hearing, approved the Renewed NPDES Permit CAS0029921, effective July 21, 1999, and 
which expired July 20, 2004; and 
 
WHEREAS, with the complete and timely application by the San Mateo Countywide Stormwater 
Pollution Prevention Program for Permit renewal submitted on January 23, 2004, the San 
Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board administratively extended the expiration of 
said Permit until such time as a Public Hearing is held and the application is considered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board adopted NPDES 
Permit CAS612008 on October 14, 2009, effective December 1, 2009, and which expires on 
November 30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, the San Mateo County Flood Control District Act, as amended by the State 
Legislature in 1992 (Assembly Bill 2635), authorized the San Mateo County Flood Control 
District (“District”) to impose charges to fund storm drainage programs such as the NPDES 
Countywide General Program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Basic Annual Charges and Additional Annual Charges for FY 2012-13, when 
adopted, would be necessary to fund a $3,280,270 Budget for FY 2012-13, and are as follows: 
 

Basic Annual Charges;  
 Single Family Residence:  $3.44/APN 
 Miscellaneous, Agriculture, Vacant, and Condominium:  $1.72/APN 
 All Other Land Uses:  $3.44/APN for the first 11,000 square feet plus  

$0.32 per 1,000 additional square feet of parcel area. 

ATTACHMENT A 

136



Additional Annual Charges (Adjusted Annually by C.P.I.); 
 Single Family Residence:  $3.08/APN 
 Miscellaneous, Agriculture, Vacant, and Condominium:  $1.54/APN 
 All Other Land Uses:  $3.08/APN for the first 11,000 square feet plus  

$0.28 per 1,000 additional square feet of parcel area. 
 
WHEREAS, the charges are in the nature of a sewer service charge in that they are intended to 
fund a federally mandated program the purpose of which is to create waste treatment 
management planning processes to reduce the amount of pollutants in discharges from 
property into municipal storm water systems which, in turn, discharge into the waters of the 
United States; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park has held a meeting upon the proposal to fund the 
Countywide NPDES General Program through the San Mateo County Flood Control District; the 
City Council makes the below resolve following that meeting. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND 
ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City of Menlo Park respectfully requests the San Mateo County Board of 
Supervisors, acting as the governing board of the San Mateo County Flood Control 
District, to impose those basic and additional charges necessary to fund the FY 2012-13 
Countywide NPDES General Program; and 
 

2. The City of Menlo Park requests that all properties within the territorial limits of said City 
be charged the basic and additional annual charges in accordance with said charges 
stated above; and  

 
3. The City Clerk is hereby directed to forward copies of this Resolution to the Clerk of the 

San Mateo County Board of Supervisors, the San Mateo County Flood Control District, 
the San Mateo County Engineer, and to the NPDES Coordinator of C/CAG. 

 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the foregoing Council 
Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting by said Council on the 
twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes: 
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of said City 
on this twelfth day of June 2012. 
 
 
 
     
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 

137



  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES  
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-093 

 
Agenda Item F-1  

 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS:  Adoption of Resolutions:  Adopting the 2012-13 Budget 

and Capital Improvement Program for the City of Menlo 
Park; Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal 
Year 2012-13; Establishing a Consecutive Temporary Tax 
Percentage Reduction in Utility Users Tax Rates; and 
Determining the Continued Need for Imposition of the 
Utility Users Tax per Section 3.14.310 of the Municipal 
Code 

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolutions which  
 

1. Adopt the City of Menlo Park 2012-13 Budget and Capital Improvements Program 
(Attachment A); 

2. Establish the City’s appropriations limit for the 2012-13 fiscal year (Attachment B); 
3. Effect a consecutive temporary reduction in Utility User Tax rates to continue the 

current one percent tax rate on all utilities as of October 1, 2012 (Attachment C); 
and 

4. Make findings that the utility users’ tax is necessary for the financial health of the 
City (Attachment D). 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The national recession, which began in December 2007, provided many challenges in 
the development of municipal budgets for the past four fiscal years.  California’s 
prolonged budget crisis exacerbated these fiscal challenges, faced across the State by 
all local governments and their constituents.  Because local government revenues lag 
both economic downturn and economic recovery, the slow recovery evident in many 
sectors of the economy was not a reality in municipal budgets until long after the 
recession was officially over.  Although the City had prudently accumulated General 
Fund reserves during the economic expansion, it continued to be confronted with the a 
statewide dilemma faced by all local governments:  increasing expenditures which 
continued to outpace the recovery of decreased revenues.  Pension costs, in particular 
had risen statewide, due to changes in benefit levels and investment losses in the Public 
Employees Retirement (CalPERS) system.  The City strategically reduced spending and 
re-aligned services with projected revenues by personnel and operational reductions.  
Despite the difficult economic environment, Menlo Park’s revenues began to stabilize in 
2010-11; in the current fiscal year, it appears that a modest recovery is finally underway.  

138



However, because of the uncertain pace of economic growth, staff continues its ongoing 
review and analysis of the organization in order to identify other strategies to move the 
City toward budget sustainability.   
 
The 2012-13 Budget Process  
 
Amid this slow recovery, the State dealt a severe blow to local redevelopment agencies.  
Last December, the California Supreme Court delivered its decision upholding ABx1 26 
(the “Dissolution Act”), which requires that all California redevelopment agencies, 
including the Community Development Agency (CDA) of the City of Menlo Park, be 
dissolved as of February 1, 2012.  The City needed to determine which activities 
previously funded by the CDA would be continued, and how they would be funded.  To 
the extent that alternative funding was to be provided from the General Fund, other City 
services would need to be adjusted to prevent deficit spending.  On January 30th, a study 
session was held to discuss preferred approaches for addressing the loss of 
redevelopment funding for the 2012-13 operations and capital budgets.  The City’s 
Housing Division, formerly funded largely from redevelopment revenues, was eliminated, 
resulting in a 3.0 FTE reduction.  Still, the absorption of operations previously supported 
with redevelopment funds would cost the City’s General Fund approximately $1.3 million. 
Staff was directed to pursue other approaches to help resolve the remaining budgetary 
challenges, including the advancement of new or increased revenue sources, alternative 
service delivery where efficiencies could be obtained, continued short-term cost 
reduction measures, and use of alternative funding sources. 
 
The City Manager’s Proposed Budget, presented on May 22nd, reflected a mix of these 
budget strategies.  Ultimately, the addition of Facebook Development Agreement 
revenues ($800,000 for 2012-13) allowed the proposed budget to reflect a $296,000 
surplus for the fiscal year.  Upon review of the proposed budget, the Council decided to 
suspend implementation of the cost-reduction strategy to merge the Belle Haven After 
School program with another service provider, thereby reducing the surplus somewhat.  
Although options to use the budgetary surplus to reinstate past-year service reductions 
were discussed, the Council did not support any further adjustments, citing not only the 
struggling economic recovery, but the proposed budget’s reliance on an increase in the 
City’s Hotel tax rates.  Such a tax rate increase would depend on the results of a ballot 
measure in November, at which time the issue could be revisited.   
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Overview 
 
The fiscal environment for the City of Menlo Park has change significantly over this past 
year.  While the dissolution of the redevelopment agency dealt a heavy blow to funding 
programs and projects designed to improve the Las Pulgas Community Development 
Project Area, the arrival of Facebook seeking to develop its permanent headquarters in 
Menlo Park had already begun to revitalize the area.  Over the past year, Facebook has 
transformed its 56.9 acre East Campus from an under-utilized site to one bustling with 

139



Page 3 of 12  
Staff Report #: 12-093 
 
 

 

employees and promise.  Plans for the build-out of the 22-acre West Campus (not within 
the former redevelopment area) contemplates construction of five additional buildings 
and a parking structure to complete the accommodation of the company’s long-term 
growth potential. After a year of collaborative negotiations between the City and 
Facebook, a Development Agreement which includes annual in-lieu tax revenues, one-
time payments for capital improvements, and many public benefits for the region was 
approved.  Increased sales and property tax revenues are anticipated for Menlo Park 
and San Mateo County as a whole as employment at the new headquarters is increased. 
 
As previously stated, the elimination of tax increment funding for redevelopment activities 
created a sizeable burden on the City’s budget.  In developing a resource allocation plan 
for 2012-13, many other factors had to be taken into consideration:  the impacts of prior 
year budget reductions; the City’s anticipated fiscal position at June 30, 2012; the current 
year economic environment; the availability and flexibility of the City’s Utility Users Tax; a 
number of large capital projects under way; the State’s structural budget crisis; any 
unmet operational needs; risk management issues; and the long-term effect of the City’s 
revenue environment and expenditure decisions.  All budgetary decisions needed to 
reflect the City’s goal of a sustainable budget.  A sustainable budget is one which 
provides for an appropriate level of services while maintaining adequate reserves over 
the long term - a period of years encompassing many economic cycles.  It is important to 
note that producing a “balanced” budget for the year does not necessarily equate to a 
sustainable budget for the long term, and staff remains concerned that a prolonged 
reliance on short- term budget reduction strategies continues to stress the organization.  
 
This budget includes the assumption of an increased Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT), 
rate effective January 1, 2013, which would require voter approval in November.  With 
this budget adoption, Council will also consider the on-going impact of the Utility User 
Tax (UUT), and establish the rate of this tax for the next fiscal year.  Beginning in fiscal 
year 2006-07, application of the UUT provided for opportunities for budget balancing not 
previously available in past budget-cutting cycles.  Even when applied at the reduced 
rates for most of 2007-08, the tax allowed the Council to address issues and priorities 
that were previously not feasible due to curtailed staff resources and other budget 
challenges.  It is appropriate for the Council to consider modulating the tax to make 
funds available for an approved level of General Fund programs and services without 
assessing a higher tax than is needed to sustain operations in the long term.  The 
difficulty is determining the level of future needs and providing adequately for them. 
 
The 2012-13 General Fund Budget  
 
The Proposed Budget General Fund budget is balanced and reflects the following: 
 

Revenues   $40,189,668 
Expenditures  $39,929,328 

 
The following table shows the City’s General Fund actual performance for revenues and 
expenditures in the two previous fiscal years, as well as Adopted, Adjusted and 
Proposed budgets for the current year (2011-12).  The Proposed Budget column of the 

140



table reflects a summary of the General Fund budget in the City Manager’s proposed 
budget for 2012-13, presented as a public hearing item at the Council’s regular meeting 
on May 22nd, as adjusted by the Council at that meeting.   
 
Consistent with previous budgetary presentations, new funding of the Downtown/El 
Camino Real Specific Plan, initiated in December 2008, is shown “below the line” – 
funded from General Fund reserves accumulated in prior years. 
 
 

 
2004-05 
Actual 

2005-06 
Actual 

2006-07 
Adopted 
Budget 

2006-07 -
year 

 2006-07 
Adjusted  

 2006-07 
Estimate  

2007-08 
Projected 

 
With total revenues of $40.2 million and expenditures of $39.9 million, the 2012-13 
General Fund Budget as proposed shows a $260,000 surplus. Note that the 2012-13 
revenue forecast assumes an increase in the Hotel Tax (TOT) beginning January 1, 
2013, and a continuation of the temporary UUT rate reduction (one percent on all 
utilities) through the entire fiscal year.   
 
Budgets are staff’s best estimate of expenditures and revenues.  In these uncertain 
economic times, and although every attempt has been made to avoid over-estimating the 
year’s revenues, the possibility that 2012-13 revenues will not be realized still exists.  As 
always, the City’s budget will be carefully monitored and adjusted for actualities as the 
fiscal year unfolds. 
 

General Fund       
Summary                      

2009-10 
Actual

2010-11 
Actual

2011-12 
Adopted 
Budget

2011-12 
Adjusted 
Budget

2012-13 
Proposed 
Budget

Revenues:
Property Taxes 12,603,742 12,811,324 13,021,000 13,021,000 13,658,000
Sales Tax 5,499,244 5,988,055 6,203,000 6,203,000 6,330,000
Transient Occupancy Tax 2,074,486 2,453,981 2,580,000 2,920,000 3,326,000
Utility Users Tax 1,148,454 1,122,940 1,249,000 1,135,900 1,180,500
Franchise Fees 1,508,666 1,677,016 1,743,000 1,768,000 1,873,500
Licenses & Permits 2,738,638 3,239,561 3,307,140 3,371,465 4,266,464
Intergovernmental 1,811,140 1,946,156 1,227,631 1,140,552 911,263
Fines 1,028,825 953,195 970,000 980,000 1,085,200
Interest and Rent Income 849,023 575,758 925,438 681,188 770,018
Charges for Services 5,210,044 5,246,251 5,425,265 6,030,515 6,370,600
Transfers & Other 744,583 730,506 707,125 589,559 418,123
Total Revenue 35,216,845 36,744,743 37,358,599 37,841,179 40,189,668

Expenditures:
Personnel 26,960,643 26,845,801 26,929,726 27,380,264 28,612,146
Operating 4,726,739 4,614,493 5,292,416 5,359,878 5,709,452
Contract Services 2,677,924 2,250,245 2,758,657 3,547,700 3,143,402
Transfers Out 2,132,656 2,267,950 2,377,800 2,377,800 2,464,328
Total Expenditures 36,497,962 35,978,489 37,358,599 38,665,642 39,929,328

Net Operating Revenue (1,281,117) 766,254 0 (824,463) 260,340
Add:  Downtown/ECR Specific Plan Expenses (225,980)
Total draw on General Fund Reserves (1,050,443)

141



Page 5 of 12  
Staff Report #: 12-093 
 
 

 

General Fund Budget Highlights 
 
Because of the slow and uncertain pace of economic growth, General Fund revenues 
were projected to grow only mildly in many revenue categories.  However, the infusion of 
new revenues from Facebook ($800,000 in 2012-13), a healthy growth in assessed 
property values, an assumed increase in the TOT rate, and increased revenues from the 
City’s new recreation facilities, revenues are expected to grow 7.5 percent over last 
year’s adopted budget.  Even with decreases anticipated in several of the City’s revenue 
categories over the prior year’s adopted budget – Intergovernmental, Interest Income 
and Transfers In revenues will be over $2.3 million higher than anticipated for the current 
fiscal year.  
 
However, the 2012-13 proposed expenditures also reflect a similar increase over the 
prior year, due largely to the assimilation of activities previously funded from 
redevelopment revenues into the General Fund budget.  Although some of the costs 
were absorbed by other funds where appropriate, non-personnel costs alone increased 
nearly $300,000 for these activities.  Four FTEs for the narcotics task force served to 
increase personnel costs for the General Fund by over $800,000, and full funding for all 
permanent positions – with no allowance for vacancies – added an additional $500,000.  
In some departments, (particularly Community Development and Community Services) 
increased operational costs are offset with increased revenues in the “Charges for 
Services” category.   
 
Departmental expenditure budgets were also held at bay through heavy reliance on cost 
reduction strategies from previous fiscal years.  In all departments, training budgets 
continue to be limited, during a time when preservation of technical skills within the 
organization is increasingly critical.  A continued freeze on wages is also not a long-term 
solution, as the City needs a competitive compensation package in order to be able to 
attract and retain quality employees.  Such strategies are neither sustainable nor 
conducive to a healthy organization that strives to deliver high quality services on a 
consistent basis.  However, these strategies remain in place.  
 
Last year, a separate “Comprehensive Planning Fund” was created for the explicit intent 
of financing long-range planning projects without impacting the costs of on-going 
programs and activities within the General Fund.  This fund will eliminate the need for 
“below the line” presentation of the General Fund budget.  The City faces significant 
operating outflows over the next several years for large, comprehensive planning 
projects.  In reality, the new fund will be reported as a “sub-fund” of the General Fund for 
financial reporting purposes.  But as a source of funds for long-range projects, prior year 
appropriations will be carried forward to subsequent fiscal years.  Current plans to jump-
start work on the Housing Element before the 2011-12 fiscal yearend will exacerbate the 
new fund’s shortfall.  However, Council has recently approved a Specific Plan 
Preparation fee that will serve to offset the (past) cost of that project, fueling other 
comprehensive planning projects going forward.  Such fees, along with an annual 
allocation from development fees, should provide a source of on-going revenues to the 
Comprehensive Planning Fund. 
 

142



It should be noted that the 2012-13 budget provides for a $2.25 million transfer to the 
General Capital Improvement Fund, a four percent increase over the prior year’s full 
transfer for infrastructure maintenance.  This transfer was not increased over the past 
four years, and was frequently reduced to lessen the burden to the General Fund during 
the years most heavily impacted by the recession.  This year, the Gas Tax Fund will 
contribute $250,000 of this transfer, to support funding for the Street Resurfacing Project, 
and allow the General Fund to devote $250,000 to Comprehensive Planning Projects. 
 
Changes from City Manager’s Proposed Budget Presented on May 22nd  
 
As previously mentioned, staff was directed to adjust the City Manager’s 2012-13 
proposed budget to add back expenditures related to the continuation of the Belle Haven 
After School Program through the new fiscal year.  The cost-reduction strategy providing 
this service through a “shared service” contract with the Boys and Girls Club was to have 
saved $109,000 in 2012-13, and $192,000 in subsequent fiscal years.  However, given 
the surplus position of the General Fund as proposed, Council decided to retain the 
program so that other alternatives could be explored with the parents and the community 
utilizing this service.    Adjustments in revenue for the program are reflected in increased 
charges for services (largely parental fees charged for the after school service).  Savings 
in contract services ($60,000 for the shared service contract) are offset by increased 
personnel and operating costs to continue the program.  When posting these 
adjustments it was noted that the cost of a part-time position had been erroneously 
funded within other Community Services programs.  When this was corrected, the total 
adjustment to the budgeted surplus was a reduction of $35,650. 
 
Recent budget amendments for the current fiscal year were also captured in the revised 
budget:  the carry-forward fund balances reflect the additional $714,000 commitment to 
the Housing Element Update project in the Comprehensive Planning Projects Fund 
(General Fund); and the loan to Human Investment Project (HIP) Housing for $1.8 million 
served to decrease the Below Market Rate (BMR) Fund’s unrestricted balance. 
 
Changes to the General Fund Long-Term Forecast  
 
At the May 22nd meeting, the Council considered not only the City Manager’s Proposed 
Budget for the year, but also the General Fund 10-year Forecast.  The 2012-13 
proposed budget was used as the “base year” for the 10-year Forecast , so as a result of 
the Council-directed changes to General Fund revenues and expenditures indicated 
above for the 2012-13 fiscal year, the 10-year Forecast was also revised (Attachment E). 
The decrease in the 2012-13 budgeted surplus caused a similar decrease in any net 
revenue forecast in future years.   
 
The long-term forecast for the General Fund presented with the May 22nd staff report 
reflects expenditure growth that coincides with the projected pace of future General Fund 
revenues – a delicate balance that does not indicate additional resources for 
unanticipated changes.  If, due to further economic downturns or unanticipated 
expenditure increases, a structural imbalance is created, future deficit spending may be 
mitigated to the extent that the City is able to grow its revenues through business 

143



Page 7 of 12  
Staff Report #: 12-093 
 
 

 

development or other measures.  If revenues are not increased, the City may face 
continued challenges of unfunded (or under-funded) needs that cannot be well quantified 
in the 10-year forecast.  Further reductions in the ongoing costs of municipal services 
would be required, with a potential decline in the level of services currently provided.   
 
Utility Users’ Tax (UUT) Rate Considerations 
 
As previously mentioned, Council first reduced the UUT to a rate of one percent rate for 
all utilities after examining the City’s long-term forecast in their considerations of the 
2007-08 fiscal year budget.  The reduced rates have been reconfirmed (for twelve 
months) with each subsequent fiscal year budget.  Council has expressed an 
unwillingness to adjust the UUT and therefore, the City Council will need to adopt a 
resolution to effect a consecutive temporary reduction in Utility Users’ Tax rates, to 
continue the current one percent tax rate on all utilities as of October 1, 2012 
(Attachment C). 
 
At the current one percent rate, approximately 64.7 percent of the City’s UUT revenue is 
collected on electric, gas and water usage, and 35.3 percent is collected on 
telecommunication and cable utilities, for annual receipts of nearly $1.2 million.  At the 
maximum rates established by the ordinance, the $12,000 cap benefits a greater number 
of large utility users, affecting net collections considerably.  Collections under the 
maximum rates would amount to around $3.6 million. Note that the cost of utilities, large-
scale changes in utility usage and the weather can significantly impact UUT revenues.   
 
Temporary tax rate reductions for a period of up to twelve months can be implemented 
with the specific finding provided in the UUT ordinance:   
 

The temporary tax reduction shall not adversely affect the City’s 
ability to meet its financial obligations as contemplated in its current 
or its proposed budget.” 

 
Such a finding is included in the Resolution Temporarily Reducing the Utility Users, Tax 
Rate Effective October 1, 2012, Attachment C to this report.  If the Council does not 
establish a continuation of the tax at some reduced rate, the original tax percentages 
would be automatically reinstated as of October 1, 2012.  In order to allow staff to give 
affected utility service suppliers adequate notification of any change in the tax rate, 
Council must make this determination by June 30th. 
 
Also, the Utility Users’ Tax Ordinance requires the City Council to review the need for the 
tax not later than June 30, 2008, and every two years thereafter.  As a part of the 2012-
13 budget process, the Council must therefore, by a two thirds (2/3) vote, make findings 
that  the UUT is necessary for the financial health of the City (Attachment D), or the tax 
will be discontinued as of December 31, 2012.   
 
  

144



The Capital Fund Budget 
 
The City’s 5-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), in use for the past three years, 
provides a useful resource allocation tool, increasing clarity regarding project status by 
distinguishing between funded projects, proposed projects, planned projects and 
unfunded projects.  Having a multi-year plan for capital spending allows the City to 
optimize its resources through improved long-term planning for major undertakings 
aligned with Council goals.  A yearly update of the Capital Improvement Plan replaces 
the previous (annual) project prioritization and allows for a more effective process for 
scheduling and funding the City’s major projects.   In addition, because capital projects 
are planned over the longer-term, the impact of the redevelopment agency dissolution 
could quickly be analyzed.  Planned projects which could not be initiated due to the 
dissolution amounted to over $7.4 million (Staff report #12-015, January 24, 2012). 
 
Projects recommended in the 5-Year CIP for fiscal year 2012-13 include 21 new capital 
and infrastructure maintenance projects for a total of $2.4 million.  This expenditure is 
slightly more than the proposed transfer from the General Fund of $2.25 million, even 
though the 2012-13 capital budget does not include the large, bi-annual street 
resurfacing project.  The General Fund CIP has an uncommitted fund balance – 
projected to be over $4.6 million at the end of the 2012-13 fiscal year – with which to 
absorb year-to-year fluctuations in spending.  The absence of redevelopment funding will 
add an additional burden to the General Fund CIP and emphasizes the need for an 
appropriate amount of annual funding to maintain the City’s infrastructure.  
  
Each of the 2012-13 capital projects is described in full, along with budget amounts and 
funding sources, at the end of the 2012-13 Budget document starting on page 171. 
 
Other Funds 
 
The elimination of redevelopment agencies as of January 31, 2012 had an immediate 
and severe impact on the City’s ability to provide services in the Las Pulgas Community 
Development Project Area.  Assets in all the City’s redevelopment funds, including the 
new funds created to account for the redevelopment services and public improvement 
agreements between the Agency and the City, were frozen.  Activities of the Agency for 
the truncated fiscal period were limited to operations of the Agency through January 31, 
2012, and payments for obligations of the agency prior to July 1, 2011.  Tax increment 
for the 2011-12 fiscal year was placed in the County’s RPTTF (Redevelopment Property 
Tax Trust Fund) for the former agency, and utilized to pay these obligations, including 
negotiated and statutory pass-through payments, the County Controller’s administrative 
costs, and the City’s administrative allowance for serving as Successor Agency.  
Remaining monies were to be distributed to local agencies and school entities as regular 
property taxes.  
 
Although the calculations on the allocation of remaining tax increment revenues is still 
underway, the City will receive an estimated $140,000 of additional regular 2011-12 
property tax revenues as a result of the dissolution of the redevelopment agency.  This 
was largely anticipated at mid-year, and incorporated into the analysis of potential 

145



Page 9 of 12  
Staff Report #: 12-093 
 
 

 

funding scenarios for continuation of the City’s redevelopment activities.  Options for the 
use of “other funding sources” for these activities were also examined at mid-year and in 
the development of the 2012-13 budget; however, few such options are sustainable in 
the long-term.  One-time revenues will be used to fund specific developmental impacts, 
but the fact remains that the demands for capital funding will be high in future years. 
 
Total Proposed Budget (All Funds) 
 
In total, the Budget Report identifies nearly $67.6 million of expenditure budgets 
(excluding transfers to other funds) for all funds combined.  Of this amount, nearly $33.1 
million is appropriated for the fiscal year’s personnel costs.  It is well recognized that 
many local government services are labor-intensive, and personnel costs comprise the 
greater part of most municipal spending.  On page 11 of the 2012-13 Budget document, 
the pie chart, “General Fund Expenditures by Category” shows that personnel costs 
make up 71.7 percent of the General Fund budget.  But this is the largest operating fund 
in the City, and does not provide funding for large capital projects.  To provide a better 
approximation of the percentage of personnel costs of all City budgets, staff used the 
average of actual expenditures for the past five years (including estimates of 2011-12 
spending) to illustrate the typical percentage of personnel costs across all funds in Menlo 
Park’s annual budget.   
 

 
 
 

         

Category
2007-08 
Actual

2008-09 
Actual

2009-10 
Actual

2010-11 
Actual

2011-12 
Estimate Average Average %

Operating 33,693,754 24,394,311 29,166,954 43,155,005 28,653,599 31,812,725 45%
Personnel 30,463,588 32,561,701 32,156,117 32,330,749 31,726,816 31,847,794 45%
Services 6,674,500 7,110,105 7,417,420 6,931,344 6,346,427 6,895,959 10%
Total Expenditures 70,831,842 64,066,117 68,740,491 82,417,098 66,726,842 70,556,478 100%

Operating
45%

Personnel
45%

Services
10%

All Funds 
Five Years Average*

Operating

Personnel

Services

*Actual 2008,2009,2010, & 2011, Estimate 2012

146



All revenues and expenditures are reflected in total in the fund summary pages of the 
2012-13 Budget document beginning on page 165.  In addition, an update to the 
Schedule of Fund Balances, 2001-2011 is attached as Attachment F to this report.  The 
fund balances may not be the same as shown in the Budget Report due to restrictions on 
certain fund assets.   
 
The Budget Document 
 
The changes to the City Manager’s Proposed 2012-13 Budget Report as presented to 
the Council at the public hearing of May 22nd  resulted in changes to both the General 
Fund revenue or expenditure appropriations as previously described.  Other adjustments 
were the result of ongoing review of the document.   
 
Several status descriptions for select performance measure results have also been 
updated or clarified.  Results for these performance results indicate staff exceeded the 
measure for 89 indicators; met the measure for 91 indicators; did not meet the measure 
for 44 indicators; nine performance results were not applicable this year due to program 
changes or work cycles; and thirteen results were not measured this year.  Overall, of 
the 224 “measured and applicable results” departments achieved or exceeded 180 for a 
positive result percentage of 80.4 percent.   
 
The 2012-13 Budget Report transmittal letter is included as Attachment F to this report, 
and prepared with the assumption that the budget will be officially adopted by the City 
Council at its June 12th meeting.  The report contains information about the entire City 
government’s operations.  The Table of Contents is helpful in orienting the reader to 
other sections of the document.  In the back of the report is information about the City’s 
estimated fund balances and the planned Capital Improvements projects for 2012-13. 
 
Distributed with the June 12th Council packet, the report is also available on-line at 
http://www.menlopark.org/departments/fin/2012_13_AdoptedBudget.pdf.   
 
Appropriations Limit 
 
The City’s appropriation limit for this budget cycle has been prepared in accordance with 
uniform guidelines.  The appropriations limit imposed by state regulations creates a 
restriction on the amount of “proceeds of taxes” which can be appropriated by the City in 
any fiscal year.  The limit is based on actual appropriations during the 1978-79 fiscal 
year, as increased each year using growth of population and inflation indexes.  The 
appropriation of tax proceeds limit of $45,896,524 for 2012-13 is significantly greater 
than the $29,018,822 of proposed City expenditures that is subject to the limit for this 
year.  Therefore, the City is well within its appropriation limit.  
 
Summary 
 
Over recent budget cycles, the City has attempted to keep spending levels in line with 
revenues.  In addition, staff has endeavored to eliminate one-time revenues and 
expenditures from the General Fund operating budget so as to gain fiscal consistency 

147

http://www.menlopark.org/departments/fin/2012_13_AdoptedBudget.pdf�


Page 11 of 12  
Staff Report #: 12-093 
 
 

 

and comparability from year-to-year.  The following table summarizes the General Fund 
activity for the past five fiscal years compared to the 2012-13 budget.  
 

 
 
It should be noted that expenditures included various extraordinary items:  in 2007-08 
transfers included $9.4 million to fund the City’s prior years’ retiree medical benefits 
liability, as well as $2.6 million to fund the City’s contribution to the construction of the 
Menlo-Atherton Performing Arts Center. Expenditures in 2010-11 included the payoff of 
the CalPERS Safety Side fund, of which $6.59 million was drawn from General Fund 
reserves.  The transfer from the General Fund to maintain the City’s infrastructure has 
also been modified throughout the recession:  this transfer was nearly $2.1 million in 
2007-08, but was reduced in both 2008-09 (to $1.36 million) and 2009-10 (to $1.92 
million) as a result of the mid-year budget analyses, to reduce the General Fund deficit in 
those years.  In the 2012-13 budget, the transfer to the General CIP Fund is $2,249,728.   
 
Despite the uncertain economic environment, an extension of the current reduced UUT 
rates is reflected as a measured approach towards determining the optimal level of tax 
needed for ongoing fiscal stability. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The General Fund budget for the 2012-13 fiscal year calls for projected revenues of 
$40,189,668 and expenditures of $39,929,328. The General Fund balance is estimated 
to be $20.2 million at the end of fiscal year 2012-13.  Estimated increases or decreases 
to other fund balances are shown on pages 168 through 170 of the 2012-13 Budget 
document. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The proposed action is consistent with existing policy and in keeping with the goal of a 
sustainable General Fund operating budget.   
 
 
 
   
Alex D. McIntyre   Carol Augustine 
City Manager  Finance Director 
 
 

FY 2007-08 FY 2008-09 FY 2009-10 FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13
Actual Actual Actual Actual Estimated Proposed

Revenues 37.87 34.94 34.52 36.04 37.55 39.80 
Expenditures 32.59 34.50 34.36 33.70 34.36 37.46 
Net Transfers (13.65) (1.01) (1.44) (8.16) (1.82) (2.08)
Net Revenue (8.37) (0.57) (1.28) (5.82) 1.37 0.26 

GENERAL 
FUND

148



NOTICE 
 
Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this agenda item being listed, 
at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A.  Resolution adopting the Fiscal Year 2012-13 Budget and Capital Improvement 
Program 

B.  Resolution Establishing Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2012-13 
C.  Resolution Temporarily Reducing the Utility Users Tax Rate Effective October 1, 2012 
D.  Resolution Determining that the Utility Users Tax is Necessary for the Financial 

Health of the City 
E.  Revised 10-year Forecast 
F.  Revised Schedule of Fund Balances, 2002-2011 
G. Transmittal Letter (pages 1- 8) of the 2012-13 Budget Report 

149



ATTACHMENT A 
 

 

 RESOLUTION NO.  
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO 
PARK ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011-12 AND 
ADOPTING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE 
FISCAL YEAR 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park, acting by and through its City Council, having 
considered the proposed budget document dated June 2012 and related written and 
oral information at the meeting held June 12, 2012, and the City Council having been 
fully advised in the matter and good cause appearing therefore. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park 
that the City Council does hereby adopt the budget for the fiscal year 2012-13 as set 
forth in the proposed budget presented to the City Council; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Menlo Park that the City 
Council does hereby adopt the Capital Improvement Program for the fiscal year as set 
forth in the draft budget presented to the City Council. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:     
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 

150



RESOLUTION NO. 
 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK ESTABLISHING 
APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 

 
 
WHEREAS, Article XIII B of the Constitution of the State of California places various 
limitations on the City’s powers of appropriation; and 
 
WHEREAS, Division 9 (commencing with Section 7900) of the Government Code 
implements said Article XIII B and requires that each local jurisdiction shall, by 
resolution, establish its appropriations limit for the following year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Menlo Park population percentage change over the prior year is 
0.99 percent and the California per capita personal income change is 3.77 percent, both 
factors in calculating the appropriations limit. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Menlo Park at its 
regular meeting of June 12, 2012 hereby establishes the appropriations limit as the 
amount of $45,896,524 for Fiscal Year 2012-13, calculated in accordance with the 
provisions of Division 9 (commencing with Section 7900) of the California Government 
Code. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk 

151



   ATTACHMENT C 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK ESTABLISHING A 
TEMPORARY TAX PERCENTAGE REDUCTION IN THE UTILITY 
USERS TAX PERSUANT TO SECTION 3.14.130 OF THE CITY OF 
MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL CODE 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 950 of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park Adopting a 
Utility Users Tax became effective upon approval by a majority of voters at the General 
Election of November 7, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 950 established Chapter 3.14 of the City of Menlo Park 
Municipal Code, this chapter known as the “Utility Users Tax Ordinance”; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Utility Users Tax Ordinance Section 3.14.130 allows the City Council 
to enact a Temporary Tax Percentage Reduction for a period of no more than twelve 
(12) months; provided adequate written notice is given to all affected service suppliers; 
and  
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council established a temporary tax reduction in consideration of 
the adopted budget for the fiscal year 2007-08, effective October 1, 2007; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council established a temporary tax reduction in consideration of 
the adopted budget for the fiscal year 2008-09, effective October 1, 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council re-established the temporary tax reduction in 
consideration of the adopted budget for the fiscal year 2009-10, effective October 1, 
2009; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council re-established the temporary tax reduction in 
consideration of the adopted budget for the fiscal year 2010-11, effective October 1, 
2010; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council re-established the temporary tax reduction in 
consideration of the adopted budget for the fiscal year 2011-12, effective October 1, 
2011; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council is not prohibited from adopting consecutive temporary tax 
percentage reductions as provided by Section 3.14.130 of the Utility Users Tax 
Ordinance; and  
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council now finds that a consecutive temporary tax reduction shall 
not adversely affect the City’s ability to meet its financial obligations as contemplated in 
the budget for the fiscal year 2012-13, considered and adopted at its regular meeting of 
June 12, 2012.  
 

152



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Menlo Park at its 
regular meeting of June 12, 2012 hereby establishes a temporary reduction in the Utility 
Users Tax rate, maintaining the current reduced rate of one percent (1.0%) for taxes 
imposed by sections 3.14.040 through 3.14.070 for a period of no more than twelve (12) 
months, effective October 1, 2012.  No other provisions of the Utility Users Tax 
Ordinance are affected by this resolution.  Nothing herein shall preclude the City 
Council from modifying the tax rate set herein during said twelve month period. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk   
  
  

153



ATTACHMENT D 
 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 
 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK DETERMINING THAT 
THE UTILITY USERS TAX, PERSUANT TO SECTION 3.14 OF THE 
CITY OF MENLO PARK MUNICIPAL CODE, IS NECESSARY FOR THE 
FINANCIAL HEALTH OF THE CITY 

 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 950 of the City Council of the City of Menlo Park Adopting a 
Utility Users Tax became effective upon approval by a majority of voters at the General 
Election of November 7, 2006; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 950 established Chapter 3.14 of the City of Menlo Park 
Municipal Code, this chapter known as the “Utility Users Tax Ordinance”; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Utility Users Tax Ordinance Section 3.14.310 requires the City Council 
to review the need for the tax not later than June 30, 2008, and every two years 
thereafter by a two-thirds vote; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the City Council finds that the Utility users tax is necessary for the financial 
health of the City pursuant to the Utility Users Tax Ordinance Section 3.14.310.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of Menlo Park at its 
regular meeting of June 12, 2012 hereby finds and determines that the Utility Users Tax 
imposed by Section 3.14 of the City of Menlo Park Municipal Code is necessary for the 
financial health of the City. 
 
I, Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk of Menlo Park, do hereby certify that the above and 
foregoing Council Resolution was duly and regularly passed and adopted at a meeting 
by said Council on the twelfth day of June, 2012, by the following votes:  
  
AYES:    
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
ABSTAIN:   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the Official Seal of 
said City on this twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC  
City Clerk   

156



City of Menlo Park 
General Fund 10-Year Projection  (1)

Adjusted Proposed
Budget Budget Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast Forecast

Revenue Categories Scenario 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Property Taxes Most Likely $13,021,000 (2)     $13,658,000 (2)    $14,231,676 (2)    $14,833,746 $15,427,096 $16,044,180 $16,685,947 $17,353,385 $18,047,520 $18,769,421 $19,520,198 $20,301,006
Sales Tax Most Likely 6,203,000       (3)     6,330,000       (3)    6,492,200       6,751,888       7,021,964       7,302,842       7,594,956       7,898,754       8,214,704       8,543,292       8,885,024      9,240,425       
Transient Occupancy Tax Most Likely  2,920,000       (4)     3,326,000       (4)    3,758,380       3,908,715       4,065,063       4,227,666       4,396,773       4,572,644       4,755,549       4,945,771       5,143,602      5,349,346       
Utility Users' Tax     Most Likely 1,135,900       (5)     1,180,500       1,226,760       1,274,870       1,324,905       1,376,941       1,431,059       1,487,341       1,545,875       1,606,749       1,670,059      1,735,902       
Franchise Fees    Most Likely 1,768,000       1,873,500       1,948,440       2,026,378       2,107,433       2,191,730       2,279,399       2,370,575       2,465,398       2,564,014       2,666,575      2,773,238       
Licenses and Permits                  (6) Most Likely 3,371,465       4,266,465       4,405,127       4,549,322       4,699,273       4,855,209       5,117,074       5,285,748       5,461,154       5,643,562       5,833,252      6,130,064       
Intergovernmental Revenue Most Likely  1,140,552       (7)     911,263          947,714          985,622          1,025,047       1,066,049       1,108,691       1,153,038       1,199,160       1,247,126       1,297,011      1,348,892       
Fines & Forfeitures Most Likely 980,000          1,085,200       1,128,608       1,173,752       1,220,702       1,269,530       1,320,311       1,373,124       1,428,049       1,485,171       1,544,578      1,606,361       
Interest & Rent Income Most Likely (8)      681,188          (8)     770,018          (8)    852,719          (8)    946,153          (8)  1,051,863       (8)  1,171,621       1,220,885       1,272,121       1,325,406       1,380,822       1,438,455      1,498,393       
Charges for Services                    (9) Most Likely 6,030,515       (9) 6,370,599       (9)    6,289,015       6,528,799       6,778,116       7,037,346       7,306,886       7,587,147       7,878,559       8,181,567       8,496,635      8,824,244       
Donations Most Likely 29,050            29,050            30,212            31,420            32,677            33,984            35,344            36,758            38,228            39,757            41,347           43,001            
Other Financing Sources Most Likely (10) 560,509          389,073          404,636          420,821          437,654          455,160          473,367          492,301          511,993          532,473          553,772         575,923          
Total Revenues 37,841,179$   40,189,668$   41,715,486$   43,431,487$   45,191,792$   47,032,257$   48,970,691$   50,882,935$   52,871,595$   54,939,727$   57,090,508$   59,426,794$   

Expenditure Categories
510 - Salaries and Wages     Most Likely (11)    $19,928,789 (11)   $20,615,888 (11)  $21,234,364 $22,083,739 $22,967,088 $23,885,772 $24,841,203 $25,834,851 $26,868,245 $27,942,975 $29,060,694 $30,223,121
520 - Benefits           Most Likely (12)    7,451,483       (12)   7,996,259       (12)  8,766,298       (12)  9,081,885       9,445,161       9,822,967       10,215,886     10,624,521     11,049,502     11,491,482     11,951,141     12,429,187     
530 - Operating Expense Most Likely (13)    2,733,665       2,993,836       3,113,590       3,238,133       3,367,658       3,502,365       3,642,459       3,788,158       3,939,684       4,097,271       4,261,162      4,431,609       
540 - Utilities Most Likely 1,097,935       1,152,016       1,198,097       1,246,020       1,295,861       1,347,696       1,401,604       1,457,668       1,515,974       1,576,613       1,639,678      1,705,265       
550 - Services Most Likely (13)    3,782,460         (13) 3,143,402       3,127,685       3,252,792       3,382,904       3,518,220       3,658,949       3,805,307       3,957,519       4,115,820       4,280,453      4,451,671       
560 - Fixed Assets & Capital Outlay Most Likely (13)    287,312          278,612          289,756          301,347          313,401          325,937          338,974          352,533          366,634          381,300          396,552         412,414          
570 - Travel Most Likely 51,106            55,655            57,881            60,196            62,604            65,108            67,713            70,421            73,238            76,168            79,214           82,383            
580 - Repairs & Maintenance Most Likely (13)    923,597          866,878          901,553          937,615          975,120          1,014,125       1,054,690       1,096,877       1,140,752       1,186,382       1,233,838      1,283,191       
590 - Special Projects Expenditures Most Likely (13)    257,478          362,454          376,952          392,030          407,712          424,020          440,981          458,620          476,965          496,043          515,885         536,521          
590 - Transfers Out Most Likely 2,377,800       2,464,328       2,562,901       2,665,417       2,772,034       2,882,915       2,998,232       3,118,161       3,242,888       3,372,603       3,507,507      3,647,808       
Total Expenditures $38,891,625 $39,929,328 $41,629,078 $43,259,176 $44,989,543 $46,789,125 $48,660,690 $50,607,117 $52,631,402 $54,736,658 $56,926,124 $59,203,169

Total Impact to Fund Balance ($1,050,446) 260,340$        $86,408 $172,311 $202,249 $243,133 $310,001 $275,818 $240,193 $203,068 $164,384 $223,624
Encumbrances and Reappropriations (13)    419,900
Downtown El Camino Specific Plan (13)    225,980
Net Operating Revenue ($404,566) $260,340 $86,408 $172,311 $202,249 $243,133 $310,001 $275,818 $240,193 $203,068 $164,384 $223,624

Notes to 10-year Forecast:

(3)   Sales Tax to grow 2% in 2012-13; 2.5% 2013-14; 4% growth thereafter.
(4)   Assumes TOT rate increase January 2013 from 10% to 12%.
(5)   Assumes 1% UUT tax rate on all utilities;  assumes no change on UUT tax cap payers.
(6)   Licenses and permits increase due to annual payment from Facebook: 2013-2017 ($800,000); 2018-2022 ($900,000); 2023-2027 ($1,000,000) CPI thereafter.
(7)   Intergovernmental revenues to decrease in 2012-13, San Carlos Dispatch contract expired November 2011.
(8)   Portfolio earnings recover slowly with yields growing by 2016-17.
(9)    Charges for Services increase 5% in 2012-13; Community Services increased utilization of City facilities; planning fees adjusted downward by 2013-14. Includes $250,000 from County for administering Successor Agency and does not assume 4% inflation growth.
(10)  Other Financing Sources decrease due to RDA dissolution.
(11)  Reduction in dispatch; San Carlos dispatch contract expired November 2011; Salaries & Wages up 3% in 2013-14.
(12)  CalPERS rate increases assumed through 2015; labor concessions included.
(13)  Encumbrance carryover included $419,900 and $225,980 for Specific Plan; but removed from forecast calculation. Includes full cost of San Francisquito Creek JPA annual cost ($108,0000 in 2012-13)
Does not assume:
      Sale of property or other General Fund assets
      Menlo Gateway development revenue
      Acquisition of additional parks and or facilities

(2)   Property Tax increases 4.9% in 2012-13 and 4.2% by 2014-15; Facebook tenant improvements complete by 2014-15

(1)   Revenues and expenditures are generally anticipated to grow by inflation of 4% unless otherwise indicated. 

Attachment E

155



Schedule of Fund Balances ATTACHMENT F
6/30/2013 6/30/2012 6/30/2011 6/30/2010 6/30/2009 6/30/2008 6/30/2007 6/30/2006 6/30/2005 6/30/2004 6/30/2003 6/30/2002 6/30/2001

(Proposed) (Estimated)  
General Fund 20,233,781 20,381,246 19,605,935 23,831,011 24,744,493 26,603,074    35,121,304    33,613,206    29,149,898    30,153,559    29,289,927    27,842,190    25,470,496    

Internal Service Funds
101 Workers Compensation 1,251,066 1,345,639 1,138,745 1,415,711    1,337,642 901,967         409,059         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
102 Liability/Fire Insurance 151,737 (17,663) 109,056 (101,679)     (299,254) (10,261)         (123,083)       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
103 Other Post Employment Benefits 34,828 34,828 (27,900) (1,544)         (1,313) 160,409         473,897         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
507 Vehicle Replacement Fund 347,479 554,593 638,211 608,895       84,350 107,502         136,140         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

1,785,110 1,917,397 1,858,112 1,921,383 1,121,425 1,159,617      896,013         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

852&854 Community Development Agency 0 0 43,138 20,491,316  22,216,042 20,498,461    17,371,387    15,427,842    15,642,527    12,576,777    12,605,830    14,174,377    19,460,337    
837 Community Dev Block Grant 698,970 698,970 698,971 699,741       602,704 455,067         68,013           9,683             731                566                -                -                -                
833 Redevelopment Services Agreement 0 0 9,910,456
859 Public Improvements Grant Fund 0 0 7,833,014
835 Highway Users Tax 3,257,177 2,781,109 2,074,556 1,999,033 1,411,919 1,228,501 1,556,580 1,649,179 1,004,645 747,214 799,076 534,332
842 Traffic Congestion Relief 492,485 492,485 487,985 756,383       603,778 415,852         392,330         142,543         1,208             89,903           -                346,515         1,523,331      
836 Federal Revenue Sharing 29,678 27,678 25,359 58,529         63,382 68,580           62,211           52,531           73,501           75,226           71,249           65,344           145,181         
839 Sidewalk Assessment 272,380 282,159 534,109 501,647       531,580 387,200         504,314         423,113         340,001         198,087         134,867         95,861           58,836           
838 Landscape Tree Assessment 33,887 98,224 167,550 258,837       272,820 290,105         95,654           226,816         411,946         507,500         479,383         412,800         73,480           
754 Bedwell Bayfront Park Landfill 3,376,431 2,945,614 2,492,160 1,941,854    1,549,600 1,126,110      858,832         582,552         350,203         156,691         -                -                310,254         
832 Below Market Rate Housing 8,113,927 8,176,927 10,446,150 10,588,890  11,344,082 8,534,592      7,854,813      4,662,381      4,679,802      4,594,069      4,353,231      4,421,518      -                
834 County Transportation Tax 595,754 885,803 1,036,246 1,606,065    1,602,733 1,951,700      1,668,963      1,588,060      1,603,227      1,521,334      1,597,169      1,790,854      4,235,611      
452 Public Library 69,344 90,429 104,560 93,551         113,149 146,002         138,435         120,743         108,959         96,730           81,951           67,626           1,839,257      

Literacy Grants 45,760 45,760 33,730 35,187         33,474 10,206           20,445           16,425           20,572           32,904           41,748           36,555           97,559           
705 Narcotic Seizure 4,000 39,090 35,861 37,196         21,888 17,014           14,205           8,772             10,025           6,610             4,128             7,576             55,066           
710 Traffic Impact Fees 2,035,020 2,969,057 1,852,968 611,326       773,635 1,009,640      751,859         477,291         519,592         615,930         1,525,741      1,238,699      5,138             
758 Downtown Parking Permits 2,806,200 2,608,344 3,077,572 2,831,914    2,680,568 2,383,034      2,051,964      1,453,384      1,641,182      1,378,146      1,092,487      780,753         1,772,750      
713 Storm Drainage Fees 190,601 185,601 184,451 258,670       253,843 234,247         182,778         14,081           80                  71                  -                91,231           495,276         
753 Solid Waste Service 648,535 388,659 (77,201) 351,112       378,092 543,208         207,130         447,377         493,161         641,948         814,786         891,369         133,730         
434 Bay Area Air Quality Mngmt 2,619 2,619 2,620 2,574           48,264 46,230           45,840           47,861           46,923           43,682           4,577             3,190             968,287         
841 Storm Water Mngmt. 99,259 129,411 312,738 321,687       333,961 407,477         615,942         476,999         559,136         632,006         738,851         965,025         -                
420 Peninsula Partnership 12,206 8,698 (20,139) (57,654)       (14,010) 16,165           24,298           31,690           60,212           40,858           74,021           20,845           851,990         
706 Supplemental Law Enforce Svs (29,783) (4,843) 29,871 4,102           (7,362) 15,986           136,068         113,616         111,512         114,320         91,816           137,661         51,449           
N/A Local Law Enforce Block Grant - - - - - 2,213             11,465           10,300           7,134             167,681         
N/A California Law Enforcement Equip - - - - - - - - 124,819         -                
843 Construction Impact Fees 2,574,200 2,150,318 2,138,216 2,838,543    2,457,891   2,158,579      1,410,213      - - - - -                
809 Bedwell Bayfront Park Maintenance 590,373 697,902 846,244 1,037,124    1,201,858 1,344,994      1,431,295      1,491,526      1,646,015      1,696,361      1,756,965      1,939,274      
801 Recreation In-Lieu 966,233 786,233 3,589,245 3,911,198    3,595,277 3,406,195      1,881,039      290,517         111,758         57,146           17,432           -                1,777,783      
506 Sharon Hills Park 77,245 90,245 102,246 112,961       121,983 131,490         136,631         142,726         160,556         168,595         167,360         173,492         1,208,978      
505 Vintage Oak Landscape 81,474 103,314 116,077 130,846       140,991 149,381         154,683         161,389         170,000         177,331         188,546         197,063         176,841         

Miscellaneous Trust 813,013 813,013 1,000,330 835,081       974,859 1,057,194      1,208,818      1,353,202      1,718,208      1,796,322      1,334,606      1,567,274      208,883         

Total Special Revenue Fund 27,856,988 27,492,819 49,079,083 52,257,713 53,307,001 48,033,210 40,844,740 31,412,299 31,487,895 27,977,792 27,986,120 30,228,129 37,111,192

Debt Service Funds
872 Community Development Agency 9,269,618 9,269,618 9,149,620 9,135,499    9,073,768 8,349,895      8,690,632      6,849,552      -                -                -                -                -                
874 Library Bond 1,001,490 925,690 928,390 893,496       817,665 725,753         690,315         631,671         611,715         592,548         606,813         589,283         508,081         
875 Recreation GO Bond - 2002 930,691 925,759 2,584,659 2,601,099    2,292,567 1,683,424      1,200,558      885,125         675,692         549,507         401,338         -                -                

Total Debt Service Funds 11,201,799 11,121,067 12,662,669 12,630,094 12,184,000 10,759,072    10,581,505    8,366,348      1,287,407      1,142,055      1,008,151      589,283         508,081         

Capital Projects
853 Library Addition 138,900 193,900 212,389 241,475       351,386 400,941         388,094         412,568         445,111         511,058         594,494         580,514         560,470         
845 Measure T 2002 GO Bond 1,329,281 1,329,281 3,126,575 8,014,906    915,030 1,193,794      1,385,434      1,996,118      6,412,618      10,333,286    13,014,389    13,397,527    -                
851 Capital Improvement General 8,260,571 8,674,127 7,835,127 8,910,170    8,928,962 10,477,685    7,199,976      5,558,135      8,835,858      8,277,240      8,579,794      9,743,914      9,694,437      
856 Community Dev Agency - 1992 0 0 43,137 42,954         42,306        40,698           38,395           36,584           35,374           34,622           39,943           40,970           374,194         
858 Community Dev Agency - 2000 0 0 (2) 7,389,650    7,651,943 7,687,365      7,782,425      7,865,919      12,000,548    17,226,144    22,075,475    28,547,908    35,587,315    
863 Redevelopment Services CIP 0 0 6,054,918

Total Capital Projects 9,728,752 10,197,308 17,272,144 24,599,155 17,889,627 19,800,483    16,794,324    15,869,324    27,729,509    36,382,350    44,304,095    52,310,833    46,216,416    

Water Funds * 12,067,826 16,178,050 16,373,194 17,088,304 17,295,167 16,600,729    22,953,126    22,161,930    21,404,316    20,707,075    20,594,182    19,765,977    19,952,120    
*Water Funds reflect net assets beginning in 2008. 82,874,256 87,287,887 116,851,137 132,327,660 126,541,713 122,956,185  127,191,012  111,423,107  111,059,025  116,362,831  123,182,475  130,736,412  129,258,305  

158



                                                                                                                                                                                                                  ATTACHMENT  G

1 

 
June 2012 
 
Honorable Mayor Keith and City Council Members: 
 
The 2012-13 Adopted Budget, as revised by the City Council, is a $65 million spending plan for the City of Menlo Park.  This Budget 
provides a small surplus while funding key community and Council priorities and maintaining core service levels; however, it sacrifices 
some initiatives and utilizes short term strategies that, after four years of use, remain a stress on the organization. 

The Adopted Budget is the result of a remarkable effort by City staff, elected officials and residents working together to create a spending 
plan reflecting our community’s values and priorities.  While this process is never easy, the collaborative effort produces better results and 
staff looks forward to seeking improvements to the process in the future.  

This 2012-13 Budget is my first as your City Manager, and, although the process was well underway when I came on board, I fully support 
the results we have been able to achieve.  Despite the impacts of a struggling economy coupled with the elimination of redevelopment 
agencies by the State, for now, the City has succeeded in keeping operating costs at bay and initiating positive measures to spark an 
improved and healthier local economy resulting in expanded future revenue sources. 

 
BACKGROUND & PHILOSOPHY 
 
The economic conditions that plunged our nation into the worst recession since the Great Depression have forced local governments to 
shift to a new paradigm of delivering public services. While the signs of an economic recovery are beginning to emerge, governments at all 
levels still struggle to adapt to the new climate of slower revenue growth, critical infrastructure needs, rising costs to provide basic 
services, and, in California especially, a state budget crisis that continues to push the costs of service provision to the local level. And still, 
we endure.  
 
Amid these pressures, economic conditions can also be a catalyst for positive change.  We are continually motivated by the current 
economic forces to respond to changing community needs, finding the best value necessary to maintain the services and meet the 
expectations of our current and future customers.  As you know well, this is a balancing act between those who argue for “fewer services” 
and those who see the value in continued investment.  We believe the attached budget, as it reflects a spending plan for the next year, 
accomplishes both – securing the immediate needs of the community and addressing the long term needs for sustainable services.  This 
budget strives to maintain the quality of life our residents have come to enjoy and expect.  
 
Despite the many challenges, our financial condition remains strong, in part, because of our ability to creatively manage this balancing act.  
Although difficult, recent Council decisions have helped us ease through the economic crisis and continue our progress toward a 
sustainable budget for the long term:  

• Elimination of positions (15 since 2009) and City services  
• Paid off Safety Side retirement fund  
• Increased employee contributions to health care 
• Implemented a two-tier retirement program 
• Recovered greater cost in all departments 
• Negotiated wage controls with labor groups 

157



 

2 

 
The current fiscal setting presents an additional set of challenges under this new paradigm.  The City’s General Fund was greatly 
impacted by the dissolution of redevelopment agencies and the need to continue some of the vital services formerly funded through that 
source.  Other challenges include the obligation to fund long-term comprehensive planning activities, the slow economic recovery and the 
need to continue previous years’ operational reductions in order to keep costs in line with reduced revenues.  These items were major 
stressors in balancing the General Fund budget and resulted in Council-directed service trade-offs. 
 

 
 

From the trend information above, it is evident that economic recovery since the “dot.com” bust has been supported by increasing property 
taxes, the addition of the Utility Users’ Tax in 2007, and growth in Transient Occupancy Taxes (TOT).  These gains were largely offset by 
the loss of local sales tax revenues and the reduction of over $1.7 million (79 percent) in interest income in the General Fund since the 
2007-08 fiscal year.  The federal funds target rate for interest income is projected to remain at the current level of 0 to .25 percent for an 
indefinite period, further diminishing interest revenues. Per the graph below, interest earnings are a much less significant portion of the 
City’s revenue stream.  
 

 
 
  

Revenue Source 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 (est)
Property Taxes 5,287,616 6,059,380 5,914,296 6,792,082 8,925,236 10,007,808 10,727,003 11,339,649 11,867,559 12,603,742 12,811,324 13,022,600
Sales Taxes 12,358,973 8,648,641 6,857,224 6,048,940 6,057,461 6,503,635 6,799,561 7,676,943 6,865,152 5,499,244 5,988,055 6,132,000
Other Taxes 2,666,328 2,412,305 2,157,462 2,202,364 2,332,273 2,476,442 2,773,249 2,902,827 2,835,853 3,583,152 4,130,997 4,689,413
Utility Users Taxes (new)  641,668 1,651,479 1,162,595 1,148,454 1,122,940 1,135,900
Licenses and Permits 2,997,571 2,329,144 2,671,512 2,553,997 2,570,849 3,092,918 3,279,751 4,005,693 2,843,479 2,738,638 3,239,561 3,436,465
Use of Money and Property 2,696,396 1,966,153 1,391,918 694,342 1,289,037 1,671,653 2,700,614 2,745,485 1,746,993 849,023 575,758 716,000
Intergovernmental 2,730,115 2,762,308 2,862,975 2,322,221 1,442,107 1,732,929 1,754,834 2,009,244 1,827,065 1,811,140 1,946,156 1,153,713
Charges for Services 3,518,154 3,552,392 3,580,793 4,288,973 3,827,158 4,210,639 4,948,444 4,564,918 4,639,203 5,210,044 5,246,251 6,206,341
Fines and Other 1,274,744 1,328,814 1,471,413 1,284,598 1,385,045 1,406,826 1,440,181 1,623,338 1,872,726 1,773,408 1,683,700 1,621,759

33,529,897 29,059,137 26,907,593 26,187,517 27,829,166 31,102,850 35,065,305 38,519,576 35,660,625 35,216,845 36,744,742 38,114,191

GENERAL FUND REVENUE TRENDS SINCE FISCAL YEAR ENDED June 30, 2001

2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 
(Est)

2012-13 
Proposed

Interest Earnings* 1,697,414 1,108,444 899,392 926,495 1,323,774 2,106,737 1,883,913 1,257,236 802,083 652,000 315,000 390,000
% of General Fund 6.46% 3.96% 3.43% 3.33% 4.26% 6.01% 4.89% 3.53% 2.28% 1.77% 0.83% 0.97%

$0.00
$0.50
$1.00
$1.50
$2.00
$2.50

$ 
M

ill
io

ns

Interest Earnings

* Excludes Adjustment for Gain/Loss

160



 

3 

Property taxes and TOT remain bright spots in the revenue picture, as real estate values in the area continue to buck national trends and 
local hotels recover both rates and occupancy levels to pre-recession levels.  The 2012-13 General Fund budget assumes an increase in 
the TOT rate from 10 to 12 percent, effective January 1, 2013.  However, this will require voter approval in November. 
 

 
 
On the expenditure side, employee compensation costs have risen over the years as health care premiums and pension costs continue to 
rise.  With lower yields in investments over the last several years, the California Public Employees Retirement has increased the cost of 
retirement benefits to public employers.  Increasing insurance costs for general liability, workers compensation and property coverage 
have also contributed to the higher cost of local government services.  Additionally, personnel costs increased with the long-term funding 
of other post-employment benefits implemented in 2007.  The schedule below confirms that, at the same time revenues were declining 
(since the fiscal year 2000-01), the cost of providing General Fund services - over 70% of which is personnel - has increased significantly 
(extraordinary items have been removed for this comparison): 
 

 
 
 
  

$0.50

$1.00

$1.50

$2.00

$2.50

$3.00

$3.50
M

ill
io

ns
Transient Occupancy Tax

Current 10% Rate

Upon Voter Approval 
12% Rate

Expenditure Category 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 (est)
Personnel 16,952,114 18,055,363 18,779,435 18,682,163 19,956,863 20,372,055 22,798,667 25,471,178 27,282,856 26,960,644 26,845,801 26,687,679
Operating 4,358,162 4,557,128 3,800,803 3,492,436 3,511,604 3,729,324 4,490,278 4,688,423 4,534,018 4,726,739 4,614,493 4,242,121
Services 1,573,911 1,764,947 1,648,438 1,177,841 1,115,301 1,394,129 2,124,512 2,433,891 2,683,126 2,677,924 2,250,245 3,432,780
Transfers Out 7,287,500 2,508,504 1,496,000 2,897,483 3,646,000 1,946,000 3,263,578 2,502,525 1,734,200 2,132,656 2,267,950 2,377,800

30,171,687 26,885,942 25,724,676 26,249,923 28,229,768 27,441,508 32,677,035 35,096,017 36,234,200 36,497,963 35,978,489 36,740,380

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURE TRENDS SINCE FISCAL YEAR ENDED June 30, 2001

159



 

4 

Personnel costs include employee salaries, retirement, health and other benefits.  Next year, the General Fund personnel budget is $1.7 
million higher than the current year adopted budget, largely due to the funding of personnel previously supported with redevelopment 
revenues, but also due to a full funding of all positions, even if currently vacant.  Despite the reduction of seven full time equivalent (FTE) 
staff positions city-wide, the 2012-13 budget for personnel costs remains flat.  Salaries and wage budgets declined, but increases in health 
insurance premiums ($183,000, nearly 6 percent) and retirement costs ($125,000, 3.6 percent) offset these savings. 
 

 
 
 
FISCAL YEAR 2012-13 BUDGET 
 
In total, projections call for 2012-13 revenues to increase approximately $2.35 million over the 2011-12 fiscal year adjusted budget, largely 
due to an anticipated increase in property tax revenues, charges for services, revenue from the Facebook development agreement and an 
anticipated increases in the TOT rate.  Sales taxes are showing only a small increase of about 2.0 percent.  The largest reduction in 
revenues is Inter-Governmental Revenue.  With limited resources available from the federal government and significant state budget 
reductions, inter-governmental revenue is estimated to drop by approximately $230,000 - over 20 percent.  With continued low yields on 
investments, interest revenue will also decline further.   

The City Manager’s Proposed Budget for 2012-13 reflects the continuation of past cost reduction strategies, plus implementation of further 
budget-balancing approaches supported by Council and expected to bring service expectations and revenues into alignment.  
Recognizing that producing a “balanced” budget for any single year does not necessarily equate to a sustainable budget for the long term, 
Council continues to state a preference for making adjustments to the expenditure plan within the adopted budget.  Strategies employed in 
development of the 2012-13 budget were those most likely to maintain: key services to the community; the organization’s ability to meet 
Council goals; a long term focus and the ability to leverage opportunities; the current status of existing infrastructure to avoid higher costs 
in the future; and the ability to move the City toward a sustainable budget.   

The 2012-13 budget was discussed with the City Council at several meetings in early 2012 and a Study Session in early March 2012.  
With Council’s desire to have a balanced budget for the 2012-13 fiscal year and given the dissolution of redevelopment agencies, Council 
members supported placing a measure on the November 6, 2012 ballot to increase Menlo Park’s Transient Occupancy Tax (Hotel Tax) 

1999-00 2000-01 2001-02 2002-03 2003-04 2004-05 2005-06 2006-07 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12      2012-13    

FTE's 233.0 240.5 244.0 260.5 247.8 230.0 230.0 230.8 242.8 243.8 245.8 239.0 236.8 229.8

FTE's per 1,000 Popula on 7.45 7.69 7.81 8.26 7.84 7.24 7.24 7.19 7.55 7.58 7.64 7.43 7.36 7.14

200.0

225.0

250.0

275.0

Trend Line of FTE's

162



 

5 

rate from 10% to 12% in alignment with surrounding communities.  The 2012-13 budget includes an additional increase of $280,000 in 
anticipation of the TOT measure passing in November and increasing the rate as of January 1, 2013. 
 
To complete the budget process, Departments submitted the results of their service measures for inclusion in the Budget Report.  Data on 
community perceptions of services and quality of life are available through the community survey conducted in the autumn of 2010, are 
the most common and reliable service perception measures.  Refining performance measures is an annual process which begins in July 
when data collection begins for next year’s service measure results. 
    

 
DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET CHALLENGES 
 
Given the aggressive efforts to cut costs at mid-year for the past three years, departments continued to implement both short and long-
term operational efficiencies to control spending while providing quality municipal services throughout the year.  After many years of cost 
containment and budget cuts, the proposed budget continues to address only the basics: addressing the Council’s priorities and 
continuing to provide services as well as those programs that make Menlo Park unique.  To avoid negative impacts on services, City staff 
will continue exploring alternative revenue options, additional staffing and labor cost reductions, exploring alternative service delivery 
models, further operational reviews and aggressive pursuit of available federal, state and local funding.  Within this restricted fiscal 
environment, each department continues to work toward achieving program and service goals contending with their own distinct 
challenges.  Despite these challenges, highlights of the past year follow.    

 
 
Administrative Services 
 
The Finance Division worked extensively during the past year dealing with the financial and regulatory impact of the loss of redevelopment 
agencies.  A monumental effort within unrealistically short time frames imposed by the state was required to manage the impacts and 
establish the procedures required of the City as Successor Agency to the former redevelopment agency.  Requirements and 
interpretations of the laws associated with this action continue to evolve and require constant effort to maintain compliance and serve the 
City’s best interests.  
 
The Personnel Division continued under temporary contract leadership when an external recruitment process to replace the Director failed 
to yield a viable replacement.  However, a major recruitment was completed in March with the hiring of a new City Manager.  Business 
Development has also been put on hold following the departure of the Manager of that division in December. The Clerk’s Office continued 
to support the Commission Two-Year Work Plan process and began implementation of “less paper” with electronic agenda management.  
This year’s budget provides for the costs of the election in November, which will include two Council positions and the TOT measure.  The 
Administrative Services Department budget also includes funding for half-time positions that are currently vacant in the offices of Business 
Development, Information Services and Personnel.   
 
A highlight for the year was the continuation of the Menlo Park Leadership Academy for both the Executive staff and a fourth cohort, in 
which 15 employees graduated with additional skills and knowledge focused on creating organizational leaders at all levels.  These 
classes have inspired not just those in the class but others throughout the organization.   
 
 

161



 

6 

Community Development 
 
One of the primary focuses of the Community Development Department during the fiscal year has been the El Camino Real/Downtown 
Specific Plan, consistent with the Council’s goals.  The Plan passed on June 5 and work on subsequent planning efforts, including a major 
overhaul of the City’s Housing Element to be completed early in the new fiscal year, has already begun. 
 
The second priority for the Department has been processing land use entitlements for the Facebook campus, approved by Council in May.  
Additional permitting and other planning support for the Facebook West Campus may commence in the coming fiscal year.  The 
Department also finalized the sale of the City’s Terminal Avenue property, once a potential housing site, to Beechwood School.  Building 
Division staff is continuing work with major land owners in the M-2 zoning district to expedite the plan check process for tenant 
improvements.  
 
 
Community Services 
 
The Community Services Department continued refining business plans designed to achieve greater cost recovery at the new facilities on 
the Burgess Campus and maximizing program capacity.  An improved branding and marketing strategy will be implemented in the coming 
year to support these goals.  The Social Services Division also continues to evolve and will implement a strategic focus on community 
capacity-building and sustainable partnerships in the coming year.  The Housing Division was eliminated in February due to the 
dissolution of the City’s redevelopment agency.   
 
 

Library 
 
The main library was closed for three weeks during the spring of 2012 to install equipment and furnishings for a redesigned circulation 
area to allow for expanded self-check-out services.  Both of these efforts should improve the use of staff resources within the library, 
freeing available staff to provide more direct patron assistance. 

 
Police 
 
A new patrol schedule was adopted in FY 2011-12, reducing the current 2,184-hour annual work year to the standard 2080-hour work 
year and saving approximately $275,000 annually. The Department’s dispatching contract with the City of San Carlos expired in 
November and was not renewed, reducing the dispatch unit from 11 personnel to 7.  A police volunteer program was developed, and the 
department has adopted a social media program for improved community outreach. 
 
Through the General Fund, the Police Department will maintain the important operations of the Narcotics Enforcement Team (NET), 
previously funded from redevelopment funds.  The NET serves to combat narcotics and gang violence, partnering with allied agencies for 
maximum impact in making the community a safer place to live and a desirable place to do business. 
 
 
  

164



 

7 

Public Works 
 
During the 2011-12 fiscal year, the Public Works Department completed the final of the three most recent major capital improvement 
project on the Burgess Campus funded in partnership with the Arrillaga family – the Arrillaga Family Gymnastics Center.  Other significant 
projects completed this year included improvements to the parking system downtown, and renovation to Parking Plaza 2.  The Department 
has continued to look for ways to reduce operating costs and work toward a long-term sustainable budget.  Energy retrofits and water 
conservation improvements, which have both environmental benefits and cost savings, have been completed in many city facilities.  The 
transition to LED streetlights has been completed for approximately 25 percent of the City. 
 
The Public works budget reflects alternate funding sources to mitigate the impact of the dissolution of the redevelopment agency on the 
General Fund.  For example, the City will receive funding from a Metropolitan Transportation Commission grant to substitute a large 
majority of the funding from the former RDA ($72,000) for shuttle operations.  Certain streets maintenance and repair costs ($56,000) 
have been moved from the General Fund to the Construction Impact Fee Fund.  And the Gas Tax Fund will contribute $250,000 to the 
CIP transfer to support additional funding of the bi-annual Streets Resurfacing Project . 
 

Maintenance of the City’s infrastructure continues to be a high priority, and this year’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) includes a 
4% increase to infrastructure funding, as the amount has been unchanged since the 2008-09 budget.  The CIP fund which includes 
projects through the 2016-17 fiscal year, has also become the funding tool for long range planning projects, information systems upgrades 
and new or replacement facilities that are not covered by maintenance budgets.  Input from the City’s appointed commissions was 
solicited on the draft plan and incorporated into the current proposal.  The CIP was extensively altered to reflect the loss of redevelopment 
funding, and will continue as a valuable resource in prioritizing capital projects as the plan is updated. 

 
The 2012-13 budget factors in completion of capital projects started in the current fiscal year, most notably the $4.5 million 2011-12 Street 
Resurfacing Project.  This project qualifies for Proposition 1B funding from the State in the amount of $460,000.  In addition, the 2012-13 
fiscal year budget provides for 21 projects totaling $2.4 million from the General Fund CIP.  Funds for all projects shown in the 2012-13 
year of the five-year CIP will be appropriated with adoption of the budget and become available on July 1, 2012.  Projects in subsequent 
years are approved for planning purposes and will be considered for appropriation in the budget year indicated in the five-year plan. 
 
 
OTHER FUNDS 
 
In addition to the General Fund and CIP Program, the City’s budget includes numerous other separate but interdependent special revenue 
funds.  These funds are established to account separately for special-purpose revenues and expenditures.  The Estimated Fund Balances 
section shows the latest projected fiscal year-end fund balances and the programmed revenues and expenditures for fiscal year 2012-13. 
Staff carefully monitors all fund balances.  Decreases in fund balance may indicate a future reliance on General Fund appropriations in 
order to continue services, programs or projects that were intended to be self-sufficient or funded through other means.   A Summary of 
Fund Balances was presented to the Council with the City Manager’s proposed budget and staff report for consideration of long-term 
trends and impacts. 
 
It is important to note that these fund balance estimates change over time based on the actual status of the various projects that are 
underway and the corresponding staffing levels.  The Budget Report contains additional detailed, service-level information by department 
with respect to the interaction between these funds and the City General Fund operating budget.   

163



 

8 

 
SUMMARY 
 
As your new City Manager, I inherited a better-than-expected budget scenario and financial forecast that shows signs of stabilizing.  In 
total, this 2012-13 Budget honors the Capital Improvement Projects approved by the Council for the 2012-13 fiscal year and provides for 
the continuance of the City Council’s established goals.  All of this is credited to staff making sound financial recommendations and the 
Council having the courage to make the hard decisions so that we, as an organization, can continue to deliver the services our residents 
have come to enjoy and expect.  City Managers, by nature, are cautious and this budget reflects a cautious, yet achievable, fiscal plan 
that will allow us to do the work the Council has asked of us.    
 
Importantly, the City of Menlo Park’s Fiscal Year 2012-13 Budget is balanced and contains a small surplus.  It assumes an inflationary 
increase to the full annual transfer for infrastructure maintenance, and maintains the Utility Users Tax (UUT) at its current rate.  Revenue 
increases come largely from the new development agreement with Facebook and anticipated increases in the hotel tax rate from a 
proposed ballot measure in November. This careful balancing of the fiscal year’s revenues and expenditures is supported by the 
continued implementation of previously approved strategies, some of which are not sustainable in the long term.  This approach allows for 
a measured response to the slow recovery of the economy, and, depending upon the performance of the City’s other revenue-generating 
sources, is the most appropriate for determining an adequate rate of taxation over time.  Once again, the presence of substantial reserves 
reflects the foresight of you, prior City Councils and the community, allowing the City to manage costs strategically and to position itself 
well for the future. The goal of moving closer to long-term budget sustainability will require us to continue to closely review our 
organizational structure and be willing to take an innovative approach to some programs in order to better align our expenses with 
revenues while maintaining the community’s core services. 
 
The final result is a budget that will guide organizational efforts to maintain Menlo Park’s position as a premier community.  Looking 
towards next year, I anticipate several changes to the budget process, the document and further consideration of how we deliver services.  
I appreciate the City Council’s leadership, support and confidence during this period of transition.  I also wish to thank staff throughout the 
organization; most notably department directors, for their efforts at all levels of this budget’s development; and special thanks to Finance 
Director Carol Augustine and her staff for managing this ever-changing financial picture.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Alex D. McIntyre  
City Manager 

166



C’
)

Q
)

C
o CD as” 0
•

Lb i3-

165



ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
 

Council Meeting Date:  June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-095 

 
Agenda Item #: F-2 

 

 
 

REGULAR BUSINESS: Introduction of an Ordinance to amend Menlo Park    
Municipal Code to increase the Transient Occupancy Tax 
(TOT) rate from 10% to 12% 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council introduce an ordinance (Attachment A) to amend 
Menlo Park Municipal Code to increase the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) rate from 10 
percent to 12 percent subject to voter approval at the General Municipal Election on 
November 6, 2012. 
 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City has had a transient occupancy ordinance since June 1974, when it was first 
established at a rate of six percent.  The rate was subsequently increase since then to 
its current rate of ten percent on “rent charged by any hotel, motel or inn within the City 
limits for any person who exercises occupancy for thirty consecutive calendar days or 
less.” 
 
After considering the 10-year financial forecast that was presented to Council with the 
2011-12 Mid-year Report in February, which identified a budget deficit for future 
years, the Council requested an analysis and timeline regarding a potential November 
2012 ballot measure to increase the rate of the tax.  On April 17th, staff provided this 
information, noting that an increase in the TOT could be a tool to strengthen the City’s 
General Fund revenue base.  Each one percent increase in the City’s TOT rate would 
generate approximately $290,000, assuming hotel usage and rents remain stable in the 
future.  
 
ANALYSIS 
 
An increase in the TOT rate requires an amendment to Chapter 13.16 of the Menlo Park 
Municipal Code. Section 3.16.030 Municipal Code specifies the TOT rate of 10%. An 
ordinance to increase tax rate requires a 2/3 vote (four members) of the City Council 
and a majority of the City’s voters at a Regular Municipal Election.  Attachment A is a 
draft Ordinance to amend Section 13.16.030 to increase the TOT rate from 10% to 12% 
effective January 1, 2013.  If this ordinance, as presented, is acceptable, the Council 
should introduce the ordinance with a second reading and adoption on July 17th.  At that 

168



same meeting, the Council will need to adopt a Resolution calling for an election, 
consolidating the election, directing the City Attorney to prepare an Impartial Analysis, 
and designating one or more of its members to write and sign a ballot argument in favor 
of the measure, if so determined by the City Council. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The current projection of TOT revenues for the City for fiscal year 2012-13 assumes an 
increase in the TOT from 10 percent to 12 percent effective January 1, 2013. The 
increase is projected to add $280,000 in General Fund revenues in the second half of 
the 2012-13 fiscal year, and $570,000 in subsequent fiscal years’ budgets.  If the ballot 
measure is unsuccessful, the added revenues will be removed from the budget and 10-
Year Forecast, with the City again facing a deficit budget for 2012-13 and beyond.   
 
The cost to add a secondary ballot measure on the ballot in the November 2012 
General Election will be in the range of an additional $10,000 – 15,000. 
 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
The TOT is a general tax, and as such may be imposed for general governmental 
purposes.  As a tax on hotel and motel rentals, it is not a tax that falls on local residents, 
but is paid by visitors to assist in the continuance of City-provided services that include 
roads, parks, public safety and library services.  Pursuant to State law, any increase of 
the TOT rate must be approved by a 2/3 vote (four members) of the City Council and a 
majority of the City's voters at a Regular Municipal Election. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental Review is not required. 
 
 

______________________________   __________________________ 
For William L. McClure     Carol Augustine 
City Attorney       Finance Director 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:   Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENT:  
 
 A. Draft Ordinance to increase TOT rate effective January1, 2013 

167



ATTACHMENT A 

ORDINANCE NO.  
 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK AMENDING SECTION 
3.16.030 [IMPOSITION] OF CHAPTER 3.16 [TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY 
TAX] OF TITLE 3 [REVENUE AND FINANCE] OF THE MENLO PARK 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO INCREASE THE TAX RATE TO 12% 

 
 
The City Council of the City of Menlo Park does ORDAIN as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Menlo Park hereby finds 
and determines that: 
 
 
A. The citizens of the City of Menlo Park wish to increase the Transient Occupancy 

Tax imposed on all transients for the privilege of occupancy in any hotel to 
twelve percent (12%) beginning on January 1, 2013. 

 
SECTION 2.  The first sentence of Section 3.16.030 [Imposition] of Chapter 3.16 

[Transient  Occupancy  Tax]  of  Title  3  [Revenue  and  Finance]  of  the  Menlo  Park 
Municipal Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
 
3.16.030      Imposition.  For the privilege of occupancy in any hotel, each transient is 
subject to and shall pay a tax in the amount of twelve percent (12%) of the rent 
charged by the operator beginning January 1, 2013. 
 
 
 

SECTION 3. If any section of this ordinance, or part hereof, is held by a court of 
competent jurisdiction in a final judicial action to be void, voidable or enforceable, such 
section, or part hereof, shall be deemed severable from the remaining sections of this 
ordinance and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining sections hereof. 
 

SECTION 4. If a majority of voters voting thereon at the General Municipal 
Election on November 62, 2012, approve this Ordinance amending Chapter 3.16, the 
effective date of this ordinance shall be ten days after the date the City Council declares 
the results of the election. Within fifteen (15) days of its adoption this ordinance shall be 
posted in three (3) public places within the City of Menlo Park, and the ordinance, or a 
summary of the ordinance prepared by the City Attorney, shall be published in a local 
newspaper  used  to  publish  official  notices for  the  City of  Menlo  Park  prior  to  the 
effective date. 
 
INTRODUCED on the twelfth day of June, 2012. 
 

170



PASSED AND ADOPTED as an ordinance of the City of Menlo Park at a regular 
meeting of said Council on the    day of June, 2012, by the following votes: 
 
AYES:    
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
ABSTAIN:  
 
       APPROVED: 
 
   
       Kirsten Keith 
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
  
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk  
 

169



  ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
 

Council Meeting Date: June 12, 2012 
Staff Report #: 12-094     

 
Agenda Item #: F-3 

  
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: Amend the Public Noticing Policy (Policy) for 

Development Permit Applications in order to provide 
alternate means for noticing the public of development 
project applications in a cost effective and efficient 
manner    

 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council amend the Public Noticing Policy for 
Development Permit applications in order to provide alternate means for noticing the 
public of development project applications in a cost effective and efficient manner.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Menlo Park provides public notices for all applications for development 
permits that require review by the Planning Commission and/or City Council. The 
current noticing policy (Attachment A) was recommended by the Planning Commission 
on April 11, 2005 and approved by the City Council on May 5, 2005. The Policy requires 
notices of meetings at which applications will be considered by the Planning 
Commission and/or City Council, as well as notices of initial application submittals, the 
latter of which include hard copies of select project plan sheets. Included in the current 
Policy is a statement that the policy may be amended or revised by action of the City 
Council, with input from the Planning Commission.  The Planning Commission reviewed 
the proposed Policy change on May 21, 2012 and their input is included in the analysis. 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Staff is proposing the elimination of hard copies of site plan and elevations as part of the 
mailed notice of application submittal. Instead, a postcard will be sent, containing a link 
to the City of Menlo Park web site, where electronic copies of the site plan and 
elevations may be viewed, along with other information about the application. The 
primary drivers behind this requested change are advances in technology and the 
desire to conserve paper. In addition, most of the application submittal notices require 
staff to physically take the notices to the Post Office where the mail carrier is stationed; 
this station is currently located on Bohannon Drive, a relatively short drive from City 
offices, but is proposed to change to Palo Alto in the near future. Mailing only postcards 

172



for application submittals will help conserve staff resources.  There are no changes 
being proposed to the Public Hearing notice process. 
 
The Planning Commission at their May 21, 2012 meeting provided input on four topics, 
which are listed below and staff concurs with their comments. 
 

• Providing information about public internet access sites, such as the library, for 
those who may not have home internet access; 

• Mailing hard copies of project plans on request; 

• Ensuring projects are described clearly and accurately, and planner contact 
information is prominently displayed; and 

• Overall paper reduction and technology upgrades (Commission packets, Council 
Chambers). 

 
The City’s Notices web page is currently being constructed and will be the responsibility 
of the City Clerk’s office when it is complete.  Included on the Notices page will be a 
unique file name, sections for the various types of notices that the City publishes, i.e. 
Development Related Notices and Bid Notices.  All notices will remain on the Notices 
page until the action is taken or meeting completed relating to the notice.  It will also 
contain links from the appropriate department, commission and project pages.  Staff has 
determined that having all City notices in one place on the website will be a helpful for 
our citizens by enabling them to go to one page to locate any notice.  The goal for 
implementation is July 1 or as soon thereafter as feasible. 
 
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The last cost analysis done by the Planning Division was completed in 2010 comparing 
the 2011 rates versus the 2010 rates for postage.   
 
Based on the number of development permit applications in 2010 the following is the 
cost of postage.  
 

 2010 $4,919.45 2010 postage cost for 63 development permit applications 
 2011 $6,659.17 2011 postage cost for 63 development permit applications 
 2012 $6,921.72 2012 postage cost for 63 development permit applications 
 
The postage rate increases since 2010 have significantly affected the mailing costs.  
The number of development permit applications last year was 68, with 80% having to be 
driven to the Bohannon Drive Post Office.  There will be some notices that will still 
require Public Hearing notices to be mailed, however there will still be a significant 
savings in postage as well as staff time to drive the notices to the Post Office.  
 
 
 

171



Page 3 of 3 
Staff Report #12-094 

 

POLICY IMPLICATIONS 
This will be policy change regarding how the public is noticed for a variety of 
Development permit applications.  
 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
No environmental assessment is required; however the City will be saving trees. 
 

 
   
Margaret S. Roberts, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   

A. Current Policy 
 

B. Redline Version  
 
C. Recommended Policy 

 
D. Memo to Planning Commission 
        

174



 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
PLANNING DIVISION 

701 Laurel Street 
Menlo Park, CA 94025 

650-330-6702 
www.menlopark.org 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICING POLICY FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS 
REVIEWED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND/OR CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 
The following public noticing procedures apply to all applications for development 
permits that require review by the Planning Commission and/or City Council.  
Development permit applications include the following: use permits, variances, 
architectural control, conditional development permits, planned development permits, 
General Plan amendments, Zoning Ordinance amendments, Zoning Map amendments, 
minor subdivisions, and major subdivisions.   
 

1. Within seven (7) days of receipt of a formal application, the application will be 
assigned to a project planner and a notice prepared and mailed to all residents, 
businesses, and property owners within a minimum of 300 feet of the project site 
and posted on the City’s website.  The notice will include the following 
information: 

 
• Name of the applicant 
• Address of the project 
• Brief description of the proposal 
• 8.5-inch by 11-inch copies of the site plan and all elevations 
• Name, email and phone number of project planner 

 
2. At least 18 days prior to the Planning Commission or City Council meeting date 

(three Thursdays before the meeting date), a notice will be placed with a local 
newspaper used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park (currently 
the Menlo-Atherton Recorder dba The Almanac) for publication and posted on 
the City’s web site.  The notice would be published 12 days before the meeting 
date.   

 
3. At least 18 days prior to the Planning Commission or City Council meeting date 

(three Thursdays before the meeting date), a notice announcing the date and 
time of the meeting will be mailed to all residents and property owners within 300 
feet of the project site.  The notice should include highlighted language notifying 
readers of substantial changes made to the plans since the submittal and 
preparation of the first notice.   

 

173



ATTACHMENT A 

  

Amendment to Policy: 
 
This policy may only be amended or revised by action of the City Council, with input 
from the Planning Commission.  The City Council shall give public notice of any 
proposed changes before amending or revising the policy. 
 
 
Adopted by:  City Council 
Date: May 10, 2005 
 
 

176



PUBLIC NOTICING POLICY FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS  
REVIEWED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND/OR CITY COUNCIL 

DRAFT REVISIONS – MAY 21, 2012 
 
The following public noticing procedures apply to all applications for development 
permits that require review by the Planning Commission and/or City Council.   
Development permit applications include the following: use permits, variances, 
architectural control, conditional development permits, planned development permits, 
General Plan amendments, Zoning Ordinance amendments, Zoning Map amendments, 
minor subdivisions, and major subdivisions. 
 

1. Within seven (7) days of receipt of a formal application, the application will be 
assigned to a project planner and a notice prepared and posted to the Notices 
page on the City’s website.  and mailed to all residents, businesses, and property 
owners within a minimum of 300 feet of the project site and posted on the City’s 
website. The notice will include the following information: 
 

• Name of the applicant 
• Address of the project 
• Brief description of the proposal 
• 8.5-inch by 11-inch copies of the site plan and all elevations  
• Name, email and phone number of project planner 

 
 

2. Within seven (7) days of receipt of formal application, a postcard notice will be 
mailed to all residents, businesses, and property owners within a minimum of 300 
feet of the project site.  The postcard will include the following information: 

 
• Name of the applicant 
• Address of the project 
• Name, email and phone number of project planner 
• Link to the City of Menlo Park website, Notices page for details, 

which will also contain a link to subscribe to future updates to the 
Noticing page 

 
2.3. At least 18 days prior to the Planning Commission or City Council meeting 

date (three Thursdays before the meeting date), a notice will be placed with a 
local newspaper used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park 
(currently the Menlo-Atherton Recorder dba The Almanac)The Daily News) for 
publication and posted on the City’s web site. The notice would be published 12 
days before the meeting date.  

 
 

3.4. At least 18 days prior to the Planning Commission or City Council meeting 
date (three Thursdays before the meeting date), a notice announcing the date 
and time of the meeting will be mailed to all residents and property owners within 

175



ATTACHMENT B 
 

300 feet of the project site. The notice should include highlighted language 
notifying readers of substantial changes made to the plans since the submittal 
and preparation of the first notice.   
 

 
Amendment to Policy: 
 
This policy may only be amended or revised by action of the City Council, with input 
from the Planning Commission. The City Council shall give public notice of any 
proposed changes before amending or revising the policy.   
 
Adopted by: City Council 
Date:  
 

178



PUBLIC NOTICING POLICY FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATIONS 
REVIEWED BY THE PLANNING COMMISSION AND/OR CITY COUNCIL 

 
The following public noticing procedures apply to all applications for development 
permits that require review by the Planning Commission and/or City Council.   
Development permit applications include the following: use permits, variances, 
architectural control, conditional development permits, planned development permits, 
General Plan amendments, Zoning Ordinance amendments, Zoning Map amendments, 
minor subdivisions, and major subdivisions. 
 

1. Within seven (7) days of receipt of a formal application, the application will be 
assigned to a project planner and a notice prepared and posted to the Notices 
page on the City’s website. The notice will include the following information: 
 

• Name of the applicant 
• Address of the project 
• Brief description of the proposal 
• Copies of the site plan and all elevations  
• Name, email and phone number of project planner 

 
2. Within seven (7) days of receipt of formal application, a postcard notice will be 

mailed to all residents, businesses, and property owners within a minimum of 300 
feet of the project site.  The postcard will include the following information: 

 
• Name of the applicant 
• Address of the project 
• Name, email and phone number of project planner 
• Link to the City of Menlo Park website, Notices page for details, 

which will also contain a link to subscribe to future updates to the 
Noticing page 

 
3. At least 18 days prior to the Planning Commission or City Council meeting date 

(three Thursdays before the meeting date), a notice will be placed with a local 
newspaper used to publish official notices for the City of Menlo Park (currently 
The Daily News) for publication and posted on the City’s web site. The notice 
would be published 12 days before the meeting date.  

 
4. At least 18 days prior to the Planning Commission or City Council meeting date 

(three Thursdays before the meeting date), a notice announcing the date and 
time of the meeting will be mailed to all residents and property owners within 300 
feet of the project site and posted on-line on the Notices page of the City’s 
website.  The mailed notice should provide information that substantial changes 
have been made and a link to the Notices page to view the changes.   The on-
line notice should include highlighted language notifying readers of substantial 
changes made to the plans since the submittal and preparation of the first notice.   
 

177



ATTACHMENT C 

Amendment to Policy: 
 
This policy may only be amended or revised by action of the City Council, with input 
from the Planning Commission. The City Council shall give public notice of any 
proposed changes before amending or revising the policy.   
 
Adopted by: City Council 
Date:  
 

180



 MEMORANDUM 
 

 
 
 
 
DATE: May 21, 2012 

TO: Planning Commission 

From: Margaret S. Roberts, City Clerk 

RE: Agenda Item E2: Consideration of an amendment to the Public Noticing 
Policy (Policy) for Development Permit Applications in order to provide 
alternate means for noticing in order to provide alternate means for noticing 
the public of development projects in a cost effective and efficient manner 

 
On April 11, 2005, the Planning Commission recommended approval of the Policy 
(Attachment A) and subsequently the City Council approved the Commission’s 
recommendation on May 5, 2005.  Included in the current Policy is states that the policy 
may be amended or revised by action of the City Council, with input from the Planning 
Commission.  
 
Since the Policy in 2005, advances in technology and the desire to cut down on paper; 
staff is bring forward proposed changes to the Policy.  Another consideration is that staff 
is currently required to take the notices to the Post Office where the mail carrier is 
stationed, which is located on Bohannon Drive.  The Bohannon Drive Post Office is 
planning to move to Palo Alto in the near future.  The main change to the policy is the 
elimination of mailing out the Notice in its entirety including the site plan and elevations.   
 
Once notices were written, depending on the number of pages determines the method 
used to mail the notice.  The city mails out Flats and Cards.  During 2011 there were 68 
notices compared to the 63 notices in 2010. 
 
Staff is looking for the Commission’s input on the changes so that they can be included 
in the staff report when this item goes to the Council on June 5, 2012. 
 
 
 
  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Current Public Noticing Policy 
B. Proposed Revised Public Noticing Policy 
C. Redline version of the Public Noticing Policy 

179



  COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT  
 

Council Meeting Date:  June 12, 2012  
Staff Report #: 12-086 

 
Agenda Item #: I-1 

 
 
 
INFORMATION ITEM:  Belle Haven Child Development Center Self 

Evaluation Report for the Child Development Division 
of the California Department of Education for Fiscal 
Year 2011-12 

 

 
This is an information item and does not require Council action. 
 
BACKGROUND  
 
The California Department of Education requires Title 5 State Preschool Programs to 
conduct an annual self-evaluation and submit these findings to the State and the 
school’s governing board at the close of each fiscal year.  The Belle Haven Child 
Development Center (CDC) is a Title 5 State Preschool Program; the Council is the 
governing board and the City Manager is the Authorized Representative responsible for 
signing the annual report that was completed by the Belle Haven CDC program 
supervisor. 

 
ANALYSIS 
 
The fiscal year 2011-12 self-evaluation report includes: 

 The Agency Annual Report (State form CD 4000) 
 The Environmental Rating Scale Summary Findings (State form CD 4002) 
 The Desired Results Program Action Plan (State form CD 4003) 
 A personnel roster 
 Attestation of Qualified Staff and Ratio Requirements (State form DC 3701A) 

 
  
IMPACT ON CITY RESOURCES 
 
The Belle Haven CDC was budgeted to receive $805,835 from the State of California in 
addition to the City’s contribution of $434,719 in FY 2011-12.  Acceptance of this report 
has no impact on these amounts. 
 

 
POLICY ISSUES 
 
Acceptance of the annual report by the CDC governing board is a state requirement. 
 
 
182



Page 2 of 2 
Staff Report #: 12-086 

 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
 
Environmental Review is not required. 
 
 
_______________________________  
Cherise Brandell,  
Community Services Director  
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Public Notification was achieved by posting the agenda, with this 

agenda item being listed, at least 72 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
  A. Belle Haven CDC Self Evaluation Report for FY 2011-12   

181



ATTACHMENT A 
 

 
 
 
 

Fiscal Year 2011–12 Program Self-Evaluation 
Forms  

 
All Forms Due:  

Friday, June 1, 2012, 5 p.m. 
 

Child Development Division 
California Department of Education 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

184



  

Child Development Division CD 4000 
California Department of Education   March 2012 
  
 

Program Self-Evaluation Annual Report 
 

 
Contractor’s Legal Name 
City of Menlo Park- Belle Haven Child Development Center 
Vendor Number   
2184 

 Cal-SAFE 
CDS Code 

Contract and 
Age 

 CSPP   
 CCTR – (Infant/Toddler) 
 CCTR – (School Age) 
 Education Network (Infant/Toddler) 
 Education Network (Preschool) 
 CHAN 
 CMIG - (Infant/Toddler) 
 CMIG - (Preschool) 

Date Program Self-Evaluation Completed  
Number of Classrooms 4 Number of Family Child Care Homes  0 
Describe the Program Self-Evaluation Process (Note: This area expands as necessary.) 
 
Our Center began our self-evaluation process soon after we enrolled new children for the 
upcoming school year in Summer 2011.  All instructional staff began observations on the 
children in July and August of 2011.  All instructional staff completed the Developmental Profile 
(DRDP) for each child, in each of the classrooms, in September and October of 2011.  All 
completed DRDPs were entered into the Group Data Summary spreadsheet for each classroom 
by the Administration staff in October 2011. Then, all the Lead Teachers used the 
Developmental Progress form to summarize the information about each child’s progress during 
parent conferences in November 2011.  All Group Data Summary sheets were presented to all 
instructional staff at our monthly staff meeting in December 2011.  Also at the staff meeting, all 
instructional staff identified key findings from the results of the DRDPs and created action steps 
that they implemented over the coming months for their group of children.  
 
In January and February of 2012 parent surveys were passed out during the monthly parent 
meeting, and then collected by the Administration.  In March of 2012 the surveys were complied 
into the Group Data Summary by the Administration.  Results from the summary of the parent 
surveys were presented to all staff at the monthly staff meeting in May 2012.   
 
The Early Childhood Environment Rating Scale (ECERS) was completed in the classrooms on 
March 13, 2012, March 26, 2012 and April 6, 2012 by the Program Supervisor and the Assistant 
Program Supervisor at Menlo Children’s Center.  During the monthly staff meeting and the Lead 
Teacher meeting in April 2012 the ECERS results were reviewed.  All program staff indentified 
key findings from the results and created action steps that were implemented over the coming 
months in each classroom.   
 
All instructional staff completed their second set of DRDP assessments for each child, in each 
classroom, during March and April of 2012.   All completed DRDPs were entered into the Group 
Data Summary spreadsheet for each classroom by the Administration in April 2012.  All Group 

183



  

Data Summary sheets were presented to the Lead Teachers in early May 2012, where key 
findings were identified and action steps were created.  These action steps will be implemented 
over the coming months with each group of children.   
 
On May 24, 2012 the Agency Annual Report was completed by the Program Supervisor which 
included the Program Self- Evaluation, the Desired Results Developmental Profile Summary of 
Findings and the Program Action Plan.  The Annual Report was reviewed by the City of Menlo 
Park Representative, the Director of Community Services and will be presented to the City 
Council at the June 12, 2012 meeting.  Also the Annual Report will be presented to all program 
staff on May 25, 2012 and to parents on June 7, 2012.   
 
 

A copy of the Program Self-Evaluation will be/has been presented 
to the Governing Board. 

Date  
June 12, 2012 

A copy of the Program Self-Evaluation will be/has been presented 
to teaching/program staff. 

Date  
October 5, 2011 and 
May 25, 2012 

A copy of the Program Self-Evaluation will be/has been presented 
to parents. 

Date 
June 7, 2012 

Statement of Completion  
I certify that a Program  
Self-Evaluation was completed. 

Signature   
 
Name, Title, and Phone Number 
Natalie Bonham  
Program Supervisor: 650-330-2272 

Date 
May 24, 2012 

186



 

  

Child Development Division           CD 4001A 
California Department of Education March 2012 

 
Desired Results Developmental Profile Summary of Findings 

And Program Action Plan – Program or Network Level  
 

Contractor Name 
City of Menlo Park – Belle Haven Child Development Center 
Contract Type, Education Network, and/or Cal-SAFE  
CSPP 

Age Group (Infant/Toddler, Preschool, School-Age) 
Preschool  

Planning Date  
May 15, 2012 

Lead Planner’s Name and Position 
Natalie Bonham – Program Supervisor 

Follow-up Date(s) 
November and December 2012  

Lead Planner’s Name and Position 
Leticia Gutierrez – Lead Teacher Room 1 
Stephanie Enriquez – Lead Teacher Room 2 
Maria Lopez – Lead Teacher Room 3 
Stephanie Hong – Lead Teacher Room 4 

   
This form can be expanded and is not limited to a single page. 

 
Key Findings from 

Developmental Profiles 

And 

Educational Goal  

(What will be 

accomplished for 

children?) 

 

Action Steps 

(Including materials and training 

needed, schedule, space and 

supervision changes) 

Expected 

Completion Date 

and Persons 

Responsible 

Follow-Up and 

Reflection 

(Changes made,  

date completed,  

time extended) 

An average of 60% of the 
preschool children are at the 
Exploring, Developing and 
Building levels in the domain of 
Language and Literacy.   
 
An average of 70% of the 
preschool children will be at the 
Building and Integrating levels in 

All instructional staff will be provided with a 
professional development training day which will 
include a Preschool Learning Foundations for 
language and literacy as well as English-
language development.  This will allow the 
instructional staff to incorporate more language 
and literacy activities into the daily curriculum to 
increase the children’s’ development.   

November 2012 
 
Program Supervisor 

 

During monthly parent meetings, parents will be December 2012  
185



 

  

the Language and Literacy 
domain after the second DRDP 
assessment period in FY 2012-
13.   

encouraged to participate in the Raising A 
Reader program and the homework program to 
help to support their child’s language and literacy 
development.   

 
Program Supervisor 

All language and literacy materials in the 
classrooms will be evaluated, using ERS as a 
guide, to see what is needed to enhance the 
children’s development.    

November 2012 
 
All instructional staff 

 

All instructional staff will ensure that language 
and literacy activities will be provided for the 
children during outdoor play time.   

November 2012 
 
All instructional staff 

 

 The program supervisor will be supervising and 
facilitating all instructional staff to ensure this 
process is ongoing.   

December 2012 
 
Program Supervisor 

 

An average of 60% of the 
preschool children are at the 
Exploring, Developing and 
Building levels in the domain of 
Mathematical Development.   
 
An average of 70% of the 
preschool children will be at the 
Building and Integrating levels in 
the Mathematical Development 
domain after the second DRDP 
assessment period in FY 2012-
13.  

All instructional staff will be encouraged to 
incorporate a professional development goal for 
the upcoming FY 2012-13 that relates to the 
children’s mathematical development.  This will 
allow the instructional staff to implement more 
math activities into the daily curriculum.   

December 2012 
 
All Instructional staff 

 

All math materials in the classrooms will be 
evaluated, using ERS as a guide, to see what is 
needed to enhance the children’s development.   

November 2012 
 
All instructional staff 

 

Parent education will be provided during parent 
conferences to encourage parents to do math 
activities with their children to increase their 
development.   

November 2012 
 
Lead Teachers 

 

All instructional staff will review and ensure that 
enough time is given to the children to explore 
the math area in the classrooms during free play 
time, as well as math activities incorporated 
during outdoor play time.    

November 2012 
 
All instructional staff 

 

 The program supervisor will be supervising and 
facilitating all instructional staff to ensure this 
process in ongoing.   

December 2012 
 
Program Supervisor 

 

 

188



C’
)

Q
)

C
o CD as” 0
•

Lb i3-

187


	061212 Regular
	3B2B
	CITY COUNCIL
	REGULAR MEETING AGENDA

	0B0B
	1BTuesday, June 12, 2012
	7:00 p.m.
	6B4B701 Laurel Street, Menlo Park, CA 94025

	4B

	D-1 - CDC Food Contract Final
	D-1 - CDC food contract SR.pdf
	Staff Report #: 12-090
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Natalie Bonham, Report Author Cherise Brandell
	Program Supervisor- BHCDC Director of Community Services


	D-1 - Att A - contract

	D-2 - Election Final
	D2 - Election SR.pdf
	ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT
	Agenda Item #: D-2
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Margaret S. Roberts, MMC
	City Clerk


	D-2 - Att A - Resolution
	D-2 - Att B - Calendar

	D-3 - BMR final
	D-3 - BMR Appropriation - SR.pdf
	CITY ATTORNEY
	For William L. McClure
	City Attorney

	D-3 - Att A - Resolution

	D-4 - 200 Middlefield final
	D-4 - 200 Middlefield SR.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
	Staff Report #: 12-087

	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Roger K. Storz Ruben R. Niño
	Senior Civil Engineer Assistant Public Works Director


	D-4 - Att A - Resolution
	D-4 - Att B - Public Access Easement

	D-5 - Willow & Sandhill final
	D5 - Willow and Sand Hill SR
	D-5 - Att A - Resolution Willow
	City Clerk

	D-5 - Att B - Resolution Sand Hill
	City Clerk

	D-5 - Att C - Eligible Project List

	D-6 - ECR DSP final
	D-6 - ECR DSP SR.pdf
	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
	Staff Report #: 12-098

	BACKGROUND

	D-6 - Att A - ZOA
	D-6 - Att B.1 - REZ - Non-ECR SE-SW
	D-6 - Att B.1 - REZ - Non-ECR SE-SW - Ex A
	D-6 - Att B.1 - REZ - Non-ECR SE-SW - Ex B
	D-6 - Att B.2 - REZ - ECR-SE
	D-6 - Att B.2 - REZ - ECR SE - Ex A
	D-6 - Att B.2 - REZ - ECR SE - Ex B
	D-6 - Att B.3 - REZ - ECR SW
	D-6 - Att B.3 - REZ - ECR SW - Ex A
	D-6 - Att B.3 - REZ - ECR SW - Ex B
	D-6 - Att C - CC 6-5 changes

	E-1 - Levy Fees final
	E-1 - Levy Fees SR.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	ANALYSIS
	ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW
	ATTACHMENTS:
	A. Resolution
	B. Staff Report # 12-077, dated May 22, 2012

	E-1 - Att A - Resolution
	RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK OVERRULING PROTESTS, ORDERING THE IMPROVEMENTS, CONFIRMING THE DIAGRAM, AND ORDERING THE CONTINUATION AND COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS AT THE EXISTING FEE RATES FOR THE SIDEWALK AND TREE ASSESSMENT...
	City Clerk


	E-1 - Att B - SR 5.22.12
	D6 - Landscape Assessment
	Rsolution Approving Engineer's Report - Att A
	Resolution of Intent to order assessments - Att B
	Engineers Report - Att C



	E-2 - Storm Water final
	E-2 - Storm Water SR
	PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
	Staff Report #: 12-092

	ANALYSIS
	Environmental review is not required for this action.
	Pam Lowe, P.E. Ruben Niño
	Associate Civil Engineer Assistant Public Works Director

	Proposed
	Budget
	Proposed FY 2012-13 Budget


	E-2 - AttA - Resolution.pdf
	Storm Water Management Program Regulatory Fee


	E-3 - NPDES final
	E-3 - Countywide NPDES SR.pdf
	PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
	Staff Report #: 12-089

	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Pam Lowe, P.E. Ruben Niño
	Associate Civil Engineer Assistant Public Works Director


	E-3 - Att A - Resolution

	F-1 - Budget final
	F-1 - Budget SR
	ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 
	Staff Report #: 12-093

	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	POLICY ISSUES

	F-1 - Att A - CIP
	RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MENLO PARK ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2011-12 AND ADOPTING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FOR THE FISCAL YEAR

	F-1 - Att B - Appropriations
	F-1 - Att C - UUT
	ATTACHMENT D

	F-1 - Att D - UUt determination
	F-1 - Att E - Revised 10 Year Forcast
	F-1 - Att F - Revised Schedule
	History of Fund Balances

	F-1 - Att G - Transmittal letter

	F-2 - TOT final
	F-2 - TOT SR.pdf
	F-2 - Att A - Ordinance

	F-3 - Noticing final
	F-3 - Noticing SR.pdf
	ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DEPARTMENT
	Agenda Item #: F-3
	RECOMMENDATION
	BACKGROUND
	ANALYSIS
	Margaret S. Roberts, MMC
	City Clerk


	F-3 - Att A - Current Policy
	PLANNING DIVISION
	Menlo Park, CA 94025

	F-3 - Att B - Redline
	F-3 - Att C - Recommended Policy
	F-3 - Att D - PC Memo
	MEMORANDUM
	DATE: May 21, 2012


	I-1 - CDC Annual report final
	I-1 - Annual CDC Report SR
	I-1 - Att A - Report




